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Indicative Institutionat Beekhoiid Price Range $1.85 to $2.20 par share

434 mitlion

1394 m

Minimom Shares offered under this Prospectus

ilion
L

882 mitlion

Maximum Shares elered under this Prospecius

Expacted Offer size {Shares) 7585 mitlion

Shares on issue following the Glfe

Marke: capitalisation™ 56804 mitlion

$E15 4 million

Enlerprise vaiug

Fuorecast
FY 2006

2480 mitlion
£38.8 miilion
$£28.8 mitlion

Forecast
FY 200

$27.8 miliion
$26.9 miliion

$19.8 miliion

ESITDA

ESITA

NRAT [pre goedwill amartisation)]

EFS ipre goodwill amortisation] 7.1 cents 10.3 cents
7.2 cents

13.2 times

Cividends per share {annualised]® 4.9 cents

Ev/EBITAH 191 times
195 times

3.65%

RE mulligie ipre goodwill amortization]™ 283 times

Cividend yield [fuily franked] [annualised]

S
o

Broker Firrn Clfer apens [9.80am AZST]

FPriority Offer
Priority Dffer ¢ (5.00m AEST)

Institutional Cler opens (9.00am AZST]

Institutional CHer closes [5.80pm AEST

Firnal Price and basis of Share atlocation anncunced

Shares expected to commence trading on 45X
on a deferred sattlernent basis

Retsif and Institutional seitiement
Expectad dispatch ol transaction confirmalion siatemenis

Shares expected to commence trading on A5X
on a normal setltlamant basis
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Dear invesion

barn delighted 10 it you 0 become & shgrehotder It GEEK, the market leader N fhie
hustralian and New Jealant prline eraployment ciaseifieds rnarket.

SEEHK has been & arineredible journey over the Lagt seven years = brprn start-up under ite
three founders fwho are still Executive Direetors to @ yibrant growing puginess emplo ny

G Y ’ )
appmx'{ma‘tew 900 cornmitied staff

Oy bugsiness at itg core i irngHe - SEEK allows ahgpekers 9 qearch for jobs in aynore
plficient maniier {han that alloweed Y raditional means. For reciuiers, it provides access 103
jarge 2udiente phioh candidates at very significant cost SEVINGS relative 1o prind rryedia and with
gignificant funttisnality henefits.

The Australish and New Fanland onking eraployrnent rrarket nas experienced very sirond
growih in P Last Dwa yeais with an increase i Lotal revenye of appmx%r.'naiely 45% in the pasl
yeal alone. SEEK has been 4t the torefront ol this growlh and has posablished 8 rnarket leading

wrand with @ sirong rnarkat position.

These INGUSTY dynarnics and business Sitributes Nave regulted in GEEK achieving & sirond
financial position. We expect 10 generate revenue of $30 raillion and FRITDA of $40 reilling i
e year ending 30 June 2006 and nave farecast a il franked Gividend yield of 3.6% for this
perind fhased on the eoidpoint of the indicative Ingtituetionat Baokbuild Price b angel.

SEEW IS @ nigh argin bUEIness with slrong growth prospects. it hag strang cash flow
gr:emzs.’ia‘n%r.m tapabiﬁlities anit @ dabt-free Doante

Under the Prospectus, SEEHK i offering 3 emirnurn of 4734 rridion Shares, aned & rmaxiimirn
of 139 4 roiliinn Shares, Upon Listing, SEEK apticipates faving & rnarkel capitatigation of
appmmmmew GR60 rnition hased wpon the raid-point of the indicalive Inglifutinnat Bookbuild
Price Range pf 5180 K $72.20 per share. Funds rased wiil targety be uged to fund the
Buy-Batk of Shares rom cerinin Existing Spareholders a% welt a6 providing SERK wilh

greater firanciat Aeibility to pursue growth esppesrn.mi.tireta.

This Prospet
§

inyesirnent o

16 Cortalns detaited information about nd about the rigks of a0
shis fype and | encourage you 1o read it in ful

i ok torward Lo erelpnring you fo the SEEK Farnily
=] M

Yours sincerely

Jarnes Packer
Chalrmnas
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Rafer to Sections & and 7 for reoze detailed financial infarmation -~
wd o @ discussion of the risi factors affecting the Forecasts and
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seek Ausiralia’s #1 job site

. . . . FOR ADVERTISERS
| SEEK | SEEK EXECUTIVE | SEEKIT | POST JOBS HERE

“ PUT YOUR NAME UP IN LIGHTS
PLACE YOUR RESUME ON SEEK +priyacy options

e ADVERTISERS SEARCHING FOR YOU NOW CLICK HERE  avallable












1.1 BUSINESS OVERVIEW

SEEK was eslablished in 1997
and is today the leading enline
employment site in Australia and
New Zealand.

SEEK provides the fargest
ermgloyrment markelplace in
Ausiratia and New Zeatand for
jobseskers and recruiters, SEEK
currently has around 10,080
custormers per manth which
inciude recruitment agencies,
larye corporates, gevernmesnt
depariments and smail and
medium enterprises [SMEs]. SEEK
has operations in Austr'alia, Blaw
Zeatand and the United Kingdom.

SEEK has enjeyed significant

growth in recent years. This growth

is forecast o continue with SEEK
expecting to generate revanug of
£94 million and EBITDA of
‘:";é{': rillion for the year anding

& June 2006, These figures
exclude any non-crganic growih

opportuznities that may arse,

4,

1.2 KEY INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS

1201 Attractive industry prospecis
Strong growth cuilook for oniine
amployment classifieds relative Lo

tracitional pring classifieds.

Oniine classifieds have several
clear advantages over tradiional

print classifieds including:

- Advertizer benefits
- Quicker hiring times
- Cheaper
~ Mare flexible
- Access te a wider pool of
candidaies
- Jobseaker benefits
- Easy to search
~ Easy to read and research with
mare delail availabla
~ Easy te apply
~ Easy to recewe relevant
sdvertisements, evan when
nel actively jobseeking

These factors have {ueilad

significant growth in internet job
advertising during a periog when
erint job advertising has
experienced minimai growth. in
addiien, online Jek advertising
has expanded the averail job
advertiserment markel (by number
of advertisementsl, by improving
accessibitity and afer'dability fnr
srnalier organisation

A& ngmber of macre factors are also
likely to have 2 posdive lang term
structural a.mpac.l on the ovarall
employment advertising markel:

- An ageing population. Chiznges in
the number of people of working
a{j affect the overall size of the
potential employrment peol, Tha
(,hd ton the following page
hightights that the percentage of
the Austral:an populatien that s
of working age is expected to
decline over time. This is being
driven by several factors
including the baby boomear
generation moving te retirernent
sge and a long term decline in
the Brth rate. As 2 resull, the nat
increase in the workforoe is



expected to decling from its
currant leval of arewnd 180,000
per ansum te 19,080 per' annum
between 2020-2030. This decline
in the growth of the wcz"k{'orce
increases the competition for
job candidates. SEEK prﬂvidef'
Australian and New Zealand
businessas with access o the
largest peol of job candidates and
is therefore weall placed to take
advantage of this dynamic.

Figure 1.1

tal popidalion working

- A focus on human capital and an

increasingly white-collar
workforce. It is recognised
that there iz an increasing
understanding amongst
companies that the guality of
human capdal represents 3
sigaificant seurce of competitive
advantage. In fine with this,
racruilment expendilure as a
propertion of sales amongst
Au_—,l Alian companies has
increased in recent years,

s, Access Econarnics

in addition, Australia is an
imcrezsngly knowiedge -hzsed
economy with an increasing
proportios of white-collar
workers, This type of workloree
has a higher preference for
nniine jehsearching, ;}reviffiﬁg a
supporting dynamic for SEEK and
the broader online employmsant
classifieds market.

1.2.2 Attractive business
characieristics

Clear No.1 in entine job classifieds
SEEK is the clear markat leader in
online job classifieds with greater
than £0% market share in Austraiis
and New Zeatand by ravenue,
SEEK is the singie biggest source
of jobsesker candidales in Ausir
and New Zeatand and mare
advertisers pay ta plac
advertisements on JI'_EK than any
other employment classifisds
nawspaper or website in Australia
and MNeaw Zeaiand. The vast majority
of the leading recruitment firme
are SEEK customers and SEER's
{3efsetraticﬁ armang Top 580
carporaies is mors than five times
that of its nearest compelitor, Ovar
Ihe past thrae years, SEEK has

15,



Figure 1.2

Market Penetration Amongst Large Companies

Saurce: P

consalidated iz leading position,
increasing its utilisation among
Ausiraiia and New Zealand's

leading companies while use of ifs
compelitors’ servicas has remained

r'ela!:zvely flat

A clear growth strategy
SEEK has numerous altractive
growth prospects including:

-~ Growing advertisement volumes:

SEEK has the opportusity to
substantially increase s
peneiration in industries such
as heailhcare and aducstion to

6.
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tavels that match the penetration
that SEEK has schisved in
industries such as acceunting,

[T and adrministration.
Geographically, SEEK sees
sigpiticant petential in replicating
the marketl share it has achievet
in markets such as Melhourns,
Sydney and Aucklznd in other

capital cities and regional areas.

- Browing Yield: SEEK believes

that its advartizement Yield will
improve as it centinues te attract
more candidates. Average Yields
are also forecast o increase

giver SMEs are both SEEK's
highest Yielding and fastest
growing customer segment.
Finally, the cost to the advertiser
per [ai candidate delivered
pniing is substantally lower
than in prent,

- New and improved products:

SEEK is continually developing
new job-reiated products which
are attractive to both jobseckers
and advertisers, These include
irmprovad searching and
matching technologies to attract
mare jobseekars as well as ways
for qdverh;er‘ o screen and
respond o candidate
applications, search candidate
resurme datshaszes and promete
thair brand more effactively o
jebseekars,

- Other growth opportunities:

SEEK is pursuing an active
growlh siralegy in the training
market, Other potential grewth
ppportusities include farther
expansion internationally.

SEEK's gf‘Jv-JtI'ﬁ may be affected by

the risk fzctors ouliined i Section 7.
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Attractive business model
SEEK's business medet has 3
number of stvantages including;

1] Barriers to entry.

- Virtuous cycle of existing
market position: SEEK's
markel leading positien is
reinfarced by the fact that
johseekers want to access i
widest range of jobs while
recraiters wanl to reach the
largest pool of petential
andidates, SEEK delivers
this to the market. Its leading
pasition is therefore
seli-parpetuating and creates
a natural Rarrier 1o entry for
cempetitors.

- Existing sales relationships:
SEEH has z2n extensive salas
force whe have besn able fo
eslabiizh strong relationships
with a wide range of
recruilment agencies who are
the major customears of anline
job beards.

o

- SEEK's brand is

ane ol its key
business geseis. Accardizzg} to
Newspoll research in January
and February 2005, SEEK has
beitt & total brand awareness
nf 62% among aduits aged 18
years and over in Sydney,
’\Aebﬁurne Brisbane, Adelside
and Perth. Enhancing this
strong brand awareness are
SEEK's exclusive career
content provides” distrisation
sgreements with l2ading
portals such 25 ninemsn,
OptusNet and XiraMSN,

. c'EK has fur'ther' f'emented

[mn
jobseekers, approximately
nne-third of whoem receive 2
daily ernail of jobs matching
their search criferia.

datzbase of 1‘4 f

2}Scalahility. SEEX's business is

nighly scalable with retatively low
sital expendilure reguirements
and an eperating piatform that
can deliver large nombers of
additional advertisaments st a
fow Incremental cost.

3}Management and staff, SEEXs
founders have created the :
leader while facing substantial
competition from large existing
competitars, Al of the
founders rermnain as part ol a
brozdly-skilled execulive team
which has low turnover and
strong aguity incentives, More
hiroadly, W employees ars
highly-motivated and SEEK is
recogrised as ene of Australiz's
best employers.

4}0nline-only focus. SEEK's online
achivilies are nol constrained by a
need to protect axisting pring
revenyes,

SEEK operates in a competitive
markel and its business may be
affected by the risk faclors outlined
in Section 7.

7.
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1.2.3 Strong financial positicn

- SEEK i= a high margin business
forecasting revenuge of
00 million and EBITDA of
$L0 mitlion in FY2004 [EBITDA
margin of 44%);

- SEEK has a debt-free capital
structure with & forecast nel cash
balance of $47 million as a2
30 June 2005, that will e able
i sepport its future growth
siraleqgy,

- SEEK's business reguires
relatively low levels of ongeing
cazpitat expenditure; and

- GEEK has strong cash flow
generation, thereby allowing
porentially signiticant
distributions to shareholders.

*

Refer to Sections & and 7

for maore detgiled financial
information and for a discussion
of the risk factors affecting the
Foracasts and the assumptions
on which they are hased.

18.

Figure 1.3
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1.3 DIVIDEND POLICY
Subiect to the achisvement of the Forecasts z2nd other relevant lzciors, t

he
Board expects to declare the {silowing dwidends. It is anlicipatad thal these
dividends will be fuily franked in Australia.

Finai divi
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The Board currantly intends to
distribute between 60% and 75%
nf net prefit after tax [pre geodwill
amortisation] and to frank
dividends lo the greatest extent
passible, Mo guarantee can be
givan about the payrment of
dividends, the level of ranking of
such dividends or the extent of
payout raties for FY20805 and
Y2006 or for any future pericd.
These matters depend upon SEEK s
ture profits, and its Fnanciat and
taxation position al the lime.

1.4 DESCRIPTION OF THE OFFER

Under the Offer, a minimum of
£3.4 miilion Shares and a
maximum of 1394 million Shares
wili be offered, However, as al the
date of thes Progpectus, SEEX
expects the Offer Lo be betwean 75
millien and 85 mitlion Shares [see
Section 2.3 for further deiziis in
relation to the varisbilily of Lhe
Offer sizal.

The Qffer comprises:

« the Retail Offer, which will
consist of the Broker Firmn Gifer
and the Priority Offer. No Shares

=)

1
S
e

e

S

are being oHered to the general
sublic; 2nd
- the institutiensl Offar, which

consials of an invitation to dd for

Shares made Lo Institutionat
Irvestors in Australiz and New
Zealand as weli gz nstitutions in
ofber selected junisdic

0Ns.

The allzcation of Shares between
the Retail CHer and the
Institutional Offer will be
determined by SEEK and the
Lead Manager.

Al Shares being offered urder this
Frospectus wili rank equally with
each other and with existing

Shares.

As noted in Section 2.4, Paul
Bassat, Andrew Bassat and
Matthew Rockman confirs that
their respactive entities wiil not
dispose of or etherwize deal in any
Shares that they hold immedialety
foliowing the Dffer, until SEEK has
reporied its avdiled Bnancial
resuils for FY2086, except in order
te accepd a takeover bid or
participate in & schame of
arrangement proposed in
accordance with the reguirements

of the Carperalions Act. No other
Existing Shareholder has given a
sirnifar confrmaticn.

1.5 PURPOSE OF THE OFFER

The purpose of the Offer is o
allowns:

- certain Exsting Shareholders to
realise part or all of thair
irvestment in SEEK and to fund
the Emplayes Option Buy-Back;

- SEEK to achieve Listing, thereby
broadening its shareholder base
snd providing a liguid market for
Shares in SEEK;

- GEEK to finance future growth
npportusities; and

- SEEK to take advantage of the
brozder business benefits of
imcreased visibilily and increased
aooess o capilai which arises
frorn being a listed entity,

The total gross preceeds of the
Cler are expected Lo be betwesn
approximately 158 and

170 million [based an the
ravid-peint of the Indicative
Institutional Bookbuild Price
Rangel. The gross preceeds of the
Cler, less an amount to cover the

19.



cosis of the Offer 2nd the Employes
Option Buy-Back, wiil targely

be paid to certain Existing
Shareholders under the Buy-Back,
wizh the balance (appreximalely
$11.5 millien] retained by SEEK in
prijer to fund its statad husiness
nhjectives.

1.6 RISK CONSIDERATIONS

Az owith any invesiment in the slock
market, an investment in SEEK is
subject ' a number of risks, The
price of the Shares may fail as
well a5 rise. A nurnber of key risk
factors which prospective
applicants should be aware of are
described in Section 7. Seme are
general risks, while others are
risks specific o an invesiment @n
SEEK, All of these risks may
impacl SEEK s future performance
and many are ouiside the control of
SEEK and its Cirectors and cannol
be miligated.

4.

Frior to agplying for Shares,
prospecive applcanis shoeld read
carefully the antire Prospecius znd,
in particular, should consider the
assumptions underlying the
foracast financial information and
the risk faclors thal couid affect
the future financizl perfermance

of SEEX.

1.7 HOW TO APPLY FOR SHARES

Cetails on how to apply for Shares
are centained in Section 2 of this
Frospectus. 1 you have any
gueslions abaut how to nves! in
SEEX you should contact your
stockbroker, soliciter, accountant
ar ethar indepandent financial
adviser,

1.8 ENQUIRIES

Al enguiries in refation te this
Frospectus sheuld be directed to
the SEEK Offer information Line on
1300131 262 [+613 415 4244 for
internationat callerst dering the
Qfter Period.






7.

2.1 DESCRIFTION OF THE OFFER

The maximurn number of New Shares te be oftered under this Prospectus is
1294 million. The final nurmber of New Shares to be elfered will be depandant
on the particigation of Existing Shareholders in the Buy-Back which SEEK
undertaking cencurrently with the Clifer {see below and Sectiens 2.3 and 9.3
for mere detail on the Offer proceeds and the Buy-Back]. Basad on current
expectations regarding participation in the Buy-Back, SEEK believes the
number of New Shares to be ofterad wilt most likely be between 75 and 85
miltion resulting in an offer size of hebween $150 million and $172 miltion
[Rased on tha mid-point of the Indicative Institutional Boekbuild Price Rangel,

AY Shares heing offered under this PJ p' ctus will rank equaslly with gach
nther and will rank equally with existing Shar

The nurnber of Shares o issue at Listing wifl be approximately 2882 miflion.
2.2 PURPOSE OF THE OFFER

The purpose of the Offer is te allow:

- cerisin Existing Shareholders 1o realise part or all of their invesiment in
SEEX and to fund the Emplayes Option Buy-Back;

-« SEE® to achieve Listing, broaden #1s sharehelder base and provide s Hyuid
market for Shares in SEEK;

-« SEEX to Enance tuture growth sppertenities; and

- SEEK Lo take advantage of the brozder business benefils of increzsed
visibility and increzsed access o capital which arises from being a listed
2ntily.

2.3 OFFER PROCEEDS

The pmceedf' of the GHer from the issue of New Sharas will [az‘qely be used Lo
fund the Bay-Back of Shares frorm certain Existing Sharehoiders

Appreximately $2% millien of the amount from the issue of New Shares will be
retaingd by SEEK. OF this amount, Gpprox imately $6.8 million will be :,"d te
fund the costs of the Dffer, and zpproximately $6.7 million is expecied o be
used to fund the Employes Option Buy-Back, with the remainder Lo be
retained for working capital and feture growth eppertunities. The batance of
the proceeds of the Oifer wifl e used to fund the Buy-Back of axisting Shares.




Table 2.1 Sources and Uses of Funds

S
$5e.8

Buy-Back of existing Shares™ $41.8
Net new funds 525

Net new funds 525

Employee Cplion Buy-Back™ 6.7

Costs asseciated with the Offer® 6.8
Net sdditional funds available to support fuiure growth $11.5

ate ol Lhe amounl ol Tands

ce Range and on SEEX s current esti

Range and on SEER s current expeclations regarding the sie of

Under the Buy-Back, SEEK is effering to buy back up to 100% of each Existing
Sharehelder’s holding up to a total of 126.% million Shares. If acceptances
under the Buy-Back are greater than 126.9 million Shares 2 pro rata scale-
hack wifl e applied te Existing Sharehoiders that participate :n the Buy-Back.
The Buy-Back Offer is te be made concurrently with the lodgement of this
Prospectys and will rermain open ustil 4 April 2805 at which lisme Existing
Sharehelders need 1o have notilied SEEK af their leval of particigation in the
Huy-Back. Ar this time SEEK will know the number of Shares which it will be
required to bay-back. For each Share bought back, SEEK witl issue a Mew
Share gursuant to this Prospectus. The total number of New Shares izsued

li thereiore depend on the tevel of participation by Existing Shareholders in
the Buy-Back amd will net be known sntil 4 April 2008,

gt

The nurnber of New Shares will, howsver, not be more than 1394 million
Shares - being the maximum Buy-Back size plus 12,5 million Shares being
issued by SEEK Lo raise $2% million tbased on the mid-peint of the Indicative
nslitutional Bookbuild Price Rangel. In the evant that the number of Shares to
be bhought back is below 30.9 million, SEEK has determined that it will not
procesed with the Gier or the Bay-Back, However, as neted below, a number of
Existing Shareholders have either agreed Lo sell or indicated that it is their
current intention Lo sell not fess than approximalely 82 millien Shares in
sogregate into the Buy-Back. In the event the Final Price is less than $1.80
[i.2. below he Indicztive Institutionai Beokhoiid Price Harsge], Existing
Sharehelders participating in the Buy-Back will have the opportusity in the

£8 fours fellowing being notified of the Final Price to withdraw or amend their
levei of participation. Full details reqarding the Buy-Back are provided in
Section 9.3

23.



Table 2.2

%’f‘r* 2 /;xﬁ’g ’ygn?:}
Broker Firm OHar opens {9 03am AEST)

Broker Firm OHer closes [5.00pm AESY] il 2058
Priority Offer opens [¢.00am AEST] 4 April 2085
Priority Offer closes {5 083pm AEST) il 2075
Institutional Offer epens 19.03am AEST T4 April 2085
institutionsl Offer closes [5.03pm AEST) 15 April 2045
Final Price and basis of Share allocation anneunced 18 April 20435
Shares sxpected to commence rading on ASX on a deferred settlement bazis 18 April 20438
Retail and Institetional settlemeant 271 April 2085
Expected dispaich of transaction confirmation statements 21 April 2005

to comnmence rading on ASX on a normal settlermnent basis 27 April 2085

[2] The

(3] Irivesl

4]
Az at the dale of this f—"rooper_tus ctﬂr'ta"n Existing Shar'eholder'" hiave agreed Lo sell in aggregste not less than
approximaiely 32 4 million Shares into the Buy-Back, These Shareholders inciude:

- IPR Narminges Ply Lid, an entity associated with lrvin Rockman, which has agraed to sell not less than 10.3 miliion
Shares into the Buy-Back; and

-~ the Macguarie Technology Funds which have agreed to sell all of their 10.4 million Shares into the Buy-Back.

in addition, as 3t the date of this Prospectus, the following Exisling Shareholders have nel signed agreements to sell

Shares into the Buy-Back, but have instead consented to the insertion of the following statermnents in the Prospectus
regarding their participation in the Buy-Back:

- Metharlane Py Ltd, an entity associated with Pacl Bassat, will sell 7.2 million Shares into the Buy-Back;

- Kiteford Ply Ltd, 2n entily associaled with Andrew Bazsal, will ;ell 7.2 million Shzres into the Buy-Back,

- Jonstead Pty Ltd, an entity asseciated with Matthew Beckman, will sell 10,8 million Shares into the Buy-Back; and

- Gateford Way Py Ltd, an entity 2ssociated with Bob Watson and Bob, in respact o 'E'he Shares beld by him
parsonally, will selt 4.% million Shares {in aggregate! into the Buy-Back.

Yahoo! Inc. holds 145 mitlion Shares a3 3! the date of this Prospectus. SEEX befievas that Yahoo! Inc. iz lkely to be a
short-term holder of its Shares.

2.4 SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

The <'h' rehelding structure of SEEK immediately prier to and following completion of the Offer and the Buy-Back
baser ‘3 {-_K supeciations as al the date 0{' this Prospectus, is set cut in table 2.3 on page 25,

Paul Bassat, Andrew Bassat and Matthew Rockman conbirm thal their respective entities will not dispese el or
ntherwize deal in any Shares thal they hold immediately following the GHer, untit SEEK has reported its audited
financiel resulls for FY2006, excepl in order to accepl a takeover bid or participate in a scheme of arrangement
proposed in accerdance with the reguirements of the Corperations Act. No other Existing Sharehiolder has given s
sirmilar confirmation,

2.5 OFFER PRICING

The Final Price for the Shares elfered under this Prospecius will be determined by way of an Instiutionat Beekbuild,

fie Board in censcliation with the Lead Manager, Macquarie Equity Capital Markets Limited, wiil set the Final Price
st the and of the bookbuild process which ks c.urrehi‘ly expec.lcd te occur on 18 April 200%,

24,



Table 2.3 -~ SEEK Shareholding Structure immediately prior to and following completion of the Offer and the
Buy-Back, kased on SEEK's expectations as at the date of this Prospecius is as follows:

P S s : % Y
. . . 7

Windfyr ®
Co-iounders™ 5.6 24 5% 407 14.5% &
PR Neminges Pty L™ 253 A 14.0 ®
Yahoo! Ing 145 14.5 520 ®
Instanz Norminees Pty Lid® 1.7 1.7 4.2%: ®
Entilies assecisted with Boi Walson 12.8 4 8% 7.9 7 8% ®
Macquarie Technology Funds 10.4 3.9% 0 (7% ®

Other Existing Shareholdes 41.6 23.0% 395495 140% - 30

New Shargholders purseant to the Qffer - g08 708 288% -

Total 28T 100% 280.2

(3] An

(4] &y enliby as

[E] Inelode

o o lhe Giiern

ely 1o e shorl leres hoider of ils Sh

Az indicative Institutienal Bookbuild Price Range of $1.80 to $2.20 per Share has been established. SEEK, in

consullation with the Lead Manager, resarves the right to zet the Final Price above, elow or within the Indicative
institutional Bookbuidd Price Range. The indicative Instituticnal Bookbuild Price Range may be varied by SEER in
consullation with the Lead Manager at any time.

Fi

Succesahul Applicants in both the Institutional Oifer and the Setail Glfer will pay the Final Price.

in determining the Final Price, SEEK will, amongst other things, have regard te the desire for an orderly secondary
markel in the Shares of SEEK and the creatien of 3 long-term Shareholder kase,

No brokerage or starep duty s payzable by either successful Applicants under the Retail Ofer or bidders under the
Institutionzl Offer.

2.6 OFFER STRUCTURE
The Qffer is structured in bwo parts:

- the Retail Offer, which will censist of the Broker Firm Offer and the Priority Offer. Mo Shares are being offered to
the general pubiic; and

- the Institutionad Offer, which consists of an invitation o bid for Shares made to nstitutional investors in Ausiraiia
and New Zealand, as well a2 institutiens in ether selactad jurisdictions.

he Lead Manager, in consultation with SEEK, will delermine the aliocation of Shares between the Retail Offer and
the Institutional Offer

A3l Shares offerad for sale under this Prospectus rank aquslly with each other and with existing Shares.

The Offer will not be underwritten. SEEK znd the Lead Manager have entered intp an CHer Management Agresment
in respect of the management of the Retail Offer and the Institutional Gifer. The Offar Management Agreement sets
nut a number of circurnsiances under which the Lead Manager may terminate that agreement. A surnmary of cerfain
termns of this agreement, including the termination provisions, is sef out in Seclion 9.9,

2%,
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2.6.7 The Retail Offer

Wheo Can Apply for Shares Under the Retail Offer?

The Retail Ofter is apen to certain rataid inveslors, being those investors that
apply under the Broker Firm Clfer and the Pricrity Offer [which include
Eligible Employess and Exisling Shareholders of SEEK] and who have a
registered address in Austratiz or New Zealand. The Retzil Clfer opens at

& 00am AEST on 4 Aprit 2005 and closes at 5.00pm AEST on 13 April 2005 in
respect of the Priority Offer, and 5.80pm AEST on 15 April 2805 in respect of
the Broker Firm Offer.

Broker Firm Offer

The Broker Firm Offer is open enly to Australian and New Zezland resident
retail investers who have received a firm allocation froms their broker, In crder
1o recaive their firm allocation, applicants under the Broker Firm GHer rust
lodge their Application Ferms and Application Monies with their broker, in
accordance with ther broker's directions, H you elect to parlicipate in the
Broker Firrn Cer, your broker witl act as your agent in submitting your
Application and Application Monies to the Registry [which receivas them on
behatl of SEEK]. It will be your broker's respensibifity to ensure Applications
are received by the Registry by the Closing Date. SEEK, the Registry and the
Lead Manager accept ne responsibility for any acts or omissions by your
brokes in conneclion with your Applicatior, Application Form or Application
Monies,

Priarity Cffer

The Priority GHer is being extended to Eligible Employees and Existing
Sharehelders of SEEX and certain ather individuals as identifiad by SEEK,
The structure of these CHers s summarised balow.

Ernployes Offer

Eligible Employees of SEEK ars each being offered up to $10,800 worth of
Shares. If you are an Eligible Employes and wish to apply for Shares, you must
compiete the Applicatien Form accompanying this Prosgecius to receive your
priosity allocation.

Existing Shareholder Offer
Existing Sharehelders of SEEX {axcluding Windfyr} that do net participate in

threugh the GHer Exisling Shareholders can apply for up te 10% of the
number of Shares they currently hold up to & maximum of $100,080, subject o
& total aliocation for atll Existing Shareholders lexciuding Windfyr] of $2.5
rmiliios. in the event that Existing Shareholders in aggregate apply for greater
than $2.5 million worth of Shares a pro rata scale back will be applied o sl
Existing Sharehelders participating under the Existing Sharehelder Offer

Publishing and Brosdeasting Limited

Windfyr, a wholly owned subsidiary of Publishing and Breadcasting Limited
(PBLL is SEEK s largest shareholder and is strongly supportive of the SEEX
business, #BL is a leng-ferm cormmitted sharehoider in SEEK. Windfyr hag

besn guzranteed an aliocation of approximately £.2 million Shares thased on
the mid-point of the Indicative Institutional Boakbuild Price Range! as part of

P

the Offer. This zllocation has been granted to Windfyr so that it will held 25.0%
of SEEK following the Cler. Windiyr held 25.0% of SEEK at the time that it
initially invested in SEEK in Coteber 2003 and is being offered th 5

s Shares so
53 to restore its holding te that tevel Windfyr will pay the Final Price for each
Share i receives under the Offer



How to Apply for Shares in the Retail CHer

To apply for Shares under the Retail Glfer vou must complate the Application
Form accermnpanying this Prospectus in accordance with the instructions o thal
form. Applicants under the Existing Shareholder and Eligible Employes Clers
will receive a personalized Application Form detaiding their entitlernent
Applicants are required to neminate the Australian dellar amoont they wish to
irvest in the Retail f‘["—"f' Applicants whose Applications are accepted in full will
receive the number of Shares calculated by dividing the Application Monies by
the Final Price. Where the Final Price dees not divide e\-enly into the Application
Monigs, the number of Shares 1o be allocated will Be rounded down to the
nearest whole number of Shares, |n this circumstance, rounding monies will not
be returned to Applicanis but wilt be donaled by SEEK Lo 5 charilable
prganisation selected by the Board,

Applications must be for a minimurn ameunt of $2.080 Applications in excess
of the minimurm ameant must be in multiples of $500.

There is no maxirnurm ameunt which may be applied fer under the Retail Offer,
However, SEEK and the Lead Manaqef reserve the right te treal applications
in excess of 500,800 as part of the Institutionat Offer and such applications
shall be deerned to be hids at the Final Prics for the purpnses of the
institwtionsl Bookbuild,

;&g}ﬂlicat"onf' may be msde, and will enly be accepied, on the Application Form
ornpanying this Prospectus. The Application Forrm must be completed in
secordance with the instractions sal out on the back of the Application Form,

The Applicatien Form must be sccompanied by a chequels] or bank draft(s] in
Avstratian dollars drawn on an Austratizn branch of an Austratian bank for the
valug ef the Shares for which appiication s made, All chaques musl be made
payable te SEEK Limited Share GHer and crossed net negotiable’, or for
Hroker Firm Applicants, in accerdance with the instrections of your broker

Sufficient clearad funds must be held in your account a5 chegues returned
unpaid may not be re-presented and may result in your Application being
rejected,

Comgleted Application Forms, logether with the cheguels] or bank draftis] for
the Application Manigs, shoold be.

- for Broker Firmm Applicants - returned to the broker frem whom yeo recsived
your Broker Firm Glier aliocation of Shares in accordance with their
instructions; or

- for all ether Appicants wi the Retail Ofter - mailed or defiverad o the
Registry at the address shown below,

Hy mail:
Corﬂﬂu“rsl'mre Invesior Services [Pty Limitad
GO Box %2, Meli:corne, VIC 8040

For delivery:
Computershars Invastor Services Py Limitad
£57 Johnston Stresl, Abbotsford, VIC 3087

Regardiess of the methed of ledgement, ail Applif':ationf' under the Retail Offer
must e received by the Registry by no later than 5.00pm AEST o the Closing
27.
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You shouid read this Prospectus in its entirety before deciding whether to
compiete snd lodge an Applicatior Form.

Acceptance of Applications

An Application constitutes an offer te acquire Shares on the terms and
conditinns set out in this Prospectus. The Lead Manager, in consuliation with
SEEK, reserves the right to:

-« reject any Application in the Retail Offer, including but not lmited o
AppHcations that have been incorrectly cornpleted, or are accempaniad by
chegues thal ara dishoneurad or have nel ¢ [em 2d by the close of the Oifer;
and

« reject or aguregate Applications which appear to be multiple Applizations by
the =ame party.

fan Application is rejected or accepted in part only, the relevant part of the
;f\; slication Monies will he refunded. No interast will be paid on any
Application Monies refunded,

Altocation Policy

The Lezd Manager, in consuliation with SEEK, has absolute discretion
regarding allocation of Shares to the Applicants in the Retail Offer and may
reject any Application, or allocate fawer Sharaes than applied for, at their
shzolute discretion. Applications may aizo be subject to scale-back and, thare
may be a ditferent application of the scale-back policy o each of these
Applicants.

Refunds and Dealing with Application Monies
Aoplication Monies will be banked in a separate special purpose zccounl untit
the allotment of Shares. The account will be established and kepl by SEEK,

Atter the Shares have heen ailotted the Application Monies will be paid o
SEEK under this Prospecius,

Application Monies will be fully or partially refended where:

« an Application is rejecled or acceptad in part only; or
« the Clfer s withdrawn and/or canceliad,

Nointerast will be paid on any Application Monigs refunded, SEEK will be
entitled fo receive any interast earned from the Application Monies.

2.6.2 institutional Offer
The Lead Manager may invide certain institutions to participate in the GHer,
The Institutional Offer is open te Australian and New Zealand institotions, as
web zz malitutions in ether selectad jurisdictions. The Instdutionat Offer opens
§.80z2m AEST on 34 Aprit 2005 and cleses at 5.80pm on 15 Agril 2005, The
é_ead Mznager, in consuitation with SEEK, reserves the right te vary these
dates witheut notice. Application procadures for the Institutional Offer will ba
sdvised by the Lead Manager.

The allocation of Shares armengst Applicants in the Institutional Offer will be
determined by the Lead Manager, in consuitation with SEEK. Thare is no
sssurance that any Applicant will be allozated any Sharas or the number of
Sharas for which they have applisd,



2.7 ASX LISTING

SEER will apply within seven days alter the date of this Prospecius for
admission to the official list of ASK and quotation of the Shares on ASX. Al
contracts lormed on acceptance of Applications under the Ratail Offer and
bids in the Institutinnal Offer will be conditienal on the quotation of the Shares
pn ASK, H the Shares are nob admitied o guolation within thres mo:"t 15 after
the date of this Prospectus, Application Monies will e refunded to ¥

Applicant a3 soen a5 practicable [without interest],

s gxpacted that the Shares will be issued o successiul Appiicants on 1%
April 2005, with delerred settlement trading ef the Shares commencing en
ASK on 18 Aprit 2005 Nermat settiement trading of Shares is expectad to
commence on ar abost 27 Aprit 2005,

2.8 CHESS AMD HOLDING STATEMENTS

SEEK will apply to participate in CHESS, and, in accordance with the Listing
vles and the ASTC Settlerment Rutes, witl mainlain an electronic issuer-
sg}mssored sub-register and CHESS sub-register

;];}

Foliowing the issue of Shares to successful Applicants, Sharehetders will be
senl trassaction conbirmation statements thal set out thc nurmber of Shares
which they have heen allocated. Transaction confirmation statements are
expecied to be dispatched on 21 April 200%,

This staternent will document a Shareholder's Holder ddentification Number

[for CHESS holdings] ar the Security Holder Reference Number for [ssuer

Sponsored holders

s the responsibility of Applicants to determine their allocation prior o

trading Shares. Shareholders witl receive subsequent holding statements
showing changes te their Shareholding in SEEK. No Share certilicales

issued.

2.9 DEFERRED SETTLEMENT TRADING

s expected that trading of ‘«!.Hrh_ on ASX will commence on a deferrec
setitement basis on or about 18 Aprit 2805, Deferred selllement trading witl
continue unil three business days {n ovumg fispatch of fransaciion
confirmation statements on or zbout 21 April 2084, 1T is expected that trading
on & normasl sattlernent basis will commence on 27 April 2004,

You are respensible for confirming you" aliocatien of Shares beltors trading in
the Shares. If you seli Shares before recedving conbrmatien of your sliocation,
you de so st your own risk,

You may call the SEEK Offer information Line during business hours en 1300
131 262 fAustralial to obtain infarmation in relation to vour ailocation,

‘:&EK the Registry and the Lead Manager disclaim all Lizbility, whether in

egtigence or atherwise, o persons who frade Shares befere receiving their
irnl al transaction conbirmation siatement, whether en the basis of a
confirmmation of allocation provided by SEEK or atherwise

9.
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2.10 TAXATION

The Australian taxation consequences of any investment iz Shares will depeand
upan the investor's particuiar circumnslances. H s your obligation to make your
DWW engairies concerning the faxation conseguences of an investrmant in
SEER. If yeu are in deubt as te the course you should foliow, yeo should
consull your stockbroker, lawyer, accountant or other professionzl adviser

2.11 OVERSEAS INVESTORS

Mo action bas besn taken to registar or qualify the Shares or the Cifer, or
ntherwize to permit a public effering of the Shares, in any jurisdiction outside
Avstrata and New Zealand.

¥ s the responsibility of investars to obizin 2l necessary 2pprovals in the
jurisdictions in which they reside for the application for Shares pursuant to
this Prespectus, This Prospectus does nel constitute an offer or invitation in
any place inwhich, or to any persen to whom, i@ weuld not be lawlui o make
such an offer or invitation. The distribetion of thes Prospectus in jurisdictions
putside Australia and New Zealand may be restricted by law and persons who
come into pessession of this Prospectus should seek advice on and observa
any such restrictions. Any failure o comgly with such restrictions may
constitute a violation ol applicable securilies laws, [Uis the responsibility of
any Applicants who are citizens or residents of jurisdictions outside Australia
and New Zesland 1o ensure comgliance with all iaws of any jurisdiction which
sre relevant to their Appliczatiens. In submitting an Application Form, 2n
Appdicant wilt be representing and warranting that it is doing so legatly and
netin breach of any 2ppliczble law in any jurisdiction relevant to the Applizant.

2.12 RIGHT TO VARY OR WITHDRAW OFFER

The Lead Manager, in consultation with SEEK, has the right To vary any of the
dates sef cut in the Prospectus refaling to the Offer, without notice te any
recipient of the Prospectus or any Applicant. This includes, although s not
limited o, varying the length of the Offer Feriod.

The Lesd Manager, either in consuliation with SEEK cr via termination of the
Offer Manayement Agresment, may terminate the GHer, in which case all
Application Monies will be returnad [withous interest] to the respective
Applicants.

2.13 ENGQUIRIES

¥ you require assistance to complate the Application Form or reguire
sdditional copies of this Prospectus, you should contact the SEEK Offer
Information Line on 1320 131 262 [«413 %418 4244 for international callers]
during the Gffer Pering.

Hyou are unclear in refation te any matter or 2re uncertain as to whether
SEEK iz a suitable investment for you, you should seek professionzl advice

from your stockbroker, iawyer, accountant or other profassional adviser
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3.1 BACKGROUND

The employment classifieds industry comprises two main seclors; the pring
media sector 2nd the online sector, SEEK s core busingss operates exclusively
in the Acstratizn and New Zealand onling employment classifieds sector
SEEK alzo has 2 niche online employment classifieds presence in the United
Kingdor and operates in the 1T training rarket in Ausiralia and New Zealand.

Onling employment classilieds first appeared in the USA in the sarly 1990s,

leveraging the popularity and growth of the internet. Prior to the evolution of
the enline sactor, the employment classifieds industry was a mature sector

with print media providing the primary ferem for employment advertising.

The ernergence of the internet has substantially changed the industry by
sliowing advertizers to source job candidates mors quickly and cheaply than
threugh the print media channel, As highlighted in recant markel research
commizsioned by SEEK and conducted by Newspoll, an increasing propertion
of jolrseekers choose to look for jobs online. The range of johs offered as well
as speed and convenience advantages has resuited in an ongoing strzciursl
shift in the employmeant advertising market with sorme early adopter
industries, such a5 accounting and IT, now predominantly using enline and
many others conlinuing te move online,

SEEK eslimates that the Australian and New Zealand emgloyment classified
sector will have annual revenues of approximately 5670 million for the year

ending 30 June 2008, with approximately $375 million of this being spent in

print mediz forums and apgroximately $95 million in anline forums. However

SEEK expecis that

-« the online segrent witl continue to win significant market share from the
print media seclor; and

-« future growth in the industey witl be captured predominantly Ly anline
participanis.

Fuelling this growth is the online industry's sign:ficant cost and functionality

svantsoes over print media for both jobseekers and sdvertizers,
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» Greater funclionality in searching for jobs * More cost effective than print media

» Users can search by location, classilication, feli or » Reduces the administrative costs of attracting and
pari-time or by keywortd precessing candidate applizations

o More advartisemeants o view in one place s Shorter recrudment cycles

o Greater detail dispiayed in advertisements * Mo advertizing deadlines

o Mo word restrictions mean advertisers can Fully » Advartisements can be placed 24/7
describe roles » lobzeskers can reply immediately

o Many cormnpanies have prolilas linked o their jeb .
advertisemnent allowing easy backgreund research

Fotential to reach a wider audience

» Can search 2 jobsesker OV database and contact
Freactive netification of new listings ¢

johseekers diractly

o Eany 1o receive relevant advertisemanis, even when -

_ _ _ Ability to more accurately iarget potential candidates [on
not actively jobsesking the hass of qualilication, previous experience, salary,

» Users can choose o receive emails for jabs that geographic tocation e
meet their personal criteria

Morse flexble
* Greater convenience and ease-of-use + Therz are no cotumn restzictions on the amount of taxt in
¢ Jobzeekers can apply immediataly an advertizsement

s Full colour fogos, images and backgrounds are available
[or any advertis

Advertisements can have interactive links

Online application togis can screen out candidates and
streamline the application process

dvertizemnents can be removad as soon a8 sufficient
candidates have appliad

* Nedvertisers can place a profile of themselves

3.2 MARKET STRUCTURE

Employment classifieds businesses act as facilitators 1o the amployment mavket, Hinking jobseskers to advertisers.

Advertisars [including recruitment agencies, corporations, government and smalt 2nd medium anterprises (SMEsH
represent the majority of the online employment classilieds indusiry's revenue scurce, with minimal revenues flowing
frorn ;obseekers. This large ponl of jobseskers is atiractive for recruiters.

33
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3.3 GROWTH OF THE ONLINE SECTOR

Eor many years the print media sector representad the grimary medius for
empioyment classifieds since other advertising mediums such as Lelevision,
radio and cinemna have limited ability to aHectively rezch the job seeker
sudience in a focussed manner The intreduction of the internel provided a
new methed of reaching the jobsesker audience effectively and has provided
significant competition to the print media sector

Most of the industry growth enjoyed by the anline cl:
neourred at the expense of the print media sector

in addilion to the growth experienced as a resull of winning market share from

the print media sector, the online sector has benefited lrom a self generated
increzsea in the overall empinment classifieds indastry, The total sumber of
job advertizements has grown significantly since the introduction of the enline
sector a5 the cost advantages of advertising ondine has epenad the market to
new customers and allowad existing custemers to increase the number of

positicns for which they advertise, This can in part be attribuied to the lower
cost nature of oniine advertising which has made it easier for SMEs Lo try out
sn advertisement,

According te the ANZ Job Advertiserment Series, anline emp[oyrf'aenl‘
sdvertiserments in Australia have increased by 2 compeend annual rate of 38%
pver the last lwo years and 47% in the year to February 2085, This outslanding
oniine sector indusltry growth has cccurrad during a period when employment
sdvertising in print media has remained refatively flat and fusther illustrales
the structural shift in the empoyment cassifieds induestry sowsrds the
pniine secior
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3.4 KEY INDUSTRY DRIVERS

Ermployment Market
The key driver of short term activity in the empleyment ¢l
the lavel of economic activity.

silipds

ndusiry s

The etiect of ermployment growth on the demand for employment classifieds is
nwo fold. Emnployment growth resulis in an increase in the number of joi
vacancies to be filled. in addition, strong employment growth creates
dowrward pressure on unemployrment, thereby increasing competition for
relatively scarce labour, This in turn drives the need for recruitment relatad
services including employment classifieds.

Agstratia is currantly experigncing one of its strongest ever employrment
markeis. As a resull, there has been significant focus on the skills shortage
that Australian employers are currently facing. in January 2005 the
unemgioyment rate fell te 51%, its lowesl lavel since 1978, Bespite the threa!
of rising interest rates and high oil prices, Australia’s economic outloclk is
solid, which is expectzd to drive rebust employment growth, The Department
of the Treasury forecasts for employrnent growth, unemployment and resl 0P
growth zre shown in table 3.2,

internat usage

Since its establishment the enline employment classifieds industry has
benefited from increasing levels of internet usage and scoessibility in Australa
and New Zealand.

The Austrzlian Bureau of Stati astimates that in 2002, 66% of Australian
hevseholds bad access to a competer and 53% had access to the intermet,
These figures were up from 61% and £6% respeciively in 2602,

The anline employment classifieds industry will continue to benelit as levels of
internat connectivity rise and as more users swilch to higher spead nen dial-
up connections. Non dial-up connections have significant advantages over
dial-up services for users, allowing fzster and mere efficient viewing of
internat pages and downloading of data. This in turn enhances the productivity
of tirme spent ontine, In this conlexl, the intreduction and uptake of non-dial up
services have actad to improve the user-benefit of onling empleymeang

ciazsified websiles,
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SEEWK actively reviaws new technologies le.g. use of mobile phene messaging)
that may improve the delivery of its offering 1o jobseekers and advertisers and
is well placed lo adopl these when an apprepriate markel opportunity axislks.

Ageing noputation

& shortage of skitled labour is expenl d te emerge a5 the ‘baby boomes
lion approaches retirement zoe. This is likely to increase competition
willed tabour and create demand Im recraitment services including
empoyment classifizds

Younger people are more familiar with the internet and, sccerding to a survey
conducted by MNewsgoli, more choose 1o search for a jeb online rather than in s
newspaper. As the population ages and internet familiarily continues o rise,
cheice for the enline employment classifieds sector is expecled o rise ralative
to print {see Figura 345 The increasing choice for online empioyrment
classiliads has been evident over the past nine months with the proportion of
adulls aged 18 years and over in Sydney, Melbourne, Brisbane, Adelaide and
Ferth that choose online growing by 3% and those choosing print falling by 8%.

3.5 THE OVERSEAS EXPERIENCE

The US market was the bral market in which the onling employment
classifieds industry developed. Detlpne being the most mature online
empioyment classifieds market it slifl experiencas solid growth

Sisterically, the Australizn enline employmant classifieds industry has tended
i follow the growth trends observed in the US market in a lagged manner [t
is estimated that Australia is three years behind the US interms of market
share penetration of the ontine sector relative to the print media sector, As 2
result, anaiysts of the Australian employment classifieds industry look o the
US market to provide an indication of the likely growth trends and markal
share penetration that witl occor in the fustralian online employmeant
classifieds industry in the future,
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Within the US amployment cia ads seclor, the online sector currently holds
approximately a 224’0 market s hgre of amployment ciassifieds revenue fup
from ¥7% in 2003). The online sector in Australia currently ho[d"
approximately a 14% to 15% share of the total employment classibiads industry
[up frem 11% to 12% in Z084]. Given that US industry growth trands have
hestorically Been a good indwater of future growlh trends in Lhe Agstraiian
industry, this would suggest that there is sl censiderable markel penetration
te occur By the online sector relative to the print media sector in Austraiia.

3.6 COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE

Broadly, the competitive landscape within the empioyment classifieds sector
cotnprises print media compelifors and enline compaltitars.

The Australian and New Zealand industry is relatively consolidated with & few
key participants contrelling the majority of advertising space. Within the online
secior there are pure play and hybrid compeatitors, Pure play comgpetitors are
focussed solely on onling whereas hybrids speraie both anline and print media
businasses. SE._K is the anly significant pure play participant in the Austraiian
industy.

The Australian employment classilieds sector was traditionally dominstad by
print meadia competitors Fairfax and News Corporation, However the entry of
online competitors in the late 19905 resulled in a sign:ficant shift in market
share away [rom the print secior tewards onling. The key participants in the
Australian enline employment classifieds secter include SEEK, MyCarser,
CareerOne and Australian Jobsearch with SEEK the clear market leader
MyCareer and CaresrCne are hybrid competitors, being owned by Fairfax and
MNews Corporation respectively, whereas Australian Jobsezrch is a federal
governmant funded online classified service operated by the Departrment of
Empleyment and Workplace Relations [DEWR],

Australian Jobsearch is funded by the federal government as part of its
broader services (o unemgployed Austratians and particslarly the lang term
unermployed. Advertising on the site is free and Australian Jobsearch
consequently attracts a large number of sdvertisements, which at times can
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be greater than that on any one commercial website SEEK balieves that
Austratian Johsearch is net a significant competiter of SEEK bemu;e
Austratian Job;egrut dvartisements arg mainly for unskilled, semi-skilied
znd trade related jobs of types that are not typically advertised on SEER.

in New Zeatand, Fairfax and APN News and Madiz contrel the majerity of the
prist media secter, The enline secter in New Zealand comprises feur main
participants being SEEK, Jebstuff [owned by Fairfax], NZ Herald [owned by
APN News and Meadial and Netz
classifiads in New Zaaland.

heck. SEER is aizno the market lesder in oniine
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4.1 OVERVIEW

SEEK iz the clear fzader in the enline employment market in Australia and
NMew Zesiand. It also operates a niche eperation in the UK targeting Australian
snd Mew Zesland jebseekers and an oniine training and developrment business
in Australia and MNew Zealznd, SEEX was founded in 1997 and the sesk com.au
weabhsite was launched in March 1998,

The enline employment market in Australia and New Zealand has enjeyed
significant growth over the past three years and SEEK as the mzjoer player in
the enline employrment market with 2 market share of greater than 80% has
been the major beneficiary of this growth.

SEEK oparates a2n enline ea‘zp[ﬁymem classifieds marketplace which \.,\}ﬁl']@(_l‘
jobzeekers with the broadest range of available iobs [approximately 80,000 a
any cne fime in Australia and Mew Zealand!, Advertisers are attracied o
listing their job vacancies on SEEK because SEEK sttracts the largest number
of joirseekers,

Since its establishment, SEEX's growth has been primarily orgznic growth
sargeted at specific industry segments, Accordingly, SEE¥ has been successful
in ackieving signilicant market share in the 1T, accounting and administration
markets, By expanding its presence in those markels whers there are
currently low levels of online recruiiment penetration such as heaitheare and
education, SEEK is able to leverage the brand, existing distribution
relationships, its product and its saies channels

SEER currently emplioys aﬂproxm"ate?y 202 people and has been rated in the
past bwo years as ane of Australia's Best *—mplﬂyerf in the presiigious Hewiit
Associates survey. SEEK recognises thal a key fo iis success is altracting,
developing and refaining greatl people acroess the crganisation.

SEEK has a high level of staff motivation and retention. '?'hi:-; continuity is an
extremely important faclor in any rapidly growing business. Foliowing the
Offer, the executive team will costinue Lo own Shares or optiom" in SEEX,
therehy ensuring management's interests are aligned with these of
Sharehelders.

o

K made twe acguisitions in 2004, nziobs co.nz [(Mew Zealand enline job
hozrdl and SeliCert (seif-paced 17 ';r'a"mnq provider, since renarmed SEEK
Learning], and both have per1om‘°d well post-acguisition. This combinalion
of organic growth and pofential growth by acquisition provides an attractive
long-term cutlook for SEEK.
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Over the past three years SEEK has consistently grown its revenue at a rapid
rate with eperating costs growing at a slower rate. From FY2003 to the
farecast period of FY2005 revenue has grows from $25.6 mitlion to an
expected $64.8 million, a compound annual growth rate of 62% per annurm,
whilst operating costs have increased lrom $19.6 miltion to an expacted
$39.2 million, a compound annuai growih rate of £1% per annum. This has
enabled the business to achisve outstanding bEnancial performance. in the
2084 financial year, SEEK generated revenues of $39.7 million and EBITDA of
$14.4 million, an increase of 55% and 140% respactively compared to the
2023 financial year

SEER s fecussed and proven business model, supported by an experienced
arwd disciplined management tearn, has contributed significantly to SEERs
recent sales and EBITDA growlh record.

4.2 GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

SEEX currenily operates in three markals: Auslrslia, New Zealand and the
United Kingdorm.

The penetratior: of anline employment zdvartising le date has varied on a
rnarket by rmarkel basie. For example, SEEK has bean able to oblain greater
penatration in Sydney and Melbourne than in Adelaide, Brishane and Perih.
Similarly the internet has had a greater impact in the IT and accounting
markels than # has had in the government and education markel.

Austratio fwww.seek.com sul
Australia is the largest geograghic cormngonent of the SEEK business,
genarating appreximately 90% of revenue and prefit,

Az the business grows and evolves, SEEXK is increasingly zhle to customise
itz offering to different market segments. This customisation extends to the
product offering, sales and marketing efforts and service offerings.

An example of this customisation is the SEEK Exacutive site which was
launched in 199% and lists 2pproximately 2,003 job vacancies. The criteria for
SEER Exzcutive is that positions must have a salary of more than $80,008
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and invoive management respensibitity. The SEEK 1T site was launched in
200% and tists over 11,000 17 jobs, SEEK also has specialised industry pages
in & number of differant market segments such as accounting, education,
heslthoare, enginearing and entry lavel/graduale,

SEEK belisves there are cuistanding growth opportunities in industry
segmeants where it currently has a relatively low level of penetration such as
ed u ion and healthezre, There is also significant growth potential in the
Perth, Adelzide and Brisbane markets as weil as regionat markets including
tr elfs, Coast, Mewcastle 2nd other regional markets. Managemant atso

consider the SME market to offer substantial growth prospects since on a

elative basis SEEK s penetration in the SME market is lass than in other
marke{ segriients.

Kew Zealand fwww.seek.co.nz)

In 2004, SEEK further consolidated its number one pesition in N ew Zeatand
with the acguaisition of the number twe ranked site nzjehs.co nz, These twe
sites ware merged in May 2004, SEEK's market share in the NZ market is
larger than in the Austratian market with jebseskars spending a total of 4.1
rmiliion minstas on the SEEK NZ site each maonth, a lead of {'eur' tirmes over
SEEK's largest online cormnpetitor. The SEEK NZ site zlse lists significantly
more job adverlisements than any other compealing sile.

SEEK s mzin online comazetiors in New Zeatand are the online version of the
New Zealand Heratd (cwned by APN Naws and Medial, Jobstufl lowned by
Fairfax] and Netcheck fowned by the Radic Bureaw, which owns a number of
radio stations),

However, relative to the Australian business, in New Zealand, enline
ampioyment classifieds represent less of the total empleyment classilieds
market. Accordingly SEEK considers there to be significant opportunities for
growth as 3 resull of the continued structural shilt from print media to
online ernployment classifieds being ermulated in the New Zealand markat.

Lnited Kingdors www.seek.comuauiuk and wwiseak co.nz/uk}

SEEK UK is 2 profitable niche business designed te appaal tn Australian and
New Zealand candidates with working visss looking for jobs in the UK.
Auslralians and New Zealsnders provide a source of atlractive candidales to
UK recruitment firms 2nd employers. SEEK UK compeles predominantly with
expatrizte print magazines targeting Australians and New Zealanders such
as the TNT magazine.

4.3 LEARNING AND TRAINING fwww.seakiearning. com.aul

SEEK acquired the SelfCert learning business on 1 July 2004, SelfCert is 3
leading retailer of self-paced 11 training courses in Australia. in March 2805,
SeliCert was rebranded SEEK Learning.

SEEK Learning's core business invelves setling enline training courses which
anzble IT workers to upgrade their skifls by becormning accradited experts in
progucts including Microsoft and Cisco




SEEK Learning sells courses produced by Skillsoft, a NASDAQ listed global
provider of e-train: ng products for IT prolessicrals, SEEX Learning is the
axclusive reseller of courseware for Skillselt to individuals foens 'umer:ﬂ] in
the Australian and New Zealand markets,

The business lits extremaly well with the SEEK audience as many peopla
locking for jebs are also thinking about training to irmprove their career
prospects. In addition, SEEK customers are also in the markat for fraining in
arder to develop and retain staff,

There are a wide range of iT certification training course providers and the
training can be delivered either as a stand-alone course, or as part of a
longer-term course. Online courses are typicalfy f'heaper' thar classreem
baseﬁ' courses and l“'>y can e taken a2t a time and pace that suils the
student. SEEK Learning's courses include enline instrecior support and
COAT 1|ng Lc, help students achieve their goals.

4.6 BUSINESS MODEL

SEEK operates a focussed business model which has consistently genersted
strong sales and earnings growth.

SEER™s businegss model is based around the central propos:ticn that
advertisers and jobseekers will each mugrate to the medium with the
greatest number of relevant jobs and jobseekers respectivaly,

SEEK has thres major channels to market:

-~ Field zales
Telephone sales
1H:K wehsile

SE’”K hzs a leld sates presence in Sydney, Melhoorne, 'Brifbe e, Perth,
Adelaide, Aucklzand, Wellington and London. The fH:‘ 1 sales team largely
firrm customers and large corporate and

deals W|th poth recrustment
governmani customers

The telephene ssles team is based in Metbourne and looks after amali
recruitment firms and mediom-sized corporate customers. Both the figid
sales and telephone teams have an account management snd a client
acguisition funciion.

The SEEK website is an important and low cost sales channel catering
predominantly to the requirerments of users with infrequent advertisement
placemeants such a5 SMEs.
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4.5 CUSTOMERS

SEEK currently attracls approzimately 10,000 customers per month who list
about 80,004 job advertisernents at any one Hime. Thase custamers (a1 into
four mmain groups:

- Recruitment firms,
- Large corporz
- Government; and
- SMEs,

25,

Recruitment firms have traditionatly been SEEK's largest source of revenue.
SEEK hias aver 1,300 recruitment firm custemners, These customers account
for the rmajority of recruiter employment advertising 2cross aill mediums,
Recruitment firms typically enter into subscription contracts o advartise a
cartain volume of positions par month, Subscriglion contracts typically last
for & to 12 months, An average recrudiment frm will subscribe for a certain
numbar of jobs per month and may also utilise other services such as
gecess to SEEW's resume database, branding opportunities and SEEKs
screening progucts.

Large corporates in Australia typically cutsource much of their recruiiment
requiraments qorecruitment firms, As a resuit, the direcl refationship with
corporales ralatas to thesa positions thal they de not outsource {o
recruitment firms. Whilst SEEK has enjoyed significant growth in this
market, there are a nurmber of sactors of this market which remam
unpenetrated and offer further growth opportunities.

SME custorners represent 2n increasing proportien of SEEK revenue, Whilst
SEEK currentiy allracts approximately 8 000 SME customers per menth and
this nurnber has grown by moere than 50% in the past 12 manths, this
reprasents a smatl prepertion of the tetal SME market in Australia, &s a
resuit, the SME market represents a very large growth opportunity. SME
customers are also highly profitabie becsuse they typicslly purchase
advertisernents on a casual basis,



Figure 4.1
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4.6 JOBSEEKERS

SEER attracis up te 1.4 million unique visitors te its Australizn site each
month, which is approxirmately doukle the number of jobseekers attracted by
its nearest competing sie. This is equivaient to approximataly 14% of the
Auslralian workforce who visit SEEK each month.

SEEK employs a range of offline marketing and online distribution
ralatior hlpr i prder to attract jobseekers Lo the sis

SEEK has pub in place exclusive ‘careers content provider’ agr'eerf'aems welth
leading portais such as ninernss, OplusNet 2nd XtraMSN. SEEX also has a
range of distribution agreements in place with industry associations such as
the Insttute of Chartered Accountants 2nd the Law Society of N‘ W, These
distribution relatienships resuit in SEEK being heavily promoted across :? 5
partners networks and provides SEEK with access o in excess of 95% of alt
internet users in Australia, SEEK has a distribution agreemen? with Yahoo
which concludes in Gotober 2045, This agreemant will not be renswed
beyond thal date,

The SEEK firand is ane of SEEKs key bumne_m assets, As well as the online
distribution relationships, SEEK invests in significant offiine marketing
activities to help build the SEER bram Au,orqu Lo Newspnll research
conduciad in meua v and Februzry 2005, SEEK has bauilt 2 total brand
awareness of A2% ameng 2dults aged 18 years and over in Sydf‘:ey,
Melbeurne, Brisbane, Adelaide and Perth, including an enaided brand
awsreness of 27%. This lavel of brand awareness is higher than any of
SEEK s enline compatitors, SEEK believes it has a similar lead in brand
awareness in New Zealand, This represents a key assat for SEEK and assists
in establishing & formidable barrier o entry for competitors,
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Figure 4.2
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A feature of SEﬁ'K's success in driving brand awareness and jebsasker traffic
has been in its innovative 2nd aggressive promotion. SEER has a significant
presence f‘allonal[; ind utilises televizion and a range ef outdoor media from
billsoards te taxis and bus wraps. SEEK prometes the Brand by advertising
on prominent city landmarks frem Parth o Walt |f‘q“on and emplﬂyf med:a to
great effect - from advertising in the snowfields te . PBLs
investment in SEEK in 2003 has delivered extensive access to media
channels through which to promoete the SEEK site. These include leading
television and onling proparties such as Channel Nine and ninemsn as well
as well known magazine tiles such as Wornan's Weekly, Ralph, Wheels and
Clae. Thiz access extends to C.T'OSS-'{)I'C{'f"l{_')tif"ﬁ{ actwvities and integrated
promotions as well as standard advertizing. The breadth of SEEK's audience
and year-reund nature of job sesking rmezns that SEEK is nnl tied to
particular advertizing L|*ne° or channeis, This fexibility, combined with
SEEKs strong brand image, has allowed cost-affactive marketing programs.

4.7 COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Jobseekers are likely Lo choose SEERK for their job search needs because it
lists the widest range of job advertisements and adverlisers zre more likely
to advertise on SEEX because it attracts mere jobseskers, This creates a
virtuzous cycle which reinforces SEEK s markel leadership, Additionally,
decisions on where Lo advertise a job vacancy are hased more on the
likelihood of achieving a goed oufcome rather than cost, An advertiser won't
decide te stop advertis: nu ir @ particular mediom because a comgeling
puitlication offers @ lower price unless they are convinced Lhe competing
publication will deliver them the candidates they need, This provides
successful classifizds players with a strong and delensib le markel position,

SEEKs leng-term distribution relatipneships and its brand awareness als
provide signilicant barriers o entry. An additional barrier to aniry s SEEK's
registersd user base, SEEK sends spproximately 550,800 emails each night
to individual ipbseekers with jobs matching their search criteria. Over

1.4 miflien jobseskers are registerad for this free service,

s senior management tearmn, ead by Paul and Andrew Bassat and

ew Rockman, have proven themselves to be a capable management
sam, SEEK'S co-founders conceived and develeped the business model for
EE& and selectad the core senior management feam Lo launch the business,

Ralative to its print media competitors, SEEX benefids from not having an
existing print franchise to pretect. This enables SEEK Lo aggressively pursue
growth opportunities withoeut having 1o consider the potential for
cannibalisation of it ;3{'5nt revenges. However, SEEK operates in a

umpe titive market and ifs business may be alfected by the risk factors
tinad in Section 7.




4.8 GROWTH STRATEGY

SEEK has developed & clear strategy fo continue s track record of strong
growth and expects a continuation of that growth. The strategy is to continue
to take advantage of structural changes in the employment classifieds
market, while simuitanaousty developing signilicant new businesses in
ralated fialds,

Incorporated within this
including the feilowing:

strategy are nurnarcus specific growth options

- Growing advertisement volumes: SEEK has strong rmarket penetration in
industries such as accounting, 1T and administration and is now focussing
on other industries including healthcare and education. Geographically,
SEEK has won substantial market share in Melbourne, Sydney and
Auckiand and is now seeking to achieve similar results in other capitat
cities and regienal areas.

- Growing Yield: SEEK believes that its advertisement Yield will improve as
# continues te attract more candidates. Average Yields are forecast o
increase given SMEs are both SEEK's highest yielding and fastest growing
customer :&’JHE"H" Finally, the cost to the advertiser per jeb candidate
detiverad is substantially lower onling than in prinl,

- New and improved products: SEEK is continually devaloping new jeb-
retaled products which are atiractive to beth iobseskers and advertisars,
These include improved searching and matching technologies to atiract
more jobseskers as well as ways for advertisers (o screen and respond Lo
candidate applications, search candidate resume dalabases and promele
their rand more effactively Lo jobseekef's

- BEducation and Training: SEEK acguired the SeliCert learning businass on
1 July 2084, SeliCert is 2 leading retailer of self-paced iT trzining coorses
in Australiz. in March 2005, SeifCert was rebranded SEEK Leam‘nq. SEEK
sees enormous growth opportunities in educztion and trainmg. Training s
s s‘;sianha[ market with SEEK estimating thal over $7 billion is spent
63"|'1m:1“j on post-secondary training in Australia, SEEX is well positione
in this markel with a highly relevg'nt audience of 1.4 miihch people, 3
strang, relevant brand and developing capabilities in resalling training
courses. SEEX intends to aggressively expand its course range beyond 17
and I3 conm\ie ing other epportunities including relling cut the medet Lo
other gecgraphies. As g first step in this direction SEEX recently
concluded an agreement to seil Open University Australia degree courses
o SEEK's audience. Open Usniversity Australia offers distance higher
education courses deliverad by a wide range of universiy pariners. SEEK
axpects to commence saies in April or May of 2009 and sees this a3 an
exciling growth epperiunity.

- Other growth opportunities: Cther potential growth opportunities include
further expansion internationally,

SEEK continues to aggressively explere further opportunities for nen-organic

growth, SEEK is centinually assessing epportunities in related services within

the human capital manzagement market and possible further geographic

expa nsion. SEEX s growth may be alfecied by the risk factors putlined in
Saction 7.
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5.1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS

3%, James Packer - Chairman

Jarnes O Packer is the Executive Chairman of Poblishing and Broadcasting
Lbd, 2 top 38 listad Australizn cempany [A5K cede: PBLL PBL is Austratia’s
leading media and entertainmeant company. Hs core businesses are television
production and broadcasting; magazine publishing and distribution; and
garning and eaterl‘aiﬁrT1eﬂt James is alse the jpint CED of Consolidated Press
Holdings Limited and a direcior of varicus cen“»panie:‘ inciuding Gzntas
Airways Lirnited and Challenger Financial Ser\ cas Group, Since 1988 James
has worked in varicus senior positions across the PB;_ group

Anthony Klok z2ois as an alternate director for James Packer, Anthony is PBLs
Husiness Develeprment Director,

2. Paul Bassat - Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder

Paul is the CED and co-founder of SEEK, SEEK has rapidly established itsalf
as the destinzgtion of choice for amployment advertisers and jobseekers across
Austratia and New Zealand. Paul has led SEEK since ils inceplion in 19%’/’.
During this period SEEK has been recognised as one ¢f the fastest growing
businessas in the Asia Pacilic Region as well as cne of the "Bast £mployers to
work forin Australia”.

Prior to co-founding SEEK, Paul spent six years with the cormmercial law firm
Arnotd Blech Leibler, where he spaciatized in corpera tte lawe Paui helds
Bachelor of Laws and Bachelor of Commerce degrees from the University of
Melbourne and is a member of the Smail Business Panel of the Reserve Bank
of Australiz

% Andrew Bassat - Executive Director and Co-Founder

Andrew leads SEEK's Strategy a2nd Business de *—"lmeena tearm. He s
responsible for everall strategic direction, pregress of expansion epportiunities,
scquisitions, stralegic alliances wilth key ;}ar'tr:e:‘s and anline market ting, Andrew
is alzo responsible for SEEK Learning.

Prior to co-founding SEEK, Andrew was a management censultant with Boopz
Alen & Harniiton where he was involved in a wide range of sirategic
sssignments for majer Australian and internationat corperations and prior o
that worked as a solicitor st Corrs Chamber Wesltgarth,

Andrew holds & Bacheler of Soience [Cemputer Sciance] degree from the
University of Meaﬁouz'ne, a Bachelor of Laws [Honowrs] degree from Monash
Universi{y and & Master of Business Adrministration degres from Melbourne
Husiness Schoot



4. Matthew Rockman - Executive Director and Co-Founder
in his role as Director of Sales, Malthew s responsible for driving the sales
effort and managing SEEK's r—"lﬂi enshig with customers

He leads a team of account and sales manager ross Londorn, New Zealand
snd Mve states of Australia. Matthew's focus is on g owing SEEK's market
positicn and on beth delivering and adding value Lo customars’ businesses,

Before co-founding BE I-_K Matthew was Director of the Northrock Groep of
Cornganies and the Sales and Mdrketmg Directer for Rockman's Regency
Hotel He played a s rategv role in acquisitions and proparty developments,
snd using innovative sales and marketing strategies was responsible for
positicning Reckman's Resency as one of the pre-eminent hotels in Austraiia.

Matthew helds a Bacheler of Business [Banking and Finance] degree from
Morash University,

0%, Chris Anderson -~ Non-Executive Director
Chris Anderson was appointed to the SEEX Board an 25 Nevernber 2004,

Ho has recently stood dewn after seven years as Chiefl Executive of Oplus
during which time he managed Optus through significant milestenes including
listing en the Australian Steck Exchange, the bm{} Tel purchase of Gptus and
the Optus-Foxtel content sharing Pay TV television deal.

#rior 1o jeining Optus ha was Greup Chiel Executive of Television New Zealand

and before that the Managing Editer of the Austratian Breadcasting Corporation.
The bulk of his career, frem 1946 Lo 1991, was spent with Jobn Fairfax Limited
where he was appointed Managing Girector and Groug Editerial Director of all
groug newspapers in 1987, and Chief Executive Cificer in 1990

Heis also on the Beard of PBL, Foxtel, ninernsn, Hoyts, Austrade and is
# member of ABN AMRG's Advisory Council,

Chris has a Bachelor of Economics degres from the University of Sydney and
i 2 graduate of the Advanced Managernent Pregram at Colurnbia University,
Mew York,

6. Bob Watson - Mon-Executive Director

Heb has over 20 years of executive management experience in the information
technology 2nd recruitment industries. His various roles have included Chief
Exzcutive Officar of Mayne Nickless Computer Services, Data Sciences
intarnational [m the UX] and Lend Lea_—,e Erriployar Systerms. Bob was also the
Aostratasian CEO for Adecon, the wortd's [and Austraba's] largest recruiiment

and labour contracting agency.

Heb s currently Executive Chairman of listed botachnoley y ampany Cylopia
Lirited and & director of several private companies, He has been s director of
SEEK since 1999,

7. Colin Carter ~ Mon-Executive Director

Colin has an extensive censuiling background in erganisational and business
strateqy and he is a former Senior Vice-Prasident of, and is currently  senier
stviser to, The Bosten Consulting Group. His interests also include corporate
governznce issues and in recent years Celin has carried out beard performance
reviews for a nurmber of companies as well 28 co-authoring a top-selling 2ook
on Boards, Back Te The Brawing Board, He is a non-executive directer of two
puiiic companies - Origin £nergy Limited 2nd Wesfarrmers Limited. Colin is
zlso & commizssioner of the Austratian Football Leagse, a director of the
Melbourne 2806 Commonweslth Barnes Corporation and Chairman of
Indigenous Enterprise Partnerships.

Colin has a Bacheler of Comrmierce degree from Melbourne University and an
MBA from Harvard Business School whare he graduated with distinclion and
as g Boker Scholar

(93]
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Thank you to former Chairman

SEEK wishes te acknowiedge the contribution of Inein Rockman CBE o the
business since its inception. [rvin was an original investor in SEEK in
November 19%7. Irvin haz been SEEX's Non-Execulive Chairman from
inceptien gntil March 2085, at which tirne he decided te resign as Chairman
and as g director of SEEK, frvin has provided tremendeus leadership and
vision and intends te remain s long term Sharehelder in SEEK,

5.2 KEY MANAGEMENT

in addition to the thres Executive Directors an the Beard, the following are
members of the SEEK execuiive team,

11, Katie May -~ Marketing Director

Katie leads SEER's product and markeling tearn, oversesing developrment of
new products and features and markeling the service to consumers and
business, Her vision and direction have heipad SEEK achisve approximalely
A0% brand awareness among aduits rationatly and ensurad continuous
innavation, which has fad to g wortd class product, Katig joined SEEK in July
1999 with considerable experience in maragemen? censulting ard brand
managarment, ganed with Boor Allen & Hamilton and Philip Morris. Katie
received her MBA from the University of Texas, where she also completed

z Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting. She was certiled a5 a
public accountant in 1992, Katie is returning to her native USA in June and
SEEK is underlaking an extensive search for a new marketing director.

2. Jobhn Armstrong ~ Chief Financial Officer

Joka has overall responsitslity for ail of SEEK's day-to-day business
pperations, ensuring the necessary operational and financial processes and
infrastructure are in place and aligned with SEEKs strategies and continuac
ragid grewth. He has responsibility for the Enancial, administration and
custormer service feams,

John has over 12 years exparience in various financial and commercial
management reles. Prior to SEEX John worked with Ernst & Young,
Blackwoods and Fosters Brewing Group. John has a Master of Buziness
Administration, and a Bachelor of Business majoring in Accounting from
Monash Universily, and is a member of CP4A Australia.

B3 Tam Yu ~ Chief Information Officer

Tarm provides strategic and eperaticnal [T leadership for SEEK. In this capacity,
Tarn leads a tearn of 1T prefessionals enabling and innovating new proeducts as
well as ensuring 11 s aligned with the business direction. Tam has recently
jeined SEEX from B London whers he was the Chiet Infermation Officer for
81 giobal retail business. Tam has ever 15 years of IT experience where he
has feveraged IT to enable major global transfermation programs. Tam has
workad extensively in Europe, US and Asia Pacific in a diverse range of
ingustries. Tam holds a Bachelor of Science Honours] from the University of
Adelaide.



SEEK's senior executives are suppoerted by a number of highly effective senior
managers all of whom have been with SEEK for several yesrs. They are:

Louise De Vos - NSW State Manager

Scott Hauswirth - Business Development Manager
Chris Lafferty - Program Services Manager

Jason Lenga - SEEK Learning Managing Director
Kimberley Lindstrom ~ Human Resources Director
Simon Rosenbery - Sales Operations Manager
David Waite ~ Early Stage Markets Manager

5.3 CORPORATE GOVERNAMCE

ASK Corporate Bovernance Counctl Recommandations

The Board is aware of the Princigles of Soed Corporate Sovernance and Bast
Praclice Recommendations as published by the ASX Corporate Governance
Council. Included ameng these are:

- majerity of an ASE-listed company's Beard should comprise Independeant
Cirectors,

« the Chairmarn should be an Independant Director,

- roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officar should not be
syercised by the same indwvidual. The Chalrman should also not be a former
Chiel Executive Clficer of the company; and

- audit and remuneration committees of an ASK-listed company sheeld only
coensist of Nen-Executive Directors, with the committess comprising s
majority of Independeant Siraclors.

The Board iz made up of lwo Non-Executive Cirectors [peing James Packer
and Chris Andersen], twe indepandent Nen-Executive Directors [being

Beb Walson and Colin Carter] and three Executive Directors thaing Paul
Bassat, Andrew Bassat and Matthew Reckmanl. Details of the Direclors and
thair guatifications are set out in Section &3,

Each member of the Beard must bring an independent view and judgement to
the Board and must declare actual and potential condl:

The Board has carefully considerad the agpropriale size of the Board for SEEK
and belisves that, for 2 company of the size and nature of SEEK, it should be
small enough to be coherent but large encugh to bring a depth of axperience
and a diversity of talents. Each of the Directors is a senior and exparienced
execulive with skiils and experience necessary for the proper supervizion and
leadership of SEEK. As & tearn, the Board brings together a broad range of
guatifications, in hoth the international and Australian markets, with
consideraizle experiance and sxpartize.

SEEKR belisves that the Board, as currently composed, has the necessary skills
and motivation Lo ensure that SEEK conlinues ta perferm strongly,
netwithsianding that its overail composition does net meet ASK guidelines on
independenca,




The Board currantly :ntends to appoint ene 2dditional independant Non-
Executive Director as soon as an apprapriale parson is identified.

Although the Chairman, James Packer, is nol an independent Direclor for the
purposes of the ASX's quidelines, the Board believes thal James’ experience
snd expertise including, in particular, Being the Executive Chairmarn of PBL,
ensares thal he will be an effective Chairman of SEEK.

Board of Directors and s Comniitia
The Board is f‘eCpcns%bl'—" for the cverall corporate governance of SEER
inciuding estailishing and monitering key performance gozls. The Board has
creatad & framewoerk for managing SEEK which includes internzl controls, a
business risk managemant precess and appropriate ethical standards. Board
comittess and indvidual Directors may seek ’nde;}ewen’ professional
advice at SEEKs expense for the purposes of the praper performance of thair
duties.

Remuneration Committes

The rofe of the Rermuneration Committes is to review and make
recornmendations to the Board on rernuneration packages and pelicies related
i the Non-Executive Directers, Chairman, Chief Execulive Officer and Senor
ernployaes and ensure thal remunaralion policies and practices are consistent
with SEEK's strateqgic geals and human reseurce ebijeclives. The membership of
the Remuneration Committes witl be determined a5 soen as practicable
following Listing. Once it hag been determined, SEEK will make an
srinouncement to the ASK sdvising the membership of the Remunsration
Cormmities, The Executive Directors will not be members of the Remunerstion
Commilize,

Auddit Cormrnittes

The rele of the Agdit Committee is to advise on internal contreis and
sppropriate ethical standards for the managernent of SEEK. The Audit
Comenitlee will also condirm the quality and reliabitity of the financial
information prepared, woerking on behaifl of the Soard with externat auditors,
The Audis Commities will review non-audit services provided by external
suditors te confirm they are consistent with maintaining external audit
independenca,

The Audit Committes will provide advice to the Board and report on the status
of the business risks to SEEX through its risk managemeant process, which is
sirned at ensuring risks are identified, assessed and zppropriately managed.
Az with the Remuneration Commillee, the membership of the Audit
Corneitlee will e determined as snon as practicable following Listing. Once it
has besn determined, SEEK will make an znnouncarment te the AJ(( rJd‘JI:Ii‘:{.}
the membership of the Audit Commmittes, The Executive Directars witl nol be
members of the Audil Commitles.

Gorporate Governance FPolicies
The Bozrd has adopied the following corporate governance policies which will
become effective upon Listing.




Gontinueus Disclosure Pelicy

SEEK places a high priority on communication with Sharehelders and is aware
of the abiigations it will have, once listed, 1o keep the market fully informed of
information which is net generally available and which may have a material
effect on the price or value of SEEK's Securities. Al relevant informatien
provided te ASX will e immediately pested onto SEEK s corporate webaite,
wiw seek cornay, in cempliance with the continuces disclesure reguirements
of the Cerporations Acl, and the Listing Rules.

SEEKR has adepted a policy which estaiiishes precederes o ensure thal
Directors and management are aware of and fulfil their obiigations in relation
y the timely disclosure of material price-sansitive information,

Share Trading Guidelines

SEEK has adopted guidelines for dealing in Securitiss which are intended to
explain the prohibited types of conduct in relalion to dealings in Securities
under the Serporations Acl, and estzblish a best practice procedure in refalion
gy dealings in SEEK's Securities by its CHicers and their Associstas,

Subject to the overriding restriction that persons may not deal in SEEK's
Securities whiie they are in possessien of material price-sensitive information,
Officers and their Associates will enly e permitted to deal in SEEK's
Securities with the prier writien approval ef the Chairman, e in the evant that
the Officer is not a Directer, wilh the prior writlen spproval of the ZEO, and
during the following trading windows:

-« within the six week period commencing 24 hours after SEEX releases its
half yearly resuits to the ASX,

-« within the six week period comrmencing 24 hours after SEEX releases itz full
year resulis to the ASK; and

-« within the period cornmencing the 24 hours after SEEK fodges its annusl
repart with the ASX through to one month after the heiding of SEEK's
Anruat General Meeting,

Outside of these trading windows, CHicers must receive clearance from the
Chairman er CEOQ for any proposed dealing in SEEK's Securities, with such
ciearance ornly to be granfed in exceglional circumslances.

Officers 2nd their Associates may not deal in SEEX s Securities during the
period commencing on the date of SEEK s Listing and ending 24 hours atter
SEEK releases te the ASK its resulis for the yesr ending 30 June 2085

Ethical Standards

SEEKR has a code ef conduct documented in an employes handhook, This sets
put the standards as te how each employes of SEEX is expacted to act in their
capacily as an employee of SEEK.

Germmunication o Shareholders

The Board of Directors witl aim o ensure that Shareheiders are fully informed
ol all maier ’éeve[opmeni's affecting SEEKs state of allairs. Infermation will be
corpmunicated to Sharehelders through the annual regort, annual generst
meating, half-yearly results anneuncements and corporate website,

weenw seek com.au, which vell have a dedicated investor relations section.
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6.1 SEEK FINANCIAL INFORMATION [INCLUDING FY05 AMD FY04
FORECASTS!

s Section sets eut certain historical financial informatien concerning
SEEK. It slse includes ferecas! financial information for hoth FY05 and FY0s.

The forecasts set out in this Section have been prepared with due care and
altentien and refiect the Dn"’ s iudgerrent of the bkely FY0S and FY06
resuits based upon current operating and economic conditions and sirategic
plans o be undertaken,

By their nature, the FY05 and FY06 forecasts :nvolve risk and uncertainly and
depand upon future circumstancas,

The actuzl and ferecast information inctuded in this Prospectus has been
prepared in accordance with the measurement and recognition principles
prescribed in Accounting Standards and other mandatory profpﬂlehgl

rep ort"nq re ]u irernents in Ausiralia and the acceunting policies adopted by
SEEK as disclosed in Nete 1 1o the financial statements in SEEK s FY04
Annual Repor' . These acceunting policies are included within the Appendix.

The I‘oreca:—;t inforrmation has zlso been prepared assurmning that Hhere are no
changes of a material nature to accounting policies, or te Australian
At,t,ou:%tmg Standards, Staternents of Accounting Concepls or other
mandatory § f,J{"fﬂmrmaa reporting reguirements inciuding Urgent Issues
Conzensus Views and the Terporations Act [‘r\ hich could have a material
affect on SEEX's forecast fnancial results], The petential impact of the
introduction of Australian equivaients to inte matlona Firancial Reporting
Standards [AIFRESHrom 1 July 2005 i outlined faler in this Section,



6.2 SEEK EARMNINGS PROFILE

Tabie 6.1 ~ Consolidated Financial Performance of SEEK
The surnmarisad financial performance for SEEX for the years ended 33 June 2803 and 20 June 2024, and forecasts
for the years ending 38 June 2805 and 30 June 2086, are set out helow.

Operating Revenue:
SEEK 256 397 &0.6 R
SEEK Learning - 6.2 %6

Totat Operating Revenue 286 9.7 &6.8 94
Operating expenses™ [19.6] {2538 (29.3] (524

EBITHA 4.0 14.4 278 £330
Depraciation {0.4] (0.5} 10.9] (1.2]
EBITA 5.6 13.9 6.9 38.8
Amortisalion {0.1] (0.5} [2.5] [2.45]

EBIT 55 13.4 2L 4 363

Netb interest received n.a 1.3 1.7 2.9
PRCFIT before income tax e 14.5 6.1 a2
income fax expense (0.7 15.8] [12.9]

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX 58 13.8 17.3 263

NET PROFIT AFTER TAX [pre goodwill amaortisation] 2.9 14.3 19.8 28.8

s geeounlz o the siornenthe eeded 31 Dacamber 2004 snd larecal fnancial informalins (or the six rme

Eordetails of the impact of AIFRS on ferecast earnings refer to Sectien 6,15,

£.3 SPECIFIC ASSUMPTIONS IN RELATION TO THE FORECAST INFORMATION
The epecific assumptions adopied in preparing the £Y05 and FY06 forecasts are summarised below.

< B13% increase in the volume of SEEK advertisements in 82 Y05 when comgared to H1 FY0S 2nd a further 22%
increase involumes in FY04, The forecast volume growth rates are prircipally driver by the fellowing facters. In

arriving at these assumptions SEEK has had regard for 2 variety of independent sourcas of information:
s Assurned emgloyment growth of 2% in Y08 and 1.75% in £Y06

c 4

= A continuation of low cnemplayment, currently 5.3%
s Additionai shifts in recrutment advertising tewards online, with assurmed annusl growth of 13% in the
penaltration of online recruitrment sdvartising.



- A 030 increase in average Yield in H2 FYD5 and a $£.30 increase in average Yield in FY06. This is assumed Lo be
achieved through a combinalion of rate card increases and an incresse in mix of single advertisements and
advertising package sales from 38% in FY04 to 48% in FY06.

-« Anincrease in the number of courses seld within the SEEK Learning business of 154 in H2 FYDE and 779 in FYD6
resuiting from an increase in the number of leads and improved conversion thereol,

- A7 5% increase in average selling prices within the SEEK Learning business in September 2005,

« Total headcount is forecast to increase lrom 204 at 31 December 2804 1o 263 by 30 June 2084,

-« Expendilure an advartising is forecast to increaze by $1.3 millien in FY05 and a further $2.8 million in FY34.

- Awerage exchange rate of ASTNZ$1.T threugheut the forecast period.

-« Average interest rate of 5.5% threeghout the forecast period.

-« Effective tax rate of 37%.

6.4 GEMERAL ASSUMPTIONS IN RELATION T0 THE FORECAST INFORMATION
The generat assumptiens adopled in preparing these forecasts sra et out below.

- Ma significant changes in Australian Commorweaith or State legislation, tax legistation, regulatory reguirements
or gevernment policy.

-« Me significant change in the tax legislation, regulatory requirements or government policy in New Zealznd.

- Me material dewnturs in the forecast pericd in sconomic conditions in particuiar the empleyment market,

-« Mea materizl acquisitions or disposzals,

= Na significant changes 1o SEEK's funding or capital structurs other than as sal oul in, or contempiated by, this

FProspectus,

- A general ‘consumer price index” increase of 3% per annum during the forecast period and othar markal related
increases where appropriate.

6.5 SEMSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Tre FYZS and FY06 resulls zre sensitive 1o a numbear of key factors,

Table 6.2 - Sensitivity Analysis
e s
Bl ; : : : i : s “f&_}f

o

Erds

S
75

Average Yields i et 4 w36

Yolume of advertisernant +/ 1 0% w27 4.8
Volume of sales of SEEX Learning products af «20% /0.5 #f =13

ABNZS exchange rale af e 10% /0.3 a7

iployrnanl geawlh rate fram e long-

Hovarialion inovelames,

Care should be taken in interpreting these sensitivities. In particuiar, the sensitivity analysis in Table 6.2 treats esch
maovernent in the variables in isolation, whereas, in the case of volurnes and average Yields, movernants may be
interdependent. In the event that one or more sensitivities reduce the growth in revenues there are 2 number of
setions which SEEK may take Lo curlsif the increases in the cost base. These potentisl savings have not been
reflected in the sensiivities above.

643,



6.6 COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - FYO4 AUDITED VERSUS FYD3 AUDITED

Revenue growth of 25% in Y04 was driven by thres faclors:

<8 47 increase in the volume of zdvertisements placad across the SEEK com au and SEER .conz sites;
- 8 12% increzse in average Yields due te a combination of rate increases and an increased proportion af higher

yielding ‘package’ and casual advertisements; and
- the acquisition on 1 March 2004 of NZJebs, This contributed spproximately 50.4 million additionat revenue in FY04,

Growth in aperaling costs was restricted w 29% and was principally due to increased headcount and anline
markeating costs. EBITDA grew by 140%, with the £EBITOA margin increasing from 23% of revenues in FY43 to 36% of
revenues in FY04 reflecting the economies of scale as the volumes through the website increased.

Firarcial Performance FY0S
The FY3E ferecasis shown in Tabie 6.1 above reflect six months audited actual results and six months
forecast resulls,

6.7 ACTUAL FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - SEXMONTHS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2004

Table 6.3 - Actual Financiatl Performance ~ six months ended 31 December 2004

Operating Revenue
Operaling expenses ¥ [18.5] §20.5]

EBITDA 12.9 149 278

il mrmounlad Lo Y $HE mitlioe,

Operating revenues of $31.4 million represent a 80% incraase ever the six maonths ending 31 Decemier 2303, This
was underpinned by a continued upward trend in volumes and Yields together with:

- six months resclis from the acguisition of NZJebs; and
= $2.7 mitlion in revenue from the acgquisition of SelfCart, a resallar of online training solutions acguired on
T Zuty 2004,

EBITOA of $12.9 millicn represented 47% of revenus rebiecting further economies in scale from the cperaling
cosi base,

&1,



6.8 COMPARISON OF FINANCIAL PERFORMAMNCE -~ FYO5 FORECAST VERSUS FYO4 AUDITED
The fuli year forecast revenue represenis a 48% increzse over FY04 reflecting:

< a fult year of revenue rom NZJebs which was acguired on 1 March 2”’0*’5-

-« the acyguisition of the Sel{Cert business on 1 July 2004, This business s operated within the SEEK Learning divis
and is foracast te contribuie revenue of $6.2 million in FYOE;

- growth in zdverlising velurnes of L4% in particuiar within the nen-subscription advert
bolsterad by the full-year impact of the acquisition of NZJobs, and

-« increases in average Yields of 105%.

sers. This growth is partly

Hion,

The increases in revenue of $27.7 million are partly offse? by increzses
reflecting:

in oparating expenses of $13.7 mil

- cormimissions payabie to Skillsoft with respact to the SEEK Learning business;
« the full-year impact of NZJobs and the additional employees and related cosls sssociated with the soge
af SeifCert;
250 headoount within the core resiness, in p:arl"f'ular wilthin sales ralatad functiens; and
- 8 32% incresse in markeling expenditers and a ¥% increase in sxpenditure on online aliisnces.

PEtTo

The increase in amaortisation is the result of 1
stiribuied o the SelfCert acquisition,

he full year-impact ef the NZJobs acquisition and ameriisation

6.9 COMPARISOM OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE - FY04 FORECAST VERSUS FYOS FORECAST

Revenue growth of 35% is a cormnbination of growth in:

-« core recruitment advertising, which is split betweean volume growth [22%] and increases in average Yields (17
and

« SEEX Learning revenves sre forecast to increase by 55% reflecting an assumed increase in the namber of leads
following the rebranding as SEEK Learning, improved conversion of sates epportunities and focus on sales to the
SME rmarket.

The forecast revenue growth of 35% s supported by commensurate increases in operating expenses of 29%

reflecting:

« further increzses in tetal headcount from 231 at 30 June 2005 to 263 at 30 June 2004,

- a $4.8 miilien :'edu{f‘lch in the benelit received from advertising provided free of charge, as part of an cverail
increase in markeling costs;

-~ increased costs asseciated with onfine alliznces; 2nd

-« increases in other operating costs refiecting expansion required
inCreases

5

t support increased sates volumes plus SR

67,
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6. 10 SELECTED FINANCIAL MEASUR

ES AND METRICS

Set out below s 3 selection of key financial performance measures.

Table 6.4
s

Operating Revenue growth
Core advertising revenue growth
SEEK Learning revenus
SEEK Lesrning revenue growth
Growth in operaling expenses
EBITDA
EBITDA growth
EBITDA a5 a % of revenue

Cash flows from operations

hSA
29%
14.4

140%

218
93%
42%
207

Growth in cash flows from operations 213% 75 a1%
ditpd arcounts far the siomanths ended 31 December 2004 and forecas) Hnancial inflormalion [or the ik monibs

6.11 SUMMARY OF CASH FLOWS

The surnmarisad cash fow statement for SEEK for the years e

Payrnent of tax

Movernents in working capital
Nat interast received

Cash flow from operations
Capital expenditura
Payments for investments
Other investing cash Aows
Dividends

Net cazh flow before financing

{0.3]

5.0

(6.0}
(0.7

2.8

3.6

wded 30 June 2003 and 20 June 2004 and the lorecast

it

accounts for the s rnonthe endod 31 Docembor 2004 and forecasl fnascial inlorealion [oe the six ma

63,



6.12 COMMENTARY ON MAJOR CASH FLOW MOVEMENTS

(‘{Erﬁgmrrmﬁ of Cash Flows - FY4 Audited versus FYOR Audited

ash flows from eperations increased by $11.3 mitlien. This rellecled increased EBITEA and a net inflow from
working capital in FY04 resulting from an increased focus on managing trade receivables, strong sales of advertising
packages iwhere customers pay in advance] and increaseas in amployee related provisions,

ke Melbourne head office and computar equipment.

Bayrments for investments relate to NZJobs which was acquired on 1 March 2004,

Gerngariszon of Cash Flows - FY0DD Forecast versus FYD4 Audited
Cash flows from eperations s ferecast Lo increasse by $4.1 miltion refecting:

< tax payments of $8.% million relating Lo the paymen? of the FY34 tax Lability and instaiments with respect to FY05,
Mo tax payments were made in FY04; and
-~ an increase in net interest received to $1.7 mitlien resulting partly from sdditional funds retained post the Gife:

Payrments for investments relate 1o SellCert which was acguired on 1 July 2804,

A dividend of 14 cents per Share iprior te a 3:1 share split approved by Shareholders on 11 March 2085) was deciared
in August 2804 and paid in Oclober 2004,

Gomparison of Cash Fiows - FY06 Forecast versus FYUD Forecast
Cash flow from operalions is forecast to increase by $10.9 mitien reflecting 5 $12.2 million increasze in £BITHA,

Capital expenditers principally relates to Information Technology.
The forecast dividend comprises:
- $2.9 mitlion being the final FY0S dividend, representing a distribution rale of 70% of pre-amortisation profis; and

< $10.2 miltion beirg the intarim dividend for FY24, This is assumed to e 50% of the final dividend, representing &
distribution rate of 0% of pre-amaortisation profits.

b,



6,13 SEEK PRO FORMA STATEMERNT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The consolidaied staternant of Bnancial position for SEEK a5 at 3% Decembear 2084 is sl out below:

Table 6.4

Cash 267 13.5% 387
Roceijvables T3 7.3
Other 0.6 R

Tolai current zss 34.64 1% b 461

Broperly, plant and eguiprment 22 22
0

intangible assets 4.0 8.

Fature Income Tax Benefil 1.3 1.1
Totat nos-current assels 11.3 11.2
Tolai aszsets 45 G 1156 57.4

Payables 7.2 7.2

U~
2
w

Current tax liakility %5

Totat current labilities 127 127

Provisions 0.4 4
Totat nos-current liabiiities 0.4 B4
Tatat liabitities 133 131

Net gosets 3728 1315 445

Total equity 328 11.5% 44.1

ah lees cosly aesociated wilh the giier [Hem 2 averloal! lpsg cosis

&5,



Eor details of the impact of AIFRS on nel assets refer to Section .15

Tre Pro Forma Statement of Financial Posiien has been prepare ad frosm the audited Statermnent of Financizl Positien
5 at 31 Dacey “ber 2004 [as shown in the Appendix], The Pro Forma Statement of Financial Position adjusts the
tual audites la ement of Financial *l'}fvaitirm as at 31 December 2004 for the impact of the Buy-Back and the Off

gz i SEEK was listed at 31 Decamber 2004, The adjustmenis made to the Pro Foarma Statement of Financial Position

reflect the hllow*ru

El;

Jssue and Buy-back of share capital - as set ouiin Table 2.1 an estimatad 25 million of naw funds is expacted
ba raised.

2. The costs associated with the Offer are eslimaled te be $6.8 million, based on the mid-point of the Indicative
Institutional Bockiuild Price Range and the expected participstion in the Buy-Back.

3. B{sy-'b"'f'k of opticns - management haz estimaled that $&.7 milfion will be paid fo repurchase existing Dptiens,
This is basad upen the mid-point of the Indmgu\e Institutionai Beokbuitd Price Range. The minirmurn ameunt
payable under the repurchase is $nil whilst the maximum payable under the offer to repurchase Oplions, based

5

on the mid-point of the indicative Institutional Bcekbuild Price Range, is $11.2 miilien.

6. 54 COMMENTARY ON MAJOR BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2004

The key balance sheat items 8t 31 Decembar 2004 are:
Trade receivables due on erdinary commaercial terms
-« Infangibie assets inc [m,mq-
- 559 miltion goodwill arising en the acguisiion of NZJobs on 1 March 2004, This i armortised ovar four years and
has g carrying value e{ bé.f miliion,
- $3.7 miltion goodwill arising an the acguisition of SelfCert on 1 July 2084, Thi
has a carrying value of $3.3 million.

is amortised over four years and

addition to ardinary trade creditors and accreals, '|3>:4ya5“lef' include unearnad |'?{,0me relabing te paymenls in

stivance for advertising packs which are subseguently utitised over s months, 551 and annusl leave provisions.

183

Te current tax tability includes tax payable with respect te FY04 and a provision for 51 FY0E,
6.15 IMPACT OF AUSTRALIAN EGUIVALEMTS TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS {AIFRS!

SEEK will be reqguired to prepare financial statements which comply with Australian eguivalents te International
53irﬁancie | Reporting Standards [AIFRSE as issued by the Australian ;ﬂ\{;{;ounti'}q Standards Beard, from 1 July 2005,
The financial report for the half year ending 21 December 2008 wiil be the { =t financial r—*'pfwl preparad in
Lom;_)haa{,e with AIFRS. Comparative information will be required to e restated to reflact the applization of AFFRS Lo
thal comparalive period.

During 2004, SEEK established a preject team te manage and plan the transition to AIFRS, te ensure all stakeholders
are informed and to identify solutions to issces which arise during the project. Detaidled technical evatuations,
calzulations of transition sdjustments and management of any process or systerm changes required, are underway.

Based on the snatysis completad to date, the Directers consider that the foliowing material adjustrments will be
reguired in the FY0# reported results [and the comparative FYE5 reported resuits):

bt



Goodwill

Under AGAAS purchased goodwill is required to be amortised on a straight line basis over a period not exceeding
2% years, SEEK currently amortises goodwill associated with the acquisition of NZJobs and SelfCert on a straight
basis over four years,

Under AIFRS, straight Line amortization of goodwilt will be prohifrited, and will be replaced by annual impairsent
testing focussing on the cash flows of the related cash generating unit which may or may not give rise to impairment
charges. Amaorlisalion recognisad iz prioy years will not ke reinstated.

T8e Forecasts include $2.5 million of amortisation in FYS8S and $2.% million in FYS8. Under AIFRS such amaortisation
charges wili net be made resulling inincreases of these ameonts in reported profits alter tax {all cther things
being equall. The goodwill bhalance at 3 July 2004 of $9.2 millien relating the NZJobs [$5.5 millien] and SellCert

[$3.7 miliion} will be subject to an annual impairment test,

Share hased incentive payrments

Under AGAAP, there is no requirement o make accoenting entries to recognise an expense for share based
payments, SEEK does not currently make accounting entries with respect to the options issued o employees unil
rom employees are recognisad in the statement of

they are exercised, st which time the amounls receivabie §

al.

wancial position as share capi

Under AIFRS equity based compensation fo emgioyees wilt be recognised as an expense in respect of the services
rendered. The value of that instrument mest be determined at the date of grant and then sxpensed on a pro rata
basis over the vesting period of the instrument.

st The actual

B2 expense below in relation to share hased payments is based on 2 current fair value asses
expense for FY0E and FY06 will be impacted by any further eplions thal may be granted during these periods and as
5 consequence of the reguirament to contineousty ‘troe up or prospactively revise the estimate of the number of
pptions whick wilt vest if circumstances change over the vesting pariod, for example the number of options expected
o vest may be affectad by the achievernent of service and vesting conditions.
SEEK estimates that the charge which witl be included in the Y04 reported resald
exacutive optiens witl e $1.7 millien [FY05 $1.2 million].

s wilh respect fo employes and

The table below sets cul the impact on the Forecasts under AMFRS of the adjustments for geodwill and share based

incentive paymeants:
Table 6.7

n

-

S

-
s
o
2
i

Areortisation 2.5 25
Share based incentive payments [%.2] [1.7]
Net #rofit After Tax ~ Australian international Financial Reporting Standards 18.4 271

The impact of these adjustments would be to increzse the net assets al 31 Decemnber 2804 by $0.7 m

&7,



side from these adivstments the Diractors do not believe the transition te AFRS will resull in any matarisl
adjustments te the FY06 reported results [which will include FY05 comparative informatien).

The following surnmarises other areas in which AIFRS well impact SEEK's sceounting policies.

income Tax

incorne tax will be calcuiated based on the balance sheel” approach, replacing the current income statement
method. This may resull in the recognition of additional deferred tax assets and tiabilities. In addition, tax losses will
be recognised as an asset te the extent that feture taxable profits are probable. This may resull in greater deferred
tax assels when comparad to the existing criteria for recognising fulure income tax benefits when tax losses are
required to be virtuatly certain of being reatised and timing differences where reatisation is required fo be assurad
beyond reasonable doubt,

The change to the balance shesl approach may result in the recognition of additionsl defarred tax assets and
Lizbilities with a cosrresponding impacl te retained earnings.

Movernents in deferred tax assets and Lisbilities will generslly be recognised in the statement of Fnancial
performance.

Buy-Back of Options
Under AGAAP, the Employes Option Buy-Back will be charged against equity. Under AIFRS any subseguent
repurchases of options wili be charged against equity except to the extent that the buy-back price exceeds the i

i
vzlug of the options al the buy-back date. In this case the excess over fair value will be recognised as an expense in

e statement of financisl performance.
Transaction cosis
Transaction costs siated with the Qffer are sxpecied o be approximately 56.8m. Both AGAAR and AIFRS require
thal such cosls he d \;efs, a;aiﬁsi‘ aguily rather than in the statement of financial performance, Where such costs
are tax deductlible AIFRS requires that the amount charged against equity be net of related tax and that a
corresponding future income tax benefit also be recognised. AGAAP does not reguire the tax effect of the costs te be
reflected in equity and in effect the tax balance of such costs is recognised over time as the deduciions are ailowad
for fax purposes,
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7.1 GENERAL COMMENTS

b aurnber of facters, beth dfic to SEEK and of 3 L]"i"{:"IcL[ nature, may
affect the future operating a ind fna“f|al performance of SEEK and the
outcome of an investment in SEEK. There can be no guarantee that SEEK
will achieve s slated ohjectives, that its Forecasts will be met or that
forwarg [UUkI”!’L} staternents wilt be realised. The ability to achisve the
Forecasts are dependent upen various generai as well as Company-specibic
factors which are described in Sections 7.7 and 7.3

Motential investors shouid read the entire Prospectus before deciding
whether Lo invest in SEEK, and, in particular, should consider the
assumptions underlying the pro spactive financial information [see Seclion 4]
and the risk [zctors that coeld alfect the Enanciat performance of SEEK,

Thizs Section describes certzin risks asseciated with an mvestment in SEEK.
Each of the risks inciuded elow couid potentially have a material adverse
imgact on SEEK's operating and “1r1anua perfermansce, 2nd its ability to pay
dividends. Prospective investors shouid specilically {,enaider the risk faclors
contained within this Section and the other ii‘».f'GfTT]&tiO["l containad @n this
Prospectes in light of their own personal circemstances and seek prefessional
advice from an acceuntant, steckbroker, lawyer or other professional adviser
before deciding whether to invest in SEEK,

7.2 SPECIFIC RISK FACTORS

SEEXs I‘“tU"e performance will depend on a number of faclors, inciuding
SEERs ability to

maintain adequats {;oniwl VBN BXpEnsas

- attract, retain and motivate gualibed emg}loyees Wit
entrepreneurial spri;

- mwniter and manage major eperational risks (e.g. W"bsite upgradest;
secure favoursble trading terms with countarparties including distribution
arrangernents with majer online wepsites, suppiiers and contracters; and

- reacl e customer and market demands and changes in its competitive
environrment,

the SEER

There can be no assurance given that SEEX will succes 'fulty addrass any or
all of these factors, and the failure o do se could negatively impact the
opersting and financial performance of its business.



Downturs in the Employment Market

The performance of SEEK will be influenced by the averall employmaent
market. This in turn is influenced by the general condition of the Australian
ecanomy which by its nature is cyclical and subject to change. A dewnturn in
the Australian emgloyment markel may adversely impact SEEK s financial
parfermance, SEE K = Sensi wlly oA downturn in the employrment marke s
autlined further in Section £.5

Campetiting

The online employment classibieds secter is highly compealitive. SEEK's
financial per'[‘orrf'ae nce could be adversely affected it exists ng or rew
cormpetiters reduce SEEK's market share from its current fevel through
price comgetition or other means.

Reliance on Key Personmel

SEEX has a number of key senior personnel. Although each senior
managerent slaff member has appropriate employment arrangements with
SEEX and owns Shares or oplions which assist in aligning management's
interests with those of Shareholders, there can be ne assurance that SEER
will ba abla te retain these kay parsornel,

information Technology

SEEK s management infermation and other 1 systems are designed Lo
enhance the efficiency of its operations with a focus upon the customer
facing website. Business activities rely upon an |1 infrastructure heused in
two primary locations. Asy interruptions fo these operations could impair
the ahility for SEEK o continue nermal transaclion processing.

Standard backup and restoration procedures are in place, howsaver ffet'p"t'—*'
thi:—;, anatural disaster or other unforasesn event thal results in a loss of

coess o the SEEK website, the less or corrugtion of data or the inability to
process transactions could have a negative impact on SEEK's performance.
SEEX has committed to the development of a formalised disaster racovery
plan and haz allocated capital in the 2006 budget to further manage this
risi.

Maintenznce of Professional Repulation and Hrand Name

SEEK s success is heavily reliant on its reputztion and branding. Unforesesn
issues or events, which place SEER's reputzation at risk, may impact on its
future growth and profitainslity. Many of SEEK's engagements are obiained
froee: referrals by existing custorners; any factors Lhm diminish SEEK's
repuiztion or that ef any of its persannei couid impede its ability to compele
successiully and result in adverse effacts on its future business plans,

Threat of New Technology

SEEX cperates an online employment classibieds business, SEEK's financisl
perfermance or operating margins could be adversely affected il the
popuiarity of the internet as 3 medium for emmployment advertising were fo
dirninish due to the ermergence of new technology.
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2.

Structural Changes in the Nature of the Recruitment Market

The performance of SEEK may be influenced by structurzl changes in the
recruitrnent market. SEEK derives a significant proportion of its revenues
from advertisements placed by recruitment consuitants, IF jphseekers were
irs the future to wbilize the services of recruitmesnt consullants fess than the
axtent to which they are presently utilised, SEER s revenues would be
adversely impacted.

Trading Post-Listing

The price at which the Shares may trade following Listing will be affected by
the =uppiy and derand of Shares including, in particular, the fact that the
anly Existing Sharesholders that have conlirmed thal they will not dispose of
or etherwize deal in any Shares that they hold immediately foliowing the
Offer, until SEEK has reported its audited financial resulls for FY2006
lexcept in order 1o zocept 2 tzkeover bid or particpate in 2 scheme of
arrangement proposed in accerdance with the Corporations Actl are the
antities assoeciated with the Executive Directors. No other Existing

Shareholder has given a simitar confirmation.

7.3 GEMERAL RISK FACTORS

Share Market Conditions

The Skhares may trade on ASX fellowing Listing at a price higher or lower
than the Final Price. There can be ne guarantes that an active market in the
Shares witl develop. The price at which the Shares trade following Listing
will be alfected by the financial performance of SEEK and by external
factors, including movemenss on nternatienzl share markets, the tevel of
interesi rates and exchange rates, general demestic and international
ecenomic conditions and gevernment policies relating Lo tazation and other
matters,

General Economic Conditions and Cutlook

Az a provider of ermployment classifieds, SEEK is dependent on the general
conditions and outiook of the Australian econemy, The Australian economy
may in turn be alfected by ievels of business spending, inflation, interest
rates, exchange rates, access to debt and capital market, and government
fiscal, monetary and regulatory policies. Although SEEK helieves that, as the
leading online ermployrment classifieds business in Australia and New
Zealand, it is better pesitionad Lo withstand a downturn in business
spending patterns than many other employment classifieds business
prolonged and significant downturn in general economic cenditions may
have a material adverse impact upon SEEK s trading and financial
parfermance.

Acts of Terrorisen and Juthreak of Internationsi Hostilities

An act of terrorism er an outbrezk of international heslitities may ocour,
adversely affecting consumer confidence, customer spending and share
market performance. This may have an adverse impaot on SEEK's
operating, finsncisl and Share price performance.
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St Kilds VIC 3182

23 March 2005

Subject: Investigating Accountant’s Report on Historical and Forecast Financial
Information and Financial Serviees Gaide

Dear Sirs

We have prepared this report on historical and forecast financial information of SEEK
Limited and its controlled entities {the Company or SEEK) for inclusion in a Prospectus
dated on or about 23 March 2004 {the Prospecius) relating to the issue of New Shares. The
final number of New Shares to be offered will be dependent on the participation of
Existing Shareholders in the Buy-Back which SEEK is underiaking concurrently with this
offer as described in Sections 2.1 and 9.3 of the Prospectus.

Expressions defined in the Prospectus have the same meaning in this report.

The nature of this Report is such that it should be given by an entity which holds an
Australian Financial Services licence under the Corporations Act 2001 {Cwlith).
PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Lid is wholly owned by PricewaterhouseCoopers and
holds the appropriaie Australian Financial Services licence.

Scope
You have requested PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Lid to prepare an lnvestigating
Accountant’s Report {the Repori} covering the following informaiion:

Historical financial information
(a) the historical financial performance of the Company for the years ended 30
June 2003 and 30 June 2004, set out in Table 6.1 and Table 6.5 of the
Prospectus; and
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() the historical statement of financiad position as at 31 December 2004 and
the pro forma statement of financial position as at 31 December 2004, set
out in Table 6.6 of the Prospectus, the latter of which assumes completion
of the contemplated transactions disclosed in Section 6.13 of the Prospectus
{the pro forma transactions).

{collectively, the Historical Financial Information).

Forecast financial information
(<) forecast financial performance of the Company for the years ending 30 June
2005 and 30 June 20006, set out in Table 6.1 and Table 6.5 of the Prospectus.
(the Forecasts).

This Report has been prepared for inclusion in the Prospectus. We disclaim any
assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this Report or on the Historical Financia
Information or the Forecasts to which it refates for any purposes other than for which it
was prepared.

Scope of review of Historical Financial Information

The Audited Bistorical Financial Information set out in Tables 6.1, 6.5 and 6.6 of the
Prospectus has been extracted from the audited financial statements of the Company,
which were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. PricewaterhouseCoopers issued an
unmodified audit opinion on the financial statemenis.

The Historical Financial Information incorporates such adjustments as the Directors
considered necessary to reflect the operations of the Company going forward. The
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Historical Financial Information,
including determination of the adjustments.

We have conducted our review of the Historical Financial Information in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standard AUS 902 “Review of Financial Reports™. We made such
inquiries and performed such procedures as we, in our professional judgement, considered
reasonable in the circumstances including:

. an analytical review of the audited financial performance of the Company for the
relevant historical period;
. a review of work papers, accounting records and other documenis;
(2)
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. a review of the assumptions used to compile the pro forma statement of financial
position;
. a comparison of consistency i application of the recognition and measurement

principles in Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporiing
requirements in Australia, and the accounting policies adopted by the Company
disclosed in the Appendix to the Prospectus; and

. enquiry of directors, management and cthers.

These procedures do not provide all the evidence that would be required in an audit, thus
the level of assurance provided is less than given in an audit. We have not performed an
audit and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Review statement on Historical Financial Infermation
Based on our review, which is not an audit, nothing has come 1o owr attention which causes
us 1o believe that:

. the pro forma statement of financial position has not been properly prepared on the
basis of the pro forma transactions;

. the pro forma transactions do not form & reasonable basis for the pro forma
statement of financial position; and

. the Historical Financial Information, as set out in Table .1, Table 6.5 and Table

6.6 of Section 6 of the Prospectus does not present fairly:

(a) the historical financial performance of the Company for the years ended 30
June 2003 and 2004; and

() the historical and pro forma statement of financial position of the Company
as at 31 December 2004,

in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles prescribed in Accounting
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting roguirements in Australia, and
accounting policies adopted by the Company disclosed in the Appendix to the Prospectus.

Scope of review of Forecast financial information

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Forecasts,
including the best estimate assumptions, which include the pro forma transactions, on
which they are based.

(3)
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Our review of the best estimate assumptions underlying the Forecasts was conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standard AUS 902 “Review of Financial Reports™.
Our procedures consisted primarily of enquiry and comparison and other such analytical
review procedures we considered necessary so as to adequately evaluaie whether the best
estimate assumptions provide a reasonable basis for the Forecasts. These procedures
inchided discussion with the Directors and management of the Company and have been
undertaken to form an opinion whether anything has come to our attention which causes us
to believe that the best estimate assamptions do not provide a reasonable basis for the
preparation of the Forecasts and whether, in all material respects, the Forecasts are
properly prepared on the basis of the assumptions and are presented fairly in accordance
with the recogaition and measurement principles prescribed in Accounting Standards and
other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, and the accounting
policies of the Company disclosed in the Appendix to the Prospectus so a8 to present a
view of the Company which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s past,
current and future operations.

The Forecasts have been prepared by the Directors to provide investors with a guide to the
Company’s potential future financial performance based upon the achievement of certain
gconomic, operating, development and trading assumptions about future events and actions
that have not yet occurred and may not necessarily occur. There is a considerable degree of
subjective frdgement involved in the preparation of Forecasts. Actual results may vary
materially from the Forecasts and the variation may be materially positive or negative.
Accordingly, investors should have repard to the investment risks set out in Section 7 of
the Prospectus.

Our review of the Forecasts that are based on best estimate assumptions is substaniially
less in scope than an audit examination conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
and Assurance Standards. A review of this nature provides less assurance than an audit,
We have not performed an audit and we do not express an audit opinion on the Forecasts
included in the Prospectus.

Review statement on the Forecasts

Based on our review of the Forecasts, which is not an audit, and based on an investipation
of the reasonableness of the best estimate assumptions giving rise to the Forecasts, nothing
has come to our atteniicn which causes us to believe that:
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(a) the best estimate assumptions sef out in Section 6.3 and 6.4 of the
Prospecius do not provide a reasonable basis for the preparation of the
Forecasts;

() the Forecasts are not properly prepared on the basis of the best estimate
assumptions and presented fairly in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles prescribed in Accounting Standards and other
mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia, and the
accounting policies adopted by the Company disclosed the Appendix o the
Prospectus; and

(©) the Forecasts are unreasonable.

The underlying assumptions are subject 1o significant uncertainties and contingencies ofien
outside the control of the Company. If events do not occur as assumed, actual resulis and
distributions achieved by the Company may vary significantly from the Forecasts.
Accordingly, we do not confirm or guaranice the achievement of the Forecasts, as future
events, by their very nature, are not capable of independent substantiation.

Subsequent evenis

Apart from the matters dealt with in this Report, and having regard to the scope of our
Repott, to the best of our knowledge and belief no material transactions or events outside
of the ordinary business of the Company have come to our attention that would require
comment on, or adjustment 1o, the information referred to in our Report or that would
cause such informaiion to be misleading or deceptive.

Disclosure of Interest

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Lid does not have any interest in the cutcome of this
issue other than the preparation of this Report and participation in due diligence procedures
for which normal professional fees will be received.

Financial Berviees Guide

We have included our Financial Services Guide as Appendix A to our Report. The
Financial Services Guide is designed to assist retail clieats m their use of any general
financial product advice in our Report.

5
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Yours faithfully

Jock (¥ Callaghan
Authorised Representative of
PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Lid

&)
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Appendix A

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS SECURITIES LTD
FINANCIAL SERVICES GUIDE

This Financial Services Guide is dated 23 March 2005

i Abont us

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Lid {ABN 54 603 311 617, Australian Financial
Services Licence no 244572 ("Pw{ Securities"} has been engaged by SEEK
Limited (“"SEEK") to provide a report in the form of an Investigating Accountant’s
Report in relation to the Historical and Forecast Financial Information {ihe
“Report™} for inclugion in the Prospectus.

Applicants have not engaged us directly but have been provided with a copy of the
Report as a retail client because of your connection to the matters set out in the
Report.

2. This Financial Services Guide

This Financial Services Guide {("FSG"} is designed to assist retail clients in their
use of any general financial product advice contained in the Report. This FSG
containg information about PwC Securities generally, the financial services we are
licensed to provide, the remuneration we may receive in connection with the
preparation of the Report, and how complaints against us will be dealt with.

3. Financial services we are licensed fo provide

Our Australian financial services licence allows us to provide 2 broad range of
services, including providing financial product advice in relation to various
financial products such as securities, interests in managed investment schemes,
derivatives, superannuation products, foreign exchange contracis, insurance
producis, life products, managed invesiment schemes, government debentures,
stocks or bonds, and deposit products.

(7)
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4. General financial product advice

The Report contains only general financial product advice. B was prepared without
taking intc account your personal objectives, financial situation or needs.

You should consider your own objectives, financial situation and needs when
assessing the suitability of the Report to your situation. You may wish to cbtain
personal financial product advice from the holder of an Australian Financial
Services Licence to assist you in this assessment.

5. Fees, commissions and ethier benefits we may recefve

PwC Sccurities charges foes to produce reports, including this Report. These fees
are negotiated and agreed with the entity who engages PwC Securities to provide a
repott. Fegs are charged on an hourly basis or as a fixed amount depending on the
terms of the agreement with the person who engages us. In the preparation of this
Report our fees have been charged on an hourly rate and are disclosed in Section 9
of the Prospectus.

Directors or employees of PwC Securities, PricewaterhouseCoopers, or other
associated entities, may receive partnership distributions, salary or wages from
PricewaterhouseCoopers.

. Associations with issuers of finaucial products

Pw( Sccurities and its authorised represeniatives, employees and associates may
from time to time have relationships with the issuers of financial products. For
example, PricewaterhouseCoopers may be the auditor of, or provide financial
services 1o, the issuer of a financial product and PwC Securities may provide
financial services to the issuer of a financial product in the ordinary course of its
business. PricewaterhouseCoopers is the auditor of SEEK and provides ongoing
taxation advice.

(8)
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7. Complaints

i you have a complaint, please raisc it with us first, using the contact details listed
below. We will endeavour to satisfactorily resolve your complaint in a timely
manner. In addition, a copy of cur internal complainis handling procedure i3
available upon request.

If we are not able to resclve your complaint to your satisfaction within 45 days of
your written notification, you are entitled to have your matter referred o the
Financial Industry Complaints Service ("FICS"), an external complaints resclution
service. You will not be charged for using the FICS service.

8. Contact Details
Pw( Securities can be contacted by sending a letter to the following address:
Jock O Callaghan
PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Lid

333 Colling Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3006

%)
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9.1 REGISTRATION AND CORPORATE STRUCTURE

SEEK was registared as 2 proprietary comgany in Vicloria on 17 September
1997 under the name Witdenbridge Progrietary Limited.

On ¥ Nevernber 1997, SEEK changed its name from Wildenbridge Proprietary
Limited to Gusto Communications Pty Ltd. On 21 Nevernber 1997, it changed

its narmne to SEEK Sommunications Py Ltd.

Or 28 March 2080, SEEK converted from a proprietary company to a public
COMpany.

On 14 Ceteber 2003, SEEK changed its name from SEEK Communications
Limited to SEEK Limited.

9.2 SHARE CAPITAL

9.2.1 Share subdivisian
On 11 March 2025, Sharehelders approved a resoalution to subdivide the

Shares or 2 three for ene bass. The sebdivision did not change any
Sharehoiders prepoertionzie interest in SEEK. The effect of the subdivision

o~

was o increase the number ol issued Shares in the capital of SEEK ¢
89,229 404 Shares to 267,718,218 Shares.

T

.22 Spaciat Shares

There are 83,660 Special Shares on issue in SEEK. These Special Shares
have been issued by SEEK o various recruitment companies aver time. The
holders of the Special Shares have Umited rights. For example, these shares
do net entitle the holders o sttend or vole at any general meeting of SEEK.

In accordance with their terms of issue, the Board has resolved to convert
the Special Shares into Shares on the Lisling of SEEK on the basis that the
holders of the Special Shares will receive three Shares for every Specisl
Share they hold, The thres for one conversien takes inte account the
subdivision referred to above.

9.2.3 Uotions
As at the date of this Prospectus;

- 938,080 Oplions bave been issued pursuant to the SEDP with exercise
prices ranging between 50,8832 and the Final Price;

- 9 118,028 Optinns have been izsued pursuant to the 508 with exercise
prices ranging between $0.04993 and $3.8333;



- 80,00 Dptiens with an exercise price of $8.5833 each have been issued to amployees of SEEX in connection with
the Selfcart acpuisition referred to in Seclion 4.3; and

- 2,250,200 Options have heen issued, a5 referred to in Section 9.6, o each of Paul Bassal, Andrew Bassat and
Matthaw Rockman with an exercize price equal to the Final Price.

9.3 THE BUY-BACK PROCESS AND TIMETABLE

.31 Background

(al On 1% March 2805, Shareholders apgroved an equal access buy back by SEEK of up te 100% of the Shares held by
Shareholders at the Buy-Back Price,

[0} The Buy-Back is subject to z maxirmurm Limit of 128.9 millien Shares, caiculated fellowing the Share subdavision
{being 42.3 millien Shares, calculated prior te the Share subdivision] [Maxirmum Boy-Back Limit], The Maximurm
Buy-Bzck Lirnit represents approximately £7% of the total nurmber of Shares as al the date of this Prospectus,

(¢} The Buy-Back applies only 1o Sharehelders, and nol 1o Optionholders, However, SEEK will make an ofifer to
Cptienholders to buy back Options issced under the SEDP and the 5GP which have vested but which |
been exercised, for the Buy-Back Price fess any 2pplicable exercize price. There are currently 6,196 53
Opticrs capable of being beught back. That buy-kack of Optiens will take place at the same time as the Buy-
Back, and pursuant to the terms and conditiens of the SEOP and the S0P No Cireclor hoids Gplions thal are
capable of being beught back under the Employes Option Buy-Back.

[d} The Buy-Back will not apply to the Special Shares. Al the time of the Buy-Back Gler, those Special Shares will
not yet have Bean convarted Lo Shares.

9.3.% Tarms of the Buy-Back
The material terms of the Buy-Back are as follows:

(a] SEEK will makes a Buy-Back Offer to 2ach Shareholder to buy back up 1o 100% of the Sharas in the capitai of
SEEK wp to the Maximum Buy-Back Limit.
(i SEEK will, on er after the date of this Prospectus, send the Buy-Back Documents te all Shareholders, together
with & copy of this Prospecius.
[c] O» receipt of the Buy-Back Documants, each Shareholder will have the bllewing choices in relation to the Buy-Back:
[i} acoept the Buy-Back Offer in respect of ail of the Shsres held by them; or
liil zccept the Buy-Back Dffer in respect of seme of the Shares heid by them, or
liilreject the Buy-Back Dffer by doing nothing.
P The maximurm sumber of Shares which may be sold by each Shareholder under the Buy-Back Offer will be
T102% of the Shares held by that Shareholder, subject to the Maximam Buy-Back Limit which witl be calculated
based on the aggregate nomber of Shares in respect of which valid acceptances under the Buy-Back are
received. If any Shareholder choosas nel te participate in the Buy-Back, the number of Shares held by that
Sharsholdes will net change.
If the number of valid acceptances received resuits in the Maxirmurm Buy-Back Limil being exceeded, a pro rata
scale back will operate to reduce the nember of Shares Lo be bought back from participsting Sharsholders to the
Maximum Buy-Back Limit.
(f] The Buy-Back Price to be paid by SEEX to participaling Sharehelders in respect of the Buy-Back Shares will be
funded from the proceeds of the Offer,
The Buy-Back is conditional on:
lif SEEK receiving acceptznces to the Buy-Back Clfer of 5t feazt the Minimum Level of Partizipation and those
accaptancas nel being withdrawn; and
lii] SEEK complying with ail the reguirements of the Corporations Act in relation Lo the Buy-Back; and
[iii] completion of the Offer.

=
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[h] The Board currently antivipates that the Buy-Back will be campleted by 21 Aprii 2005,

(i) IF the Final Price is balew the Indicative Institutional Bookbuild Price Range, accepled Buy-Back CHers may be

aither withdraws or the level of participation in the Buy-Back amended by participating Shareholders within

48 hours of SEEX notifying Shareholders of the Buy-Back Prize.

2.3.3 Determination and payrent of Buy-Back Price
The Buy-Back Price will ba the same zs the Final Price and will be paid by SEEX o participating Shareholders as
sa0n as practicabie after the Buy-Back Dale.

Y34 Corporations Act Reguirements

SEEW's abifity to purchase its Shares is governad by the Corporations Act. For the purposes of the Corporatiens Act,
the Buy-Back is an egual access scheme. The number of Buy-Back Shares will excerd of the smailest number
nf voling shares that SEEK had on issue during the 12 menths preceding the Buy-Back [referred to in the
Corporations Act as the "13/12 Hmit™], The Buy-Back GHer was, al an exlraordinary general meating of SEEK held an
11 March 2008, approved by more than 50% of Sharehelders entitled 1o vole in socordance with section 257C11] of the
Corporaticns Act.

2.3.5 Participation

for each Buy-Back Share, a Share wili be issued under the Offer, The number of Sharas issued under the Offer will
be more than the number of Buy-Back Shares as SEEK will be raising some additional capital. Further detziis are
sab gut in Saction 2.2

The SEEK Directors, and those antities which they control or with which they are associated, are entitied Lo
participate in the Buy-Back in the same manner as all other Shareheiders,

Az noted in Section 2.2, certain Sharehoiders have
ot their Shares into the Suy-Back.,

her agreed fo sell or indicated their intengion to sell afl or part

Windfyr, a whelly owned subsidiary of PBL, currently has a relevant interest in approximately 24.6% of the total vating
rights in SEEK and has indicated that it will not participate in the Buy-Back. Wirdhr has been guarantesd an
aliocation of zpproximately £.2 million Sharas {basad on the mid-peint of the Indicative Institutienal Bookbuild Price
Rangel as part of the Offer to enable it to increase its holding in SEEK 10 25.0% as at the completion of the Dffer,
Windiyr held 25 0% of SEEK at the time that it initislly invested in SEEK in Oclober 2003 Windfyr wifl gay the Final
Price for each Share i receives under the Offer
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%36 Effect on Buy-Back Shares
L rights attaching to the Buy-Back
frormn dealing in the Buy-Back Shares,

ares will be sespended on the Buy-Back Bate and SEEK will be prohibited

immediately after registration of the transler to SEEX of the Buy-Back Shares, the Buy-Back Shares will be
cancelled as required by the Corporations Act,

9.3.7 Inpact of the Buy-Back o the financial position of SEER
The Board fas considered the financial pesition of SEEK fincluding present and fulure [iai"ili?ies and contingent

lizbilities of SEEK] and, as the Buy-Back Price will be futly funded from the proceeds of the Dffer, consider that:
[al there will be no adverse effect on SEEK's state of affairs if the Buy-Back is completad;

[ni the Buy-Back will net materia l iy prejudice SEER's ability to pay its craditors; and
(¢} SEEX iz and will remain solvent after the Buy-Back is complated.

oard alsp considers that the entry into and cermplation of the Buy-Back wiil not materially adversely affect
‘= day-lo-day operaiiens.

9.4 CONSTITUTION AND RIGHTS ATTACHING TO SHARES

Shares issued pursuznt te this Prospectus will be fully paid erdinary shares in the capitat of SEEK, ranking equaslly
with all pther issued Shares. The rights attaching te Shares are set fuu’ in the Coenstitution and in certain
crreurnstances requlated by the Cerporations Act, the Listing Rules, ASTC Settlarnent Rules and the general faw.

& summary of the rights attaching to the Shares and cartzin provisiens of the Constitution is set cut below. This
sarnmary is not inlendad to be exbaustive. Investors whe wish te inspect the Constitetion may do so during the Offer
Porind at the registered office of SEEK during normal business hours.

%.4.1 Mestings of Shareholders

Each helder of Shares will be entitied to receive notice of and to attend and vole at, g neral meetings of SEEK and to
recaive ali netices, sccounts and other documents reguired to be sant lo Sharsholders ender the Constitution, the
Corporaticns Act or the Listing Rules.

4.2 Vating

Subject te any restrictions impesed by the Constitution, the Cerporations Acl and the ASX Listing Rules, every
Shareholder present in persen at a meeling of the Shareholders of SEEK or by proxy, representative or attorney has
nne vote on a show of hands and, on a poil, one vele for each Share held, In the case of an eguality of votes, the
Chairman of the meeting does net have 3 second or casling vole

The guorum reguired for a mesting of Shareheiders is two rernbers present at the time when the meeting procesds
i business.

%43 Dividends

Tre Cirectors may from time o time defermine o distribote SEER s profits by way of dwvidends, Dividends are
payabla on gl Shares, I any shares are parily paid, the dividend wild be payabla in proporticn to the armnount paid up
on those shares.

4.4 Further izsues of Shares and Iptions

Tte allotrment and izsue of Shares and Options is under the contral of the Cireclors, Subject Lo any restrictions
imposed by the Constitution, the Listing Rules or the Corporations Act, the Directors may slio}, issue or otherwise
tispose of Shares or Opticns to any person on such terms and conditions as they see fit.
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745 Transter of Shares
Shareholders may transfer Shares by a writles fransfer instrurnent in the uscal form, any form approved by the
Birectors or white SEEK is Hsted on the ASX, Shares can be transtarred eiectronically in accordance with the ASTC
‘ﬂet lerment FQL; ez and ASX reqLHrprTwento All translers must comply with the Constitution, the Corperations Act, the
Listing Rules and the ASTC Seltlerment Rutes. The Directors may refuse to registar a transter of Shares, including in
arcurnstances where the ransfer is notin registrable form or the refusal to register the ransfer is permitted by the
Listing Rules or ASK. Subject to the Listing Ruies, Shares are freely transferabie. The Cirectors must refuse Lo
register a transler of Shares whers required to do se by the Listing Rutes. In addition, subject to the Corperations Act
and the Listing Rules, the Gireclors may, in limited circumstances as described in the Constitution, apply & heiding
lock to prevent a transfer of Shares.

4.6 Proportional takesver provisions

Trhe Constitution contains provisions which proh:bit the registration of any transter of Shares giving effect to an offer
made under a preperiional lakecver bid until the parsens holding Shares i a class [or which the alfer under the
takeover bid was made have passed a resolution approving the bid. The bidder and any associate of the bidder are
excloded from voting on that resolution. To remain effective, these provisions must be renewed by SEEK in ils general
meeting every three years

4.7 Winding-ug

Subject te the rights attaching te any Shares on a wiﬁdir1q~"p of SEEK all assets that may be legally distributed
among the Shareholders will be distributed to Sharsholders in erder to e‘ v capitat paid ug on thair Shares and
thstribute any surplus in proportion to the ameant paid up [not cradited) on Shares held by them.,

7.4.8 Share buy-hacks
Subject te the provisiens of the Corperatiens Act and the Listing Rules, SEEK may buy-back its Shares on rerms and
at Umes determingd from time to time by the Directors,

9.4.% Direcinrs

Tre minimam nurmber of Directors is three. No person other than a retiring Director shall be eligible for slection a5 a
Director 2t a genaral mesating unless he or some other member, at least 3% business days belore the general
meeting, gives a sigrned netice i writing giving consent to the nomination and signilying his candidature for the
pifice. However, in the case of & person recommended by the Diractors for 2lection, 10 business days only shal be
necessary.

& Director other than s Maraging Director shall not hold effice for more than three years or beyond the third annual
general meeting foliowing his agpeintment without sebmitting hirmself for re-election. The Directors may, from time
to tme, appoing one or more of their body to the office of Managing Direcior for such peried and on such terms as
ey think fit,

The guorum for a Directors’ meeting is two or any greater number determined from tirme to tirme by the Sirectors.

T4.H0 Biteration of Constitution
In accordance with the provisions of the Corporaticns Act, the Constitution may only be amended by a special
resolution passed by at least three-gearters of Shareholders present and voting al a general meeting of SEEK.

9.5 EMPLOYEE AND DIRECTOR SHARE AND OPTION PLANS

251 Staff Ooticn Plan
There are 9118028 Optiens on ssue under the S0P SEEK dees nelintend Lo issue any further Options under the S0

Invitation and Eligihiiity

The Board has the authority to invite empioyess o z2pply for Optiens. The total number of Gptions on issus under the
S0P cannnt excead 0% of the total number of 5hc§f(:’.‘:,— o issue in the capitai of SEEK,
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Vesting of Options
Options vest in instatments over a peried of four years from the issve date. Vestad Optinns must be exercised during
& relevant exercise paring or as otherwise determined by the Board.

Terms of Options
Options scguired under the S0P cannat be transtarred or otherwise disposed of except with the prior written consent
of the Board.

Optionhiolders are net entitled to participate in any rights issues by SEEK or to receive any dividends paid by SEEK
pricer {o the exercise of the Options. The Optiens witl not confer a II{jhl ta notices of general meetings, a right 1o
stiend or speak at generai meetings nor 3 right to vole at general meelings except a2 may be required by law.

HSEEK makes 2 honus issue of Shares to Shareholders, gach Optionholder shall receive 2 bonus issue of Options Lo
rmaintain the same proportion of Opticns hald by the Dpticshoider to the number of ‘31 |5 O 1BELE,

Cessation of Employment
Han Optinnhelder ceases to be employad by SEER;

= all Optiens whech have net yel vested will lapse;

- all vested but unexercised Oplions moest be exercised at the first axercize period as determined by the Board
foliowing the Optienhoider's cessation of empleyment; and

- any Gptions which have vested but are not exercised by the Optionholder will lapse

- Al Options will avtomatically lapse iF not exercised pursean? to the SO within six years of their issue

Liquidity Events
The occurrence of certain liquidity evenls may resuit in the acceleration of vesting of Op ions. The tiguidity events
inciude a dispesal of SEEK's business and a disposal by Sharehoiders of 1[]0”*&. nf the Shares, or the acquisition by

nne of the Sharehoiders of all of the remaining Shares,

Variation of the SOP

-« Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board shall have the power to amend or vary the S0P,

- Wihere a variation 1o the SOP is likely to have a material adverse effact on the rights of Optionhelders, then such a
variation will require the approval of the helders of mora than 50% of the Optiens which have been issued under
he SGF and have not yet been sxercised lincluding both vested and unvested Options].

%.5.2 Sentor Executive Gption Plan
There are 930,020 Options on issue ender the SEOP. SEER does nel intend to issue any ferther Options undar the SEQR

Invitation and Eligihiiity
Tre Board has the authority to invite Senior Executives to apply for Options under the SEDR

The Board refains sole discretion in determining who is eligible for appointment as a Senior Executive, the number of
Options o be ssued Lo Seniar Executives and the internat system used Lo rate Senior Executives.

The total nomber 05 Optinns on issug in aogregate under the SEOR and 50 cannet exceed 10% of the tolal number
nf Shares anissue in the capital of SEEK,

Vesting

Options wilt vest over a four year pericd commenzing en
determined by the Board. Vesting is subject to the rating achieved by
performance mansgement systern.

Be date that the Options are issued or 2t such ather dats
the Senier Executive in SEEK s intermal
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Terms of Options
Options scguived under the SEOP cannot be translerred or otharwise disposad of axcept with the pricr writien
consent of the Board.

Senior Executives are not entitied to participate in any rights issues by SEEK or to receive any dividends paid by SEEK
pricr to the exercise of the Options. The Optiens witl not confer a right te notices of general meetings, a right o
stiend or speak at general meetings nor 3 right to vole at general meetings except as may be required by law.

HSEEK makes 2 bonus issue of Shares to Shareholders, each Senior Executive will receive a bonus issue of Gptions
i maintain the same proportion of Opticns hald by the Senior Executive to the number of Sharas on issue,

Cessation of employment
Ha Senior Executive ceases to be amployed within 12 months of being issued with Optiens lor another date
determined by SEEX], all Cplions will lapse, irrespactive of whether those Cplions have already vested.

Ha L"«em’or' Executive ceases employment after 12 months of being issved Options [or anothar date determined by
SEEKS, then, upen their cessation of empioyment, 2 certain number of Dptiens may vest in the Senior Executive for
he perod during which they cease employment, based on their most recent rating in SEEKs internal performance
managernent systermn. That Senior Executive wifl have Lo exercize all vested Options within 30 days of ceasing to be
emnployed by SEEX. Thersalter, all unexercised Options will lapse,

Al Cptions witl autematically lapse f not exercised within six years of their issue,

Liquidity Events

Tte ncourrence of cartain [iquieﬁity avanls r‘my resuit in the acceleration of vesting of Options. The liguidity events
inciude a dispesal of SEEK's business and a disposal by Sharehoiders of 1[]0”*’ nf the Shares, or the acquisition by
nne of the Sharehoiders of all of the remaining Shares,

Variation of the SEGP
Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board witl have the power to armend or vary the SEGR.

Where a variation to the SEGP is likely to have a masterial adverse effect on the r|q 185 of Senior £xecutives, then such
5 variation will require the approval of Senier Executives who hold in aggragate 50% or more of the Options on issue
tn Senior Executives which have not yal been exercized fincluding both vested and unvested Options],

%53 Exerngt Share Plan
No invitations have yet been issued to Employees Lo acquire Shares under the 258 SEEK intends o issue myviiations
o certain Emptoyess under the ESP during the Offer Period ss part of the Priority OHar

Invitation and Eligihiiity
Tre Board has the authority to invite Employees to apply for Shares under the E5P

A invitalion to acquire Shares under the ESP may specify, at the alection of the Board, that Shares will be allecated
to an Empleyes or Lo a trustes company [ Trustee™ on behalf of the Employes. SEEK haz appointed TPU Share Plans
Bty Lid as Trustes

Tre total number of securities on issue under all Employee Equity Incentive Plans (ot inciuding any Sh
purchased on markel under a 5 l'csry BECE |I'f—*' arrangement] cannot excead or be capable of excesding 10% of the
mtal number of 25 DN issue at any time e capital of SEEK.
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Conditions
Ivitations to acguire Shares under the ESP must contain

- no conditions which must be satisfied before the Employes has heneliciat interest in the Shares,
- no conditions that ceuld resuit in an Empleyes forfeiting their Shares under the £51; and
- a condition specifying that an Employes may not dispose of Shares acquired ender the ESP for three years.

Allocation of Shares

Upon receipt of a duly signed atce,nlafsr'“ form from an Employee, SEEK will allocate to the Employee the sumber of
Shares appliad for under the ESP Shares witl, a1 the discretion of the Board, be allecated by baing issued or
transferred to, or purchased lor, the Employee jor the Trustes on behialf of the Employest,

Purchase Price
The Board bas the sole discretion to determine the purchase price for the Shares. The pus d 1E5E
issued under the Priority Offer following the accepiance of invitations made under the ESP shall

price for the Shares
be the Finai Price,
Amendment

The Board may at any time by written instrument or by resoiution, amend ali or any of the provisions of the ESR,
Where a proposed amendment Lo the E58 witl or is tikely to have a material adverse effect on the rights or interasts
nf the Employees, then sech amendrment or variztion witl reguire the spproval of more than 50% of those Employees
who held Shares under the ESP.

254 Deferred Share Plan
No invitations have ye! been issued to Employees o acquire Shares under the 5P SEEK intends Lo izses invilations
o certain Emptoyess during the CHer Period as part of the ! riority Offer.

Invitation and Eligihiiity
Te Board has the authority to invite Employees to apply for Shares under the 850

Arinvitalion to acguire Shares under the DSE may specify, at the election of the Board, that Shares will be allocated

o an Empleyee or te a trustee company on behalf of the Employae ["Trustee”]. SEEK has appointad CPU Share Plans
Pty Lid as Trustes. The invitation will alse specify the conditions for participation in the DS#, and the peried during
which an Employee may nol Dispose of their Shares ["Non-Disposat Period™}. The invitations issued o Employees
under the DSP as part of the Priority Offer will specily a Non-Cispesal Parind of three years,

Tre total number of secyrities on issue under all Employee Equity Incentive Plans [not including any Shares
purchased on markel under a salary sacrifice arrangement] cannot excead or be capable of exceading 10% of the
ital number of Shares on issue al any Lime in the capital of SEEK.

Conditions

fie Board may, when inviting Empioyees to zcguire Shares under the DSPimpose any condifions it deems fit
for particigation in the DEP or for the vesting of beneficial intarests in Shares pursuant Lo the 251 inciuding,
witheut Hmilation:

p{:"I{"‘{ mance crileria relaling o sny [or any combination] of the Empleyes, SEEK, a division of SEEK's business and
the greup; and
- conditions relating to an Employee’s continued employment with the groap

The Board may, when mviting Ermployees to a f'qui*‘e Shares under the D58, zlse specily condilions or croumsiances
al will or may [at the Board's discretion] resull in an Employes forfeiting their rights to Shares, and rights under

w BSP The invitations issued to Employess under the L].‘:.} a5 part of the Priorizy Offer will not specity any
particular vesting or forfeiture conditions,
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Allocation of Shares

Upon receip?t of 2 duly signed acceptance form from an Employee, SEEK will allocate to the Employee the number of
Shares appliad for undar the DSP Shares will, at the discretion of the :’mcnd b'—" allocatad by being issuad or
transferred to, or purchased lor, the Employee jor the Trustes on behialf of the Employest,

Purchase Price

Tre Board has the sole discretien to determine the purchase price for the Sharas, The purc h' se p fice for the Shares
issued under the Priority Offar following the acceptance of invitations made under the B5P < ha the Finsl Price.
Amendment

The Board may at any tima by written in&'.tr'umef%.t or by resoiution, amend zli or any of the provisions of the DS8
Where a propesed amendment Lo Lhe OSF will or is Likely to have a material adverse aHect on the rights or interests
nf hoiders of Shares under the D52, then &ur,h amendmeant or variation will require the approval of more than 50%
ot these Emplayess who held ihalef undar the DS#,

2.5.5 Performance Rights ard Uptions Plan
There are no Options on issue under the PROP,

Invitation and Eligihiiity
The Bozrd has the authority to invite Employees to appely for Qptions under the PROP, The invitation will
conditions for participation in the PRGP.

Tre total number of secyrities on issue under all Employee Equity Incentive Plans [not including any Shares
purchased on markel under a salary sacrifice arrangement] cannot excead or be capable of exceading 10% of the
ital number of Shares on issue al any Lime in the capital of SEEK.

Conditions

‘fie Board may, when inviting Empioyees to acguire Gplions under the PROP, irmpose any conditions 8 deems fit
£ particigation in the PROF or for the vesting of beneficial interests in O;_)l:rma pursuan? fo the PROP including,
witheut Hmilation:

p{:"I{"‘{ mance crileria relaling o sny [or any combination] of the Empleyes, SEEK, a division of SEEK's business and
the greup; and
- conditions relating to an Employee’s continued employment with the group.

The Board rmay, when nviting Employees to 2oquire Cplions under the PROP, also specily conditions or
circurnstances that will or may (st the Bcart s discrationt reselt in an Employes forfeiting their rights to Options, and
rights under the PROP,

Exercise

Vested Oplions must be exercised during relevant exercise perinds as determined by the Beard.

Terms of Gptions

Options scguived under the PROP cannot e transterred or otherwise disposad of axcept with the pricr written
consent of the Board.

Optionhiolders are net entitled to participate in any rights issues by SEEK or to receive any dividends paid by SEEK
pricr to the exercise of the Options, The Options witl not confer a Hg hi Lo niotices of generat meetings, a right to

stiznd er speak at general meetings nor a right to vole at general meelings excepl a3 may be reguired by law,

HSEEK makes 2 honus issue of Shares to Shareholders, gach Optionholder shali receive 2 bonus issee of Options Lo
rmaintain the same proportion of Opticns held by the Dptieshoider to the number of ‘31 ares on issue.

The Bosrd may impose disposal restrictions which apply to the Sharas issued an exercise of Options.
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Cessation of Employment
Han Optinnhelder ceases to be employed by SEEK:

- all Optiens which have nel yel vested will lapse;

- all vested but unexercised Oplions mast be exercised during the frst exercise peried follewing the Optienhoider's
cessation of Emgloyment; and

< any Options which have vested but are not exercisad by the Optionholder will lapse,

Al Cptions will autemaltically lapse # not exercised pursuant to the PROP within the aption term, which may not
excead 10 years alter the date of issue,

Variation of the PROP
Subject to the Listing Rules, the Board shali have the power te amend or vary the PROF

Where a variation to the PROP is likely to have a material adverse effect on the rights of Cplionholders, then such a
variztion will reguire the approvat of the holders of more than 50% of the Options which have been issued under the
PRGF and have not yet bean exercised flincluding both vested and unvested Optiens].

9.6 EMPLOYMENT AND OPTION AGREEMENTS

SEEK has enterad into separate employment and opiions agreemeants with ezch of Pacl Bassat, Andrew Bassal and
Matthew Reckrmnan, on sebstantially simifar terms. The key commercial terms are described below

%.6.7 Ernployraent

SEEK has cemmitted to empley each Executive Girector for an initial term of twa years from the date of the Listing,
during which terrm the Executive Director has agresd not to resign. In addition, ne Executive Diracter wiil resign when

such resignation would take eMfect within four months of another Executive Director resigning. Each Executive

Director will be pait a salary of 5360,080 per annum pius compulsory superannuation, The salary wii{ he reviawad

annually.

F.6.2 fptions
Each Executive Director is to be issued with 2,250 008 Op?icras The Options vest, subject te that Exec utwe “l* 2clor

still being employed by SEEK, as to 30% on 1 January 2807, as to ancther 35% on 1 January 2808 and as io the
balance on 1 January 2809,

Options which have vested anly hacoms capable of exercise if and to the extent of the satisfaction of 2 per1ﬂr‘mance
hurdle bazed on a compa*‘iaen of the lotal shareholder returs [zppraciation in share price plus dividends] of SEEK to
the total shareholder returns of a group of companies identified in the 2 agreen nts as SEEK's pears for the period

or Listing to the date of vesl ny. SEEK rmust rank al or above the meadizn of that peer groug in terms of tolal
shareholder return over the per’ﬂd i order for ary vested options to be capable of exercise, To the extent that SEEK's
tolal shareholder return tor a relevant period ranks above that median, further vested options relating to that period
hecorne capable of exercise. Where SEEK s ranking for a period s above 78% of the peer group, that achisvernens may
be credited in other perinds where nol all of the vested options refating to that period becarne capable of exercise.

e‘w“

The Exercise Price for the Qptions is the Final Price.
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9.7 DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Board has established a BREP to provide Shareholders with the opportunity of reinvesting some or all of their
dividends in Shares, rather thar receiving those dividends in cash. The DRIP is not currently eperative, and there are
ne current plans o make the DRP eperative. If the Board reselves to make the DRIP aperstive, SEEK will immediztaly
stivise Shareholders and the ASX. The feilowing s a summary of the main features of the DRP:

.71 Eligibiity

A3l Sharsholders are eligible to participate in the DRI? except Shareholders whose address is outside of Austratia or
New Zeaiand. However, the Board is entitled to make 3 final determination as Lo whether a Sharsholder is eligible to
particigate in the DRI and to change sny such determination.

9.7.2 F’az"ti‘ﬁipaiim
Efigible Shareholders under the DRI may elect to participate in the DRP in respect of zll or some of their Shares.
A Share hJ[ der may vary or terminate their participation in the DREP by notice to SEEK s Registry.

9 7.3 Operation of the Plan
he Board may, inits absciute discretion, determing to
& Shareholder who elects to participate in the DR

g new Shares or cause the ransfer of exis tl”ﬁ} Shares to

2.7.4 Alocation Price of Shares

Shares will be issued or transferred under the DRI? at the volume weighted average market price of all Shares seid
on the ASK during the five consecutive trading days irmmediately preceding, and inclusive of, the retevant Record
Date, less a percentage disceunt [if anyl determined by the Board from Lime to time. However, the price may be
sdjusted in such manner as the Board considers appropriate fo preserve aquity between BRP Participants and other
nen-participating Sharsholders.

2.7.5 Entitlament

The number of Shares to be issved o a DRI Participant will be determined by dividing the armount available for
reirvestment by the Allecation Price and rounding that nurnber ug to the nearest whele nurber. The amount
avaitable for reinvestment is the dividend nay thle on the Participating Shares as at the Record Date for thal dividend
less any withiolding tax or other sum whick SEEK is entitled or required o retain in relation Lo the dividend.

9.7.6 Vartation, Suspension and Termination by the Board

The Board has the power te terminate the DRI by giving notice to Participants and to amend, vary or substitete any
nf the terms of the DR the DRP is suspended, the Board may determing Lo recommence the ORP a1 any fime, and
pr such conditions a3 the Boeard thinks K.

7.7.7 Costs
No brokerage, commission, siamg uty or ather transaction costs will be payable by any Participant in respect of the
issue or transfer of Partic pﬂtm Shares under the DRP

378 {Iuﬁtatﬁszﬁ
SEEK waill apply to ASX for guetation of Shares issued under the DRI in socordance with the Listing Rules,

7.8 TAXATHON CONSIDERATIONS

Tre Australian taxation consequences of any investment in Shares will depend upon an investor's particular
circurnstances. Yoo should make your own enguiries concerning the taxation consequences of an mnvesiment in
SEEK. 1 you are in doubt as to the course you should follow, you shouid consull your stockbroker, lawyer, accountant
orather professional adviser,

The Girectors expect that SEEK will be faxed in Austrslia as a peblic company,
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9.9 OFFER MAMAGEMENT AGREEMENT

On 23 March 2008, SEEK and the Lead Manager entered inte the Clfer Management Agreement. Under the Offer
Management )’-\greemenl the Lead Manager agreed o manage the Offer, including the bookbuild and sliocstion
process for the Offer

SEEK has agreed to pay the Lead Manager a management fee of 2.8% of the tolal proceeds of the Offar on the date
of issue of the New Shares, and an incentive fae of up to 1.25% of the grocesds of the Offer within 14 days of the
issue of the New Shares, éhe incentive fee is payabie at the absolute discretion of SEEK acting reasonably and in
good faith having regard to the quality of the sxecution of the Offer, the guality of new investars sttracted to SEEK's
share register, and the pricing of the Offer in the contaxt of prevailing market conditions.

SEEK has also agreed to pay or reimburse the Lead Manaqer for various costs incurred in connection with the Offer
inciuding all legal costs [up e a maximum of $50,200), additienal out of pocket expenses, any stamg duty in ralation
to the Oifer Management Agreement and all reasonzble costs paid or incurred in respect of any review of this
pspecles undertaken by A‘«X ASIC or any othar requ latory body. The Lead Mansoer will pay sli starnping, handiing
orather faes payabie to retail brokers in respect of the Offer,

Under the Oifer Management Agreermnant, SEEK gives certain representations, warranties and ander'takinqﬁ The
undertakings inciude that SEEK will not, without the prier written consent of the Lead Manager [such consent not 1o

be unrezzonaidy withheld or delayed], at any time after the date of the Dffer Management Agreement and bafora the

expiration of 68 days aftar the issue of the New Shares, allet or agree to allot or indicate in any way that it may orowill
slior or agres to 2liot any Shares or ether securities that are convertible or exchangeahie into equity, or that
represent the right e receive aquity, of SEEK or a related body corporate of SEEK, or do anything econermicaltly

equivslent to any of those things, other than purseant fo:

-~ the CHer,
-« the GHer Management Agresment;

« the Employas Equity Incentive Plans, o
- a purchase agreement entered into by SEEX snder which Shares or other equily in SEEK are Lo be allolted 1o one
or morea parties to that agreement, provided that any alloiment of Shares or other equity dozs nol in aguregate

excaed 5% of the issued capiial of SEEK.

Subject te cerzin exclusions relating to, among other things, fraud, recklessness, wiiful miscondact and negligence
by an indemnilied party, SEEK agrees to keep the Lead Manager and its relsted bodies corperate and their respective
nificers, emplovees and advisers indemuniliad from losses suffered in connection with the Offe

The perfermance of the Lead Manager's ebligations under the GHer Management Agresment is sabject to
conditions custornary for an zgresment of this type, and is also conditienal on SEEK recewving valid accepiances
under the Buy-Back for the Minimum Level of Participstion by & April 2005 [or such other dale agreed to by SEEK
and the Lead Manager].

The Lead Manager may terminate the Offer Management Agreement by notice to SEEK at any time after the Lead
Manager becomes aware of the happening of any one or mare of the feilowing evenis [slthough, in the case of the
termnination events marked with an asterisk, the Lead Manager may not terminate the agreement uniess it has
reazonabie and bona fide grounds Lo believe and does helieve that the avent: fal has or is Lkely to have a materially
advarse effact on the outcome of the Offer; ar ib! could give rise Lo a centravention by the Lead Manager of, or the
Lead Manager being inveivad in a contravention of, the Corporations Act or any other applicable law, or & Lisbility of
the Lead Manager under any appiicable lawh

- A statement cwta ned in this Pr

raspectus is mistezding or deceptive, or a maltter is emitted from this Prospectus
lhaving regard 5 5

the provisions of sections )”:.1:‘ T, T1EA and 714 of the Corporations Actl; or




- this

- approval is refused or approval is nol grantad whi

- * the due diligence report preparad by the due diligence committes formed by SEEK in connection with the Offer,

or any other information supplied by or on behalf of SEEK to the Lezd Manager in relation to SEEK and each
related body corporate of SEEK [the "Group™] or the Offer is misleading or deceptive; or

* any adverse change ocours, or any development involving a prospective material adverse change, in the assefs,
liabitities, financial pesition or performance, predits, losses or prospects of SEEK or the Groep; or
there pccurs a new circumslance in relation to SEEX or 2ny entity in the Group that has arisen since this
Frospectus was ledged that wouid have been requirad to be inciuded in this Prespectus if i had srisen before this
MProspectus was ledged; or

< * hostilities not presently existing commence [whelher war has been declarad or notl er a major acl of terrorism or

95{;:4[" tier in existing hostilities occurs lwhether war has been declared ar noth involving any one ar mere of
Australia, New Zealand 2nd the U‘?;‘-\- or

the b&i'%’f-\ X200 Index of ASX falls by an :—HHULJ“l thal is 0% or more of the lavel as at the close of frading on the
date of the Ofter Management Agreerment, anc

- remains below that tevel for g g}ef‘md of thr'e'—" consecuiive business days; or

- ¥ untit the end of the closing date of the Institulional Offe

- there is intreducad or there is 2 public anncancermneant of & proposal te introduce, into the Parlizment of Australia

or any State or Territory of Australia a new law, or the Reserve Bank of Australia, er any government agency,
adepts or announces a proposal te adepl 2 new policy fother than 2 law or policy which b
the date of this agreement], any of which dees or,in the reasonable epinion of the Lead Manager, is Likely Lo
materially adversely prohibit or reguiate the Offer, capital issues or stock markets or materizlly adversely sitect
the taxation treatment of the Shares oHferad under this Prospectus; or

* a change in senier management or of the Beard occurs without the prier written consent of the Lead Manager,
such consent not to ke unreasonably withheld or delayed; or

* a Birector iz charged with an ind:iciable offence or any regulatory body commences any peblic action against
SEEX ¢r any Girector in is or her capacity as Director or announces that it intends to take any such action; or

* a8 contravention by SEEK or any entity in the Group of the Corporations Acl, its constitution, or any of the Listing
Rules or any other applicabie iaw; or

Prospectus or any aspect of the Offer does not comply with the Corporations Act, the Listing Rules or any
alther applicabla law, or

1 is unconditional or conditional on only customary fisting
coenditions which would nel, in the reasonable opinion of the Lead Manager, have a mataral adverse effect an the
success of the Ofer i

- SEER s admission L\, the CHicial List, or

- the guolation of all of the Shar'es or ASX,

on or before 15 April 2805 or such other date as consented te by the Lead Manager', or if granted, the approval is
subsequently withdrawsn, gualified or with hetd [or ASK indicates to SEEK or the Lead Manager that such approval |
likely to be withdrawn, gualified or withheld], or

- any of the following notifications are made:

- ASIC issues an order under section 73% of the Corporations Ack,

—an applivation is made by ARIC for an arder under Part 9.5 of the Cerporations Act in relation to this Prospeclas
or ASIC commaeances emy investigation er hearing under Part 3 of the Australian Securities and Investrments
Cormmession Act 2807 [Cth] in ralation to this Prospectus;
any person gives a nolice under section 733(3! of the Corporations Act or any person who has previousty
consented to the incusion of its name in this Prospectus lor any suppiementary prospectus] or to be named in
this Prospectus withdraws thal consent; or
any person gives a notice under section 720 of the Corporations At in relation to this Prospeclus; or

- SEEK withdraws this Prospecius or the Offer; or

* a defauit by SEEK in the performance of any of its obligations under the Offer Management Agreement occurs; or
* A representation orwarranty contained in the Ofer Managernent Agreement on the part of SEEX is not true or
correct; or

* any certilicate given under the Offer Management Agreement by SEEK is false, misleading or inaccurate; or
*an event spacified in the timetable of the Offer is delayed; or

Pt

s heean anncunced before



- either of the following ocours:

- a general moratorivm on commercial banking activities in Australia, the USA or the United Kingdem
by the relevant centrzl banking authority in sny of those countries, or thers is a material disruplion in
commercial banking or security settlement or clezrance services in any of these countries; or

- frading in all securities quoted or listed on ASX, the London Stock Exchange or the New York Stock Exchange is
suspended or Umited in a material respect for one day en which that exchange is open for trading,

5 deciarac

in either case the effect of which is such 25 to make it, in the reasonable judgement of the Lead Manager,
impracticat to continue 1o promote the Offer or o enforce contracts to issue Shares under this Prospecius.

9.10 DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

Other than as set cut in this Prospectus, no Girector has, or had within two yesrs before Indgement of this
Prospeclos with ASIS, any interest in.

(al the prometion or formation of SEEK;
(b preperty acquirad or proposed o be acquired in connection with its promation or formatios of the Offer; or
(¢} the Offer of Shares under this Prospecius.

Other than as set cut in this Prospectus, no amounts have been paid or soreed to be paid snd no benalits have been
givan or sgread o be given to any Girector:

(al toinduce him o hecome, or to guality Bim as, a Directer; or

(2t for services rendered by himm in connection with the formation or promotion of SEEK or the Dffer.

LT Dhirector Sharehotdings

Belails of the Shares held by each Director, or by entities associaled with each Director, are as foilows:
, " WO

et st

it i e S R R
. S B

James Packer 65,852,390 244 70,053,390 250
Paul Bassat 21,872,976 g7 14,672,974 5
Ardrew Bassal 21872978 217 14672974 5
Matthew Rockman 21872978 417 13,372974 £
Heb Watson 12,786,626 4,77 7938 648 28
Chris Anderson ah B53 3%0 244 70,053, 3%0% 25.0
Colin Carter 0 & Refer note 2
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2.160.2 PEL

SEEK has enterad into an agreement with ninemsn, an enlity 80% cwned by PBL, on erdinary cemmercial terms and
conditions undar which it pays a fee for the number of users which ninemsn refers o the SEEK website, SEEK
paid or agreed te pay ninemsn under this agreement during the 12 month pericds ending 31 Decernber 2803 snd 21
DOecember 2004, $718,172 and $2,143 957 respectively.

SEEK also provides recruitment advertising fo PBL on standard terms and cenditions. P8L has pawd SEEK for

this advertising during the 17 month periods ending 3% Dacember 2082 and 31 Decemnber 2004, $4,93% and
$27.180 respectively.

SEEWK and PEL have enlered into an agreament whereby PBL has provided advertising to SEEK with a commercial
value of $116,987 for the 12 month peried anding 31 Dacember 2003 and $98% 432 for the 12 month period ending
1 December 2804 for ne censideration and alse entered into barter ransactions with PBL with a value of $nil for
12 month period ending 31 Becember 20803 and $5,08 U for the 12 month pericd anding 21 December 2004,

3

¥

1603 Diractor Indernnification
Each Director has entered into a Dead of Indemnity with SEEK pursuant to which:

- each Directer is entitled Lo erforce against SEEK the indemaity corferrad on them in the Constitution; and
- SEEX undertakes to use all r'eagonaz‘}ae endeavours to ablain Insurance Cover for ezch Gireclor as provided forin
the Constitution.

Under the Constitution, SEEK may indermnify a director to the full exient permissibie by the faw, oot of SEEKs
property, against:

- any fizhility incurrad by that Direclor 25 an officer of SEEK; and
-« legat costs incurred in defending an sclion for a liabitity incurred by the Director as a Birector of SEEX,

excepl in respect of a Usbility or legal costs for which SEEK is prohibited From indemnifying the Director pursusnt

i the law.

The Board haz arranged Insurance Cover for the Direclors for

- liabitities incurred by the Direclor 2s an officer of SEEK; and
- liabitity for ceste and expenses incurred in defending procesdings relating to the Director acting as a Girector of
SEE®, whether civil or criminal, and whalaver the cutcome,

excapl any liability in respect of which SEEX is prohibited from doing so pursuant @ the Law.

7.11 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Non-Executive Direclors will collectively be paid from a2 fized sum out of the funds of SEEX as remuneration for their
services as Directors. The fixed sum has been set by the Board at $208,000 per annum. Follawing Listing, this
amount can only be increased by the passing of an ordinary resolution of Sharehelders. The Board wili, foliowing
Listing, detarmine the allecation of this fixed surn amoerg the Non-Executive Directors, bur dees no! expect o
sliocate the entire Hxed sum in the hm" term.

inaddition te any fees, SEEK will 2lso pay the Non-Executive Direclors superansuation centributions up te an amount
necessary 1o mesal the minimurm level of superannuation contributions requirad under any applicabie legislation.

At } Mon-Executive Director who is catled to perform services for SEEX which, i the opinion o the Board, are cetside
the scope of their ardinary duties, may be paxd 2 fixed sum determined by the Board for the provision of such services,

il Directors will be paid travelling and other expenses properly incurred iy thern in sitending meetings of the Board,
oroany committee of the Board, or genersl mestings of SEEK, or otherwisz in conpaction with the business of SEER.

8.



7.12 INTERESTS OF PROFESSIONALS, ADVISERS AND PROMOTERS
Other than as set cut in this Prospeclus:

[al no person named in the Prospeclus as per1c{:;z|rz{j z function in a professienal, advisory or ather capacity in
connection with the preparation or distriution of the Prospectus or as & prometer of SEEK has, or during the fast
two years prior to the date of the Dffer has bad, an interest in:

[if the formatien or promotion of SEEK;

[iil zny property acguired or proposed to be acquirad by SEEK in conneclion with its formatics or promoion or
the Offer; or

[iii] the Offer under this Prospectus; and

[0} no amount has been paid or agreed to be paid and no value or any benefit has been given or agread Lo be given fo
any person ramed in the Prospeclus as perlors a function in a professienal, advisory or other capacity in
connection with the preparation or distribution of this Praspectus for services in conneaction with the farmalion or

promaotion of SEEK or the Offer under this Prospectus.

Fave]

2121 Lead Manager

The fees and other expenses payable by SEEK o the Lead Manager are described in Sectien 9.9, In addition, as noted
in Sections 2.3 and 2.4, the Macquarie Technology Funds have aﬁre—*d tn sell sl of their 10 zl miliion Shares into the
Buy-Back.

2.12.2 Solicters to the Offer

ABL has acted as Solicitors Lo the GH‘ef', a5 performed work in relation te legal due ditigence anguiries and advised
SEEK generally in refation to the Cher, SEEK estimates that it will pay approximately $630,008 [excluding
dishursements and G511 to ABL in respect of these sarvicas,

Entities asseciated with Mark Letbler AC, ABL's Senior Partner, have an interest in £77 425 Shares,
%.12.3 Aenounting and Taxation

Pwl has acted as SEEW s statutory auditor and has zudited the historical resclts and cash flows up te 23 December
2804, perfermed work in relation to faxation and information technology advice to SEEX in connection with the Gier

PwCSs has prepared an investigating Accountant’s Report on the forecast resuits and cash fows foy
36 June 2005 and 20 June 2006,

2 years ending

SEEK estimates that it will pay approximately $700,000 lexcluding disbursaments and 557 Lo PwC and PwCS in
respeact of these services.

%.12.4 Register
Computershare Investor Services Pty Ltd has been engaged te maintain SEEKs Register, both in relation te the Gifer

and generally. SEEK witl pay Computershare tees in accordance with Comgulershare's standard commercial terms.

i Share Plans Pty Ltd has been engaged to act as trustes for the purposes of the ESP and the DS# SEEK will pay
FShare Plans Pty Lid fees in accordance with Computershare’s slandard commercial terms.

Com putershare has had no involvernent in the preparation ef any part of the Prospectus other than being ramed as
SEEW's Register, Computershare has not authorised or caused the issue of and exprassly disclaims and takes ne
re5p0r15|b|._1._\; [or, any part of this Praspectus.
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9.13 CONSENTS TO BE NAMED 1M THIS PROSPECTUS

Writlen censents to being named in this Prospectus have bean given and, st the time of lodgement of this Prospectus
with ASIC, had nol been withdrawn by the following parties:

-« MECM has given, and has not before the lodgerment of this Prospecius with ASIC, withdrawn their censent to being
narmed in ﬁu; Pmape«.tur as Lead Manager to the Ofer in the form and context so narmead. MECM has net
autherised or caused the issue of this Prospectus and fakes no responsibility for any part of this Prespectus,

-« ABL has given, and has not belore Indgernent of this Prospecius with ASIC, withdrawn its consent to being named
in thiz Prospactus as Soliciiors te the GHer in the ferm and context so named, ABL has net autherised or caused
the issue of this Prospectss and iakes no responsibility for any part of this Prospectus,

- PwC has given, 2nd not withdrawn prior te the fod gems nt of this Progpectus with ASIC, its writlen consent to be
named i this Prespectus as SEEK's statutory 2uditor in the form and context so named. PwC has not authorised
or cavsed the issue of this Prospectus and takes ne responsibility for any part of this Prospactus ather than the
audited financial staterments referred to in this Prospectus,

= PwCS has given, and not withdrawn prior Lo the lodgement of this Prospactus with ASIC, its written consent to be
named izz this Prospectus as the Investigating Acceunlant in relation Lo the forecasts and certain historiczl linancial
informatien included in Section 06 of this Prospectus in the form and context in whickh it is included and has given
and not withdrawn its consent to the inclusion in this Prespectus of its investigating Accountant’s Report in the
form and context in W?‘Ith itis included, PwCE has nel autherised or caused the issue of this Prospectus and has
not made, nor purports to have made, any staternent other than the Investigating Accountant's Repert. The Lisbility
af PwCS s limited to l!‘e contents of the AR and the FSG.

- Cornpetershare has given, and has not before lodgernent of this Pr'ospecws with ASIC, withdrawn its consent fo
being named as SEEK's Regisiry in the form and context so named. Computershzre has not acthorised or caused
the izsue of this Prospectus and akes no responsibility for any part of this Prospactus,

-« CPU Share Plars Py Lid has given, and has not before lndgement of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its
consent to being narmed as trustee for the purposes of the ESP and the D58 in the form and context so named
CPU Share Plans Pty Lid has not suthorised ar caused the issue of this Prospectus and takes no responsibility for
any part of thiz Prospectus,

- Nielsen//NetRatings has given, 2nd has not befere lodgement of this Prospecius with ASIC, withdrawn its consent
te be named in the Prespecius z2nd te the inclusion of the references o it in the form and conlext in which they ara
included. \“G\JE’HE(}'{\JOLFQCUT'I[ 15 has not authorised or caused the iszue of this Prospectus and takes no
respansibility for any part of this Prosgectus cther than the references referred to above.

- Access Econernics Py Ltd has qun and has nel before | fv,qemenl af this Prospectus with ASIC, withdraws ils
censent to be namead in the Prospecius and to the inclusion of the references to it in the form and context in which
they are inciuded. Access Econemics Piy Lid has not authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus and takes
no resgensibitity for any part of this Prospecius other than the references refarred to above.

- Newspoli Market Research has given, and has not before lodgement of this Prospectug with ASIC, withdrawn its
censent to be namead in the Prospeciss and to the inclesion of the references to it in the form and context in which
they are inciuded, Newspoll Market Research has not autherisad or caused the issue of this Prospecius and takes
no respensibitity for any part of this Prospectss other than the references referred to above,

« Australia & New Zealand Banking Group Ltd has given, and has net before lodgement of this Prospectus with
ASIC, withdrawn its consent te the references to the ANZ Job Advertizement Series in the Prospectus and to the
inclusion of these references in the form and context in which they are included. Australia & New Zealand Banking
Groug Ltd has not authorised or cassed the issue of this Prospectus and takes ne responsbility fer any part of this
Frespectus other than the references referred to ahove.

« Frost & Suliivan has given, and has net before lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its consant o
the references to the ANZ Job Advertisernant Series in the pro~pech;s and 1o the inclusion of the raferences {o it in
the form and context in which they are included. Frost & Suliivan has not authorized or cacsed the issue of this
Frespectus and takes ne responsibility for any part of this Prospectus ether than the references referred to above.

- Hewilt Associstes Pty Lid has given, and has not before ledgement of this Prospectus with ASIT, withdrawn its
censent to be namead in the Prospecius and to the inclesion of the references to it in the form and cantext in which
they are inciuded, Hewill Associates Pty Ltd has nel authorised or caused the issue ef this Prospectos and fakes
no responsibitity for any part of this Prospectos other than the statement referred Lo above.
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- Pinpoint HRM has giver, and has not before lodgerment of this Prospactus with ASIC, withdrawn its consent Lo be
named in the Progspectus and to the inclusion of the references te it in the form and context in which they are
inclueded. Pinpoint HRM has not authorised or caused the issue of this Prospeclus and takes no respensibitity for
any part of this Prespectus other than the references referred to ahove,

- Melinda Mortey has given, and has not befere lodgemeant of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its consent to be
narmead i“< the Prespectus and Lo the inclusion of the references te it in the form and context in which they are
included. Melinda Morlay has not authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus and takes no responsibility for
any ;3:1{3. of this Prespectus other than the references referred to above,

- Netheriane Pty Lid has given, and has not before lodgament of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its consent to
be named in the Prespectus 2nd to the inclusion of the references ko it in the form and conlext in which they are
included. Netherlang Pty Lid has not authorised or caused the issue of this Prospectus and takas no responsibility
for any part of this Prospecius others than the references refarred to above,

Kiteford Pty Lid has given, and has not before lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its consent to be
named in the Prospectus and to the inclusion of the references te it in the form and context in which they are
incloded. Kitelord Pty Lid has not 2uthorized or caused the issee of this Prospectus and tekes no respensibility for
any part of this Prospectus other than the references referred 1o ahove,

-« Jonstezd Ply Lid has given, and has net before lodgement of this Prospectus with ASIC, withdrawn its consent to
be named in the Prospectus and le the inclusion of the references to it in the form and context in which they zre
included. Jonstead Py Ltd bas net awtherised or caused the issue of this Prospeclos and iakes no responsibility
for :my part of thiz Prospecius other than the references referred to above,

- Catelord Way Py Ltd and Bob Watson have given, and have not befere ledgement of this Prospectus with ABIC,
wilhdrawn their consent to be named in the Prospecius and to the inclusion of the referencas to them in the ferm
and context in which they are included. Daleford Way Pty Ltd has not authorised ar caused the issue of this
Frospectus and takes ne responsibility for any part of this Prospectus ether than the references referred to above.

No entity referred to above has made zny staterment that is included in this Prospectus or any slatement on which a
statarnent made in this Prospectus is based, excepl as sisted above. Each of the antities and persons refarred to
shove exprassly disciaims and takaes no responsiblity for any siatermnents in or omessiens rom this Prospectus, This
applies to the maximurm extent parmitted by law but does nel apply to any matter to the extent fo which consent iz

given above,

9.14 COSTS OF THE OFFER

The total estimated costs of the Offer, including fees payable to the Lead Manager under the Offar Management
Agreement, legal, accounting, 1axation, tisting fees, Register, printing, mailing and other expenses are currensly
estimated to he approximately %68 million [based en the mid-point of the Indicati\'e Institutionat Beokbuitd Price
Range and on SEEK's current expeciztions regarding the size of the GHer]. Alf of these costs will ba paid by SEEK
from the proceeds of the Offer.

9.15 REFEREMCES TO PUBLICATIONS

Referances ara made in this Prospectus to material that is atiribuied o various sources. Sorme of these references
are hased on sigternents already published in p\_rbll” documents, or a2 hook, journsal or comgarable publication. Those
organisations did not prepare those materials specifically for this Prospectus and have had no involvernent in the
preparation of any part of this Prospectus,
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9.146 LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

As far as the Directors are aware, there is no current or threatened fitigation, arbitration proceading or
stiministrative appeal or criminal or governmental prosecution of a material nature in which SEEX is direclly or
indiractly concernad which is dkely to have a material adverse impact on the business or financial pesition of SEEK,
other than, on 21 March, 2005, SEEK receivad 2 letter from lewyers representing s competitor of SEEK Learning Pty
Ltd alleging that certain employees of the SEEK Learning business had engaged in misieading and deceptive
conduct, and had made defamatory statements. SEEK is currently considering the latter, and taking legal advice as
i the appropriate response, Howsever, SEEK dogs not cansider that this claim is Ukely to bave a matarisl adverse
impact on its business or financial position.

7.17 GOVERNING LAW

s Progpactus 2nd the contracts that arise from the acceplance of the Applications are governad by the law as
applicable in Vicloria and each Applicant submils to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of Victoris,

7.18 ASX ADMISSION AND QUOTATION

SEEK wilt apply to the ASX for admizsion to the Ofizial List and quotation of the Shares on the ASX within seven days
after the date of this Prospecius,
9.19 EXPIRY DATE

Np Shares will be offered on the hasis of this Prespactus later than 13 months after the date of this Prospectus.

9.20 DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

2

Copies of SEEK's Constitution, sach Em
are available for inspection during the O
registered cffice.

ployee Equity incentive Plan and the consents referrad 1o in Section 9.3
ftar Period, during nermal business heurs, free of charge, at SEEKs

9.2% STATEMENT {0F DIRECTORS

£nis i

affect the assets and Uabilities, financial position, prokis or losses or prospects of SEEK other than as disclosed in

this Prospactus.

Paul Bassal
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Term

ABL

AEST

AGAAP
Allocation Price
Applicant

Application

Application Form

Application Monies

ASIC

Associate {of an Officer!

ASTC Settiermnent Rules

ASX
Board

Broker Firm Offer

Buy-Back

Buy-Back Date

104,

ftamring
Armold Bloch Leibier

Australian Eastern Standard Time.

Australian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The price at which the Participating Shares will be issued or transferrad under the DRP,
A person that lodges an Application Ferm pursuant to this Prospecius.

An application te subscribe for Shares under this Prespectus made on the Application
Form attached o, or accempanying, the Prospectes, and accompanied by the relevant
Applization Monies.

The form attached to this Prospectus on which Applications for Shares can be made.

The menies payable in connection with an Application, being the amount of money
accompanying an Application Form,

Lustralian Securities 2nd Investments Semmission.
A person who an Officer propossas to act in concert with, gither formally or informaiy

including, without im#ation, members of the Officer's family and entities, such as
companies and trosts, controllad by the Officer.

The settiement rufes of the ASK Settlement & Transler Corporation Pty Ltd
PABN 4% D08 954 237]

Australian Stock Exchange Limited [ABN 98 008 424 4931
The Board of Directors of SEEX

Irvitation under this Prosgectus to Australian and New Zeatand resident retail clients of
brokers who have received a firm ailocalion from their broker

The buy-back of up te 1269 milion Shares st the Buy-Back Price by SEEK, 2= described
in Section $.2.2.

The first business day alter the day on which SEEK has the right to access the Application
Manies held by SEEK in accordance with Seclion 722 of the Corporations Act,




Tesrres

Buy-Back Decuments

Buy-Back Offer

Buy-Back Price

Buy-Back Shares

CED
Chairman

CHESS

Closing Date

Company
Computershare
Constitution
Corporations Act
CPi

Deed of indemnity
Directors

ORP

ose

EBITA

EBITCA

Eligible Employee

Employee

Employee Equity
Incentive Plans

Employee Cifer

fbarrmisg
The offer and the zcceptance and the withdrawai/amendment forms te be sent to Existing
Shargholders in connection with the Buy-Back,

Invitation to Existing Sharehotders te buy back Shares concurrently with the Gifer
parauznt to the terms described in Section 9.3.2.

The price at which Shares will be bough? back under the Buy-Back Offer. The Buy-Back
Price eguals the Final Price.

The Shares which SEEK well buy back from Existing Sharsholders pursuant to the
Buy-Back.

Chiet Executive Officer of SEER,
Chairman of SEEK,

Clearing House Electronic Subregister Systerr, opersted in accordance with the
Corporations Ac

Unless SEEK and the Lead Manager jointly agree to vary any of the following dates, for the
Broker Firm Offer, 2.00pm on 15 April 2085, for the Priority Offer, 5 80pm on 13 April
2805, and for the Institutional Offer, % 08am on 15 April 2005

SEEK Limnited [ABN £& 088 875 314].

Computershare Investor Services Ply Lirnited [ABN 48 078 27 2774,

The Constitution nf SEEK,

Corporations Act 2001 [Commmonweslth],

Consurmner Price index.

Deed of indemnity, Inscrance and Access balween SEEK and each Director
The Directors of SEEK.

Dividend Reinvestmeant Plan,

Deferrad Share Plan,

Earnings Before interest Tax and Amortisation.

Earnings Before interest Tax Cepreciation and Amortisation.

Ermployee Cler,
an employee of SEEK,

Any plan adepted by SEEK relsting to the issue of Shares or Optiens to Ermnployses.

Invitation under this Prospectus to Eligitle Employees.
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Terrn

Employee Cption
Buy-Back

EPS

ESP

Executive Directors

Existing Shareholder
Ofer

Existing Sharehelders
Exposure Period
Final Price
Forecast
Forecast Period
F5G

GhP

GST

H1

H2

IAR

Indicative Institutional
Bookbuild Price Range

Insurance Cover

Institutienal Beokbuild

Institutional Gffer

IT
Lead Manager
Listing

Listing Rules

aaring

The offer by SEEK o buy back Cplions from Cpticsholders referred to in Section 923 (c].
Earnings Per Share.

Exempt Share Plan.

Paul Bassal, Andrew Bassatl and Matthew Rockman,

Invitation under this Prospectus to Existing Shareholders.

Those holding Shares in SEEX as at 5.00pm, 9 March 2005,

The seven day pariod fram the date of this Prospectus lexcluding public holidays].
The Finsl Price tor the Shares offered under this Prospectus,

The forecast financial information for SEEK for the Forecast Periad.

The 12 rmonth peried ending 20 June 2085 and the 12 menth pariod ending 30 Zune 2004,
Financial Services Guide

Gross Domestic Product,

Goeds and Services Tax,

The six month period to 31 December

The six month periad o 30 Zune

Investigating Accountant’s Report.

$1.80 to $2.20 per Share, As described in 2.6.2,

SEER s Directer's and Officer's Lability insurance pelicy in place rom time o time.
The bidding precess to be conducted in respect of the Institutionat Offer to determine the
Final Price Lo be paid by investors for Shares offered wnder this Prospectus a5 described

in Section 2.6.2.

The invitation to institutional inveslars under this Prospecius gs described in
Seclion 2.6.2.

Information Technology.

Macguarie Eguity Capital Markets Limited [A8N 40 001 374 572

Listing of the Shares en ASX,

The listing reles of the ASX.

Maximum Buy-Back Limit The maxirnurm numbar of Shares SEEK will Buy-Back, being 126.% mitlion.
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Terers

MECM

Minimurm Level
of Participation

New Shares
NPAT
Ofer
Offer Period
Official List

D¥icers

Options
Optionholders

Participants

Participating Shares

PBL
PE

Priarity Offer

PROP

Prospectus

PwC

PwCS
Record Date
Register
Registry

Retail Price

Meaning
Macguarie Equity Capital Markets Limited [ABN 40 001 374 5724

The minireum number of Shares to be bought kack in the Buy-Back, teing 30.% miliion.

Shares 1o be issued under the Ofiern

Met Profil diter Tax.

OHer of Shares under this Prospectus.

The period from the date of this Prospecius ungil the Closing Date.

The official fist of entities that the ASX has sdmitted and net removed frem listing.

Diractors, members of SEER's executive team, members of SEEK's senior management
develeprnent programrme znd any other Employees of SEEK whe have regquiar access to
conldential financial information relating te SEEK as specified from time to tirme by the
CED.

Optiens to acquire Shares pursuant to the SEOP, SO2 2ROP or the ESE,

Holders of Optiens,

Shareholders who elect to participate in the DRF

Shares in SEEK which are subject to the ORP

Publishing and Broadeasting Limited [ABN 52 209 071 167,

Price Earnings.

e Priority Offer being exiended to Eligible Employess and Existing Shareheliders of
SEEK and certain other individuais identified by SEER as described in Section 267,

Performance Rights and Options Plan,

This document (including the electrenic form of this Prospectus], and any supplemeantary
or replacement Prospectus in reiation to this decumeant.

PricewaterhousaCoopars.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Securities Limited [ABN 54 003 3171 417).
Az defined in the Listing Rules,

The SEEK Securities Register,

The Regsiry for this Offer is Computershars.

The Setail Price will be the Final Price,
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Terrm
Retail Offer

Securities

SEEK

Senior Executives

SEGP
Settlement
Skillsoft

SMEs

Shares
Shareholder
sop

Special Shares

Unigue Browser

Windfyr

Yield

108,

Meaning

The invitation for retail investers snder this Prespactus as described in Section 2,63,
Tre Retait Offer inciudes the Employee GHer, the Existing Shareheider Offer and the
Broker Firm Offar.

15 ar inlerasis in the alorementioned securities and any
derivatives inciuding but nof fimited to aplions in respect of the aferementioned

securifies.

SEEK Limnited [ABN 46 088 475 3141

The employess of
participate in the

0,
Senior Executive Option Plan,

The date on which the New Shares are aHelted.
Skilisoft Asiz Pacific Lid FACN 090 774 639].
Szl and Madiem sized Enterprises,

Fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of SEEK.
an awner of Shares

Staff Option Plan.

As described in Section 2.2.2.

An individual internet browser program that accesses a particutar wabsite in a given time
period, A browser is idenlified as unique via an assigned unigue 0 [commonly referred Lo
as a ‘cookie’]

Windfyr Pty Lid [ABN 5% 105 295 1345

The smeunt of revenue [excluding 557] earned per sdvartisement.
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Nides to the inancial statements

Ting financial eport covers SEEK Limited as a consolidated entity.

SEEK Limited ts 2 company Himited by shaves, incomporated and domiciled i Austraiia, Its reglatered office and privicipal
place of business i

Level 2
Weliington Street
5t Kilda
VHCFERZ
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SEEK Limited
Statement of financial performance
For the six month period ended 31 December 2004

Revenue from ordinary activities

Expenses from ordinary aclivities
Cost of sales of goods

Sales and marketing

Business development

Operations and adminsivation

Expenses from ordingry activities

Protit from ordinary activities before related income fax
expense

Income fax expense

Profit from ordinary activities after related income €ax
expense

Net exchange differences on translarion of finencial report of
foreign controiled entity

Total changes in equity other than these reselting from
transactions with owners as owners

Conselidated
Bec June June
20684 2004 2003
Nates $HHHE SO0 S
(6 months) {172 months) (12 months)
2 32,135 44,856 25,924
($99) - -
(6,857) {8,792} {72660
(6,588) {16,77TH {1,934
(5,744) {6,740} {4,900
(20.088) {26,303} (20,1033
3 12,047 i4,553 3821
4 {3,511) (718} -
8,236 3,835 3,821
&{a) {1%) 1% {7
Ble} 8,221 §3,853 3,814

The above statement of financial performance showld be vead in confunction with the aecompanying notes.
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SEEK Limited
Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2004

Curreni assets
Cash
Heceivables
lnvertornies
(Hher

TForal current assets

Nan-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
letangibies
Future meome tax benefit
Toral non-cureent assets

Tatal assets
Curreni lizbilities
Payables
Curvent tax labilities
TForal current liabilities
Naon-current liabilities
Provisions
TForal non-careent liabilities
Tatal lBabilities
Net assels
Equity
Contributed equity
Foreign Cureency Transiation Reserve
Hetamed losses

TFotal equity

The above statement of financind position should be

Conselidated
Brec June June
2664 2004 M3
Notes L] SUHHE EYELE
26,728 29,798 P304
1,250 5,250 4,396
203 - -
37% 243 147
34560 35,209 4,557
2,241 1,71 482
5 T.970 5,502 -
1,108 1,051 -
11,319 §,323 482
4587 43,622 35,039
7,151 5,326 3,628
5,531 1,760 -
12,682 7008 3,628
398 245 -
398 243 -
13080 7,340 3,628
32,799 36,282 b4
AHLETS 39,7492 28,774
6 14 29 11
6 {7.794) 3,534 (E7.3T74
32,799 36,282 b4

¢ reand in conjuncion with the aecompanying Rotes.
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SEEK Limited
Statement of cash flows
For the six month period ended 31 December 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services fax)
Payments to sappliers and emplovees {inclusive of goods and
SePVIces fax)

lncome taxes paid
nterest received
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash fows from investing sciivities
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Cash outflow on acquisition of controlled entity, net of cash
acquived
Payments for bank glarantee refated tem deposits
Net cash {ouiflow) freem investing aclivities

Cash fows from financing activities

Proceeds from issues of shares

Payiment for share bay-back

Dividends paid

Net cash {outflow Miaflew from financing activities
Net (deereaseincrease in cash held
Cash at the beginning of the {Inancial year

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash

Cash ae the end of ihe financial period/vear

Consoclidated
Bec June June
2064 2004 23
Notes 000 5000 000
(6 months) (12 momhs) {12 months)
33,951 44,046 28,000
(21,440 {28,495} 23,0513
12,511 §5,351 5039
(11%) - -
6 1,057 288
7 12,400 § 6,608 3,327
(733) {1,768} {2953
] (3,392) {5,997} -
(135) {79} -
(4,26 {7,844} {2053
6 787 31,478 204
6 - {26,437} -
6 (12,491 _ _
(11,704) §$1,01% 2604
(3,065) 19,783 5236
29,795 0,014 4,778
{2) (2} -
26,728 29,795 Hif4

The ahove stotement of cash flows should be read in confunation with the accompanying notes.
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SEEK Limited
Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2004

Note

Note 1
Note 2
Note 3
Note 4
Note 5
Note &
Note 7

Noke 8
Note &

Contents

Sammary of significant accounting policies
Revenae

Profit from ordinary activities

Ineome tax

Nuon-current assets -~ Intangibles

Reserves snd reratned profits

Page

Reconeiliation of profit from ordingry achvities after income tax to net cash inflow from operating

HCUVILIES
Acquisition of controlted entity

Investrent in conteolled entity

o

115,




Note 1 Summary of significant acceanfing policies

This is 4 non siatatory, specisl purpose finaneial report that hag been prepared for the purpose of providing to the directors a
record of the conseiidated entity’s financisl position as st 31 Deceraber 2004 and its performance for the six months then
ended, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows. The special purpose financial report hias been
prepared {or use by the directors as part of the proposed Jisting of the company on the Australian Stock Exchange sod must
0t be used for aay other pirpose. The special parpose financial report hag been prepared in accordance with the
measarement and recogrition requirements, but vot the disclosure requivernents, of all applicable Accounting Standards and
Urgent Issues Groap Consensas Views, The directors have determined that the accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of this special purpose financial report are appropriate to meet the shove stated purposes. The company i not
requeared 1o prepare and has ot prepaved Hus Gnancial report pursuant (o any Corporations Act 2004 requirernents.

It is prepared inaccordance with the historicsl cost convention. Unless otherwise stafed, the accounting policies adopted
and consistent with those of the previous vear,

{a)  Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial skatements iIncorporate the assets snd Habalities of sl entities controlled by SEEK Limited
as at 31 December 2004 and the results of a1l confrolled entities for the period then ended. SEEK Limited and its
controlied entities together are referred 10 In this nancial report as the consolidated entity. The effects of all
fransactions befween entities in the consohduted entity arg eliminated in full
Where control of an entity 14 oblained during & financial year, itg resalts are included in Hie consoiidated statement of
fimancial performance from the dite on which control commences.

by Income tax
Tax effect accounting procedures are followed whereby the income rax expense in He statement of {insncial position
is matched with the sccounting profit after alowing for permanent differences. The firure tax beneflt relating to fax
logses is not carried Torward as an asset anless the benelit is virtually certain of realisation. Income tax on
camilative tming differences 1 set aside 1o the deferred meome tax or the future meome tax benefTt accounts at the
rates which are expected to apply when those timing differences reverse,

Tax consolidation legislation
SEEK Limited and its wholly-owned Austrabian controlled entities intend fo implement te tax consoiidation
fegishation as of | huly 2004, The Awostralian Taxation Office has not vet been notified of Hus decision,

Ag a consequenice, SEEK Limited, gs the head entity In the tax consolidated group, will recognise current snd
deferred tax amounts refating to fransactions, events and balances of the wholly-owned Australian controlled entities
i this group as if those ransactions, events and balaees were its own, in addition 1o the carrent and deferved wax
amounks arising In relation o Ity Own ansactions, events and balances, Amounts receivable or payable under a
funding agreement with the tax consolidated entities ave 10 be recognised separately a8 tax-relsted amounts
receivable or payable. The impact on the income tax expense and the resuis of SEEK Limited from consolidating
for kax parposes 13 unlikely (0 be material,

The entimies also mtend (o enter ito & tax- sharing agreement under the tax law ander which each company in the
Group will only be liable for their reasonable share of the groups Hability s the event of default. Such 4 agresment
has no irmmediate bmpact on the Gnaneial statements of the consolidated group.

The deferred tax balances are (0 be recognised by the parent entity in relation o wholly-owned entities joining the
tax consolidated group are messured based on their carrving smounis st the leveld of the tax consolidated group before
the implementation of the tax consolidated regime, with one exception. The deferred tax balances refating 1o assets
that have their fax values resed on Joining the tax consohdated proup, will be remessured based on the carrying
amount of those assets at the tax-consolidated proup level and their reset tax values. The remeasurement sdjustments
to these deferred tax balances are also to be recogmised in the consolidated financis] statements as INCome tax
expense or revenue, or as direct debits to the asset revaluation reserve w the extent the adjusiments relate W the
revaluation of assets,

The financial effect of the implementation of the legislation has not been recognised in the financial statements for
the period ended 31 December 2004,
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Note 1  Summary of significant accounting policies {centinued)

{c)

{d)

{e)

U]

(&)

)

Foreign currency translation

{i} Tronscctions
Foreign currency transactions are mitisily transiated o Aastraiian currency at the rate of exchange at the date
of the mnsaction. At bilance date amounts pavable and receivable i foreign currencies are manskated W
Australian carrency st rates of exchange current at that date. Resulting exchange differences are brought to
accoun! in determining the profit or loss for the year.

(i Foreign conrofled entity
As the foreign controlled entity is seif-sustaining, its assets and liabilities are translated into Austrabian
currency at rates of exchange current at balance date, while its revenues and expenses are transtated at the
average of rites nueing during the year. Exchange differesnces arising on translation are taken to the forefgn
currenecy franslation reserve.

Acgrisitions of assels

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisittons of assets repardiess of whether equiaty instramenits or
other assets are acquired. Cost 18 measured ag the fair value of the agsets given up, or Habilities andertsken ar the date
of acquisition plus incidental costs directly atiributable to the acguisition.

Goodwill 15 brought o sccount on e basis deseribed n note 165}

Revenue recognition
Arourtts disclosed as reventie are net of returns, rade allowances and dufies and txes paid. Revenue i recogmsed
for the major business activities as follows:

Reventes {rom the provision of job advertiserments on the Company’s web-site are recogrised I the period in
which the advertisements are placed.

Revenues from banmer advertising on the Company's web-site are generated based on a fixed price per
thousand page impressions each banwer recerves. These revenues are recognized m the period that the
IEIPTEssinns HCcur.

Revenues received m advance of the provision of services over mualtiple periods 1s mitally credited (o deferred
revenue and then is recogmsed on a straight-line basis over the period during which the service is delivered.

Where the enbity recetves sdvertising services in return for providing the same service on its own website, no
Tevenue is recognized.

Revenues from Interset Learmang siles are recognised when the customer oblaing uncondiional gccess W the
course material.
Receivables
AH trade deblors are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no moore than 30 days from
the date of recognition for debtors.

Collectibility of trade debtors 1s reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are
written off. A provision for doubefis] debis is raised when some doubt as to collection exists.

{nventories
Inventory congists of software licences for resale. They are stated o the jower of purchase cost and net realisable
valle.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets
The recoverable amount of an asset is te net amount expected W be recovered through the cash milows and outflows
arising (rom us confinued use and subsequent disposal,

Where the carrying amnowmit of & non-current assel 1s greater than it recoverable wmount, the agsel Is written down to
s recoverable amoant. The expected net cash flows have not been discoanted W present values in determining the
recoverahle dmoumt,
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Note 1  Sammary of significant accounting policies {centinued)

€}

)

&)

O

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is calcalated on a straight line hasis w0 write off the net cost o revalued amount of each item of
property, plant and equipment {excluding landy over its expected aseful 1ife to the consolidated entity. Estimates of
rernatming wsefid iives are made on a regular basis for all assets, with annual reassessments for major items. The
expected wmeful Hves are as follows:

Plant and equipment -4 years

Iniangible asseis and expenditure carried forward

{i} Gondwill
Where an entity or operstion is acquired, the identifiable net assets acquired are messured at fair value. The
excess of the Fair value of the cost of acquisition over the fair valae of the identifiable net sssets acquired,
teeluding any liability for resmuctaring costs, i brought o account as goodwill snd amontised on & straight line
bagis over 4 period during which the bepefits are expected to arise, being 4 vears for acguisitions o date.

(iii  Website and sofiware
Costs incurred on the Company’s operstional website and software are expensed immediately.

TFrade and other creditors
These amounts represent Habilities for poods and services provided to the consolidated entity prior to the end of the
fimancial year and which are unpaid. The amouss ave unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recogmition.

Employee entitiements

{i} Wages and salaries, anmual leave and sick leave
Lishilities for wages snd salaries, meluding nos-monetary benefits and snnual leave expected to be settled
within 12 months of the reporting date are recogmsed a5 a payvable i respect of emplovees” services up (o the
reparting date snd are measured st the amomnts expected 0 be paid when the labilities are settled. Liabiities
for non gccurnulating sick feave are recopnised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates pamd or
pavable.

(il Long service leave
The Hahility for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 mondhs of the reporting date is recognised
in the provision for employvee benefits and & measured in accordance with {1y above. The hiability for long
service leave expected to be settled more than |2 months from (he reporting date 13 recognised n the provision
for emplovee benefits and measared as the present value of expecied fitare paviments (0 be made in respect of
services provided by empioyees up o the reporting date. Consideration i given to expected fiture wage and
salary levels, experience of emaplovee deparfures and periods of service. Expected futare payments are
discounted using market yields at the reporting date on nations] government bonds with ferms to maturity and
currency that mateh, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

(5if)  Profif sharing and bosms plans
A ltubility for employvee benefits in the form of profit sharing and bonus phans is recognized as & payable when
there is no realistic altevnative but to settle the liability and at Jeast one of the following conditons 15 met:
e there are formal tenmns in the plan for determining the amount of the benefit
e the amounts t0 be paid sre determined before the time of completion of the fnancial report, or
e past praciice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected 10 be settled within 12 months and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Note 1  Sammary of significant accounting policies {centinued)

(iv)  Superammction
Contribltions are raade by the company to employee supersonuation funds and are charged ag expenses when
incarred.

I Emplovee benefit on-cosis
Employes benelit on-costs, including payroll tax, are recogmised snd included in employee benefir liabilities
and costs when the employvee bepefits to which they relate dre recognised as Tiabilities,

(i) Eguitv-based compensation henefiis
Equity-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the SEEK Limited Option Plan, No
accounpling entries are made in relation to the SEEK Limited Option Plan anfif options are exercised, at which
time the amoants recetvable from employees are recognised in the statement of financial position as share
capial.

fm} Cash
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash meludes mvestiments which are readily convertible o cash on hand
and are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value.

{ny Comparatives
The special purpose financial report provides the consolidated entity™s {inancisl position as at 31 December 2004 and
g performance for the six months then ended, as epresented by results of s operstions 4nd 1ts cash flows.

Comparative figures ased in the special purpose financial report ave for the full vear ended 30 June 2004 and 30 June
2003, 1t is recommended that this financial repont be vead in comunction with the annual Snancial report for the vear
ended 30 June 2004 lodged with ASIC, The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the entities in the
seonomic entity and are consistent with those applied in the 30 Fune 2004 and 30 June 2003 finsncial report.

{6) Reovnding of amounts
The company 15 of 8 kind referred 10 in Class Oeder 9870 H, issued by the Australian Secarities and Investments
Comrmigsion, relating w the “rounding off” of amounts in the financial report. Amounts in the fnancial report have
heen rounded off in gecordances with that Cliass Order o the nearest thoasand dollars, or in certain cases, 1o the
nearest doliar.

H
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Note 2 Revenue

Revenae from operating activities
SEEK classified advertising revenue
SEEK tearning

Revenae from owtside ihe operating aclivities
Interest

Revenue from ordinary ackivities

Note 3  Profii from ordinary activities

Profit from ordingry activities before refated meome tax includes the
following specific net gaing and expenges:

Expenses
Depreciation
Plant and equipment
Total depreciation
Arnortisation
Goodwill

Total amortisation

Other charges against assels
Had and doubtfd debts - trade deblors

Research and development costs

Rental expense veluting (0 operating leases
Minirumn lease payments

Consclidated

Bec Jurie ume

2004 2eH4 2003

SO0 FO00 S0

(6 months) {12 monthsy  {E2 months}
28,529 39,745 23,611
2,865 - -
31.3%4 39,745 23.6§1
741 P11 3i3
32,135 H1E56 28,924
Consolidated

Bec Jurie June

2004 2eH4 283

SO0 FO00 F000

(6 months) {12 monthsd {12 months)

339 480 382
339 480 382
1,208 4935 71
1,208 4935 71
17 15 196
- - H36
A4 385 287
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Note 4 Income tax

{a) Income iax expense
The meome tax expense for the period / financial year differs from the
amount calcatated on the profit, The differences are reconcted a8 follows:

Prafit from ordinary activities before income tax expense

Income tax calewlated @ 30% (2004, 2003 - 30%)
Tax effect of permanent differences:

Research and development claim

Nog-deductible depreciation and amortisation

Non-deductible inferest expense

Other non-deductible expenses

Sundry items
Income tax adjusted for permanent differences
Benetit of tax losses not previously brought W account
Effect of higher rates of tax on oversess income
Fleture ineome tax benefits annbutable to Gming differences not previously
broughl to aceount

{b) The divectors estimate the potential fibure income tax benefit at 31
December of tax losses not brought to account s

Tax consolidation legiskation

Bec
2864
5 008
(6 inetihs)

Consolidated
June June
264 23
S LY EEE

{12 monthsy {12 moaths)

12,647 14,553 5821
3,614 4367 1,746

(38 {453 (138)
363 206 i
14 17 -

. - 220

27 - 9
3,926 1,543 1888
(150) (3,153 .

35 31

. {695 (1,888)
3.611 718 ]
- 179 3,332

. 179 3332

SEEK Limped and its wholly-owned Austrabian controlled entities intend to implement the tax consolidation
legistation ss of 1 July 2004, The Australisn Twation Offtce has not vet been notified of this decision. The accounting

policy on irplementation of the legislation & ser owt in note 1(b}.

Note 5 Non-curreat assefs — Intangibles

Goodwill on purchase of businesses

Legs: Accumulisted amortisshion

Consolidated
Brec Jurie June
2604 264 2603
LR U] KA EH LEELT
3.839 5,162 5]
{1,569} {66E) {163)
7.970 5,502 .
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Note 6 Reserves and retained profits

(a2}  Reserves
Foveign currency transiation reserve
Opening balance
Net exchange differences on wanslation of foreign
controfled entity
Closing Balance

B} Accemulsted losses

Acclrmdated fosses at the beginning of the fingncig) vear

Net profi
Erividends provided for or paid
Accuemudated losses at ibe end of the financial vear

(¢) ReconcHiation of total equiey
Total equity 4t the beginning of the financial year
Tatal changes in equity recognised i the statement of
finsncia] performance
New contributions of squity
Selective capitsl reduction
Ervidend pad
Total equity af the end of ihe financial vear

Note 7

Consolidaied
Bec fune June
2064 200 20013
Nates FHHHE S SO0
29 11 i8
{15) 18 {7
14 29 il
(3,539 {17,374} (23,1953
8,236 §3,835 3821
(12,491) - -
(7,794) {3,539} (17,374
36,282 il.411 3,393
8,221 §3,853 3814
787 31,478 264
- {20,457y
(12,491) - -
32,799 36,282 FE45T

cash inflow frem eperating activities

Profit from ordinary activities afier related income tax
Depreciation and amortisation
Net exchange difference

Changee in operating assets and labilities, net of effects from purchase of

controlled entily
{lacrease} m recelvables
flecrease} i other operating sssels
flncrease) i future income tax benefit
Increasef{decrease} in payables
Increase i other provisions

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Reconciliation of profit from ordinary activities after income fax fo net

Consolidaied
Bec June hine
2604 2084 204013
§ 008 Fo0d SO0
(6 meowths) {17 months) (12 months)
8.236 13,838 3821
1,608 376 433
{it) I8 {7
{1,664) (863} {325)
{166) {1y (453
{57) (1,081} -
4,722 3.467 {7253
231 248 i53
12,899 16,608 3,327
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Note 8 Acquisition of centrolled entity

One | laly 2004 SEEK Limited acquired 1% of the share capital of SEEK Lesming Pty Led {formerly Business

Information Systems Pry Ltd, rading as Selfeert) for 34,075,000 including 3177000 relating (0 acquisition costs. The

operatinig results of this sewly controlled entity have been imcluded in the consolidated statement of the financial

performance since the date of acquisition,

There is corrently $350,000 of the purchase price held in escrow. At the date of this {inancial report it is anticipated that
S180.000 of the Funds held in escrow will be retursed to SEEK Limited. As such 3150,000 hag been excluded from the

calealation of the parchase consideration given above.

At the date of acquisition, the acquired entity wis involved i the provision of on-line training programs to IT

professionals,

{a) DBetails of the sequisition are as foilows:
Fawr vilue of identifiable net assets of controiled entity acquired:
Plant and equipment
Trade deblors
Prepayments
Cash
Trade creditors
Provision for employee entitlements

Goopdwill on consolidation
Cash congideration

$600

138
178

780
(757
(38)
345
3,730
4,075

{b} Outflow of cash to acquire controlied entity, nel of cash required:

Cash consideration
Add: Contingent consideration held in escrow
Less: Balances sequired

Cash

Total Ourflow of cash

Less: Professional fees paid i the prior year
Oatflow of cash 1n the carent year

Note 9 Invesiment in controlled entity

Country of  Class of shares

Name of enfity incarporation

SEEK Campug Proprietary Limired Australia Ordinary
BOINZY Lid Mew Zegland Oedinary

SEEK Learmng Proprietary Limited®  Australia Oedinary

4,073
156

(750)
3,445

53
3,392

Equity Holding
Dec 2004  Juane 2884 June 2003

a/tl " L " £
100% 100% 100%
100% 100% HO0%
160% - -

* Forrnerly kuows as Business [nformation Systems Pty Lid and trading ag Self Cert.
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Regiséry Use Onily .

SEEK Limited
ABN 46 080 075 314

Application Form

This Application Form is important. i you are in doubt as fo how to deal with it, please
contact your stockbroker or professional adviser without delay. You shouid read the
entire Replacement Propsectus dated 1 April 2005 carefully before completing this form
Refrences below to “Prospectus” are to the Replacement Prospectus, To meet the
requiremants of the Corgorations Act, this Application Form must not be
distributed unless included in, or accompanied by, the Replacament Prospecius,

Broker Code Adviser Code

n #we fodge full Application Money

IndividuaifJoint Applications - refer to naming standards overleaf for correct forms of registrable titiefs)
Titi or Company Marme Biven Namels Bumarng

or Aucaurd Desinnati

Enter your posta address - Inciude State and Posteode
Ui Straal Nurrber Strost Narna or PO Box /Othet Iof

iy { Buburs { Toun Shate Fostoode

Enter your contact details
{ontzct Mame Telephone Hurmber - Business Hours f Afer Howrs

CHESS Participant
Holder Iden#fication Humber (HiN)

Please note that {f you supply & CHESS HIN but the name and address details on your form do not
cormespond exactly with the registration detadis hald &l CHESS, your Appiication will ba desmed fo be
rade without the CHESS HIN, and any securities issued ag & result of the PO will ba ketd on the
lssuar Sponsared subregisler.

Cheque details - Make your cheque or bank draft payable to SEEK Limited Share Offer
t Numb

Drawer Cheque Number BSB Number Account Number Amount of cheque

By submitling this Application Form, liwe declare that this Application is completed and fodged according to the Replacement Prospectus and the dedlarafions/staternents on the
reverse of this Application form and Hwe declare that all details and siatements made by melus {ncluding the declaration on the raverse of this Application Form} are
complete and accurate. Wwe agree to be bound by the Constitution: of the Comparny. See back of form for completion guidetines

. S E K E P 2 AKERIE WD



How to complete this form

“ Application Monies

Enter the amount of Apolication Mories.

E Applicant Name{s)

Enter the full name you wish to appear on the statement of share
holding. This must be either your own name or the name of 8
company. Up to 3 joint Applicams may register.  You should refer to
the table below for the correct forms of registrable title, Applications
using the wrong form of names may be rgjected. Cleating House
Elzctronic Subregister System {CHESS) participants should complete
their name identically to that presently registered in the CHESS
system.

Postal Address

Enter your postal address for all correspondence. All communications
te you from the Registry will be mailed to the person{s) and address Payment

as shown. For joint Applicants, only one address can be entered.
E Contact Details irn Austrafian currency and cross it Not Negotiable. Your chague or
bank draft must be drawn on an Austradian braneh of an Ausiralian
Enter your contact details. These are not compuisory buf wil assist us Bank.
if we need to contact you.

E CHESS

SEEK Limited {ihe Company} wilt apply 1o the ASX to participate in
CHESS, sperated by ASX Settlement and Transfer Corporation Pty Lid,
g wholly owried subsidiary of Austratian Stock Exchange Limited. in
CHESS, the company wil operate an glecironic CHESS Subregister of
sectrity holdings and an elecironic Issuer Sponsored Subregistar of
security holdings. Together tha two Subragisters will make up the
Company's principal register of securifies. The Company will not be
issuing certificates lo applicants in respect of Crdinary Shares aliotted.
If you are & CHESS participant {or are sponsored by a CHESS
participant} and you wish 1o hold Crdinary Shares allotted to you under
this Application on the CHESS Subregisier, enter your CHESS HIN.
(therwise, teave this section blank and on allotment, you will be
sponsored by the Company and allocated a Securitvholder Reference
Number {SRN).

Make your chaque or bank draft payable to SEEK Limited Share Offer

Complete the cheque details in the boxes provided. The total amount
must agree with the ameount shown in box B.

Chegues will be processed on the day of receipt and as such,
sufficient cleared funds must be held in your account as chegues
returned ungaid may not be re-presented and may resulf in your
Application being rejected. Pin {do not staple) your chequels; fo the
Application Form where indicated. Cash wil not be accepted.
Receipt for payment will not be forwarded.

Before completing the Application Form the applcant{s} should read the Replacement Prospectus to which this Application refates. By lodging the Application Form, the

applicant agrees that this Application for Ordinary Shares in SEEK Limited is upon and subject to the terms of the Replacement Prospectus and the Consfitufion of
SEEK Limited, agrees to take any number of Crdinary Shares that may be attotted to the Applican{s) pursuant fo the Replacement Prospectus and declares that al
details and statements made are complete and sccurate. it is not necessary to sign the Application Form,

Lodgement of Application

Application Forms must be recaived at the Melbourne office of Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited by no fater than 5:00pm AEST on Wednesday 13 April 2085,

Return the Application Form with chequeis) attached to:

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limitad OR Compuiershare Invesior Services Pty Limited
GPO Box 52 Yarra Falis
MELBOURNE WIC 8060 452 Johnston Street

ABBOTSFORD VIC 30687

Privacy Statement

Personai information is collected on this form by Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited {"CIS"), a5 registrar for securities issuers {"the issuer}, for the purpose of
maintaining registers of securityholders, facilitating distribution payments and other corporate actions and communications. Your personal information may be disclosed fo
our related bodies corporate, to external service companies such as print or mail service providers, or as otherwise required or permitted by faw. If you would ke details
of your personal information heid by CIS, or you would fike o correct information that is inaceurate, incorrect or out of date, please contact CIS. In accordance with the
Corporaiions Act 2001, you may be sent material {including marketing material) approved by the issuer in addilion 1o general corporate communications. You may elect
not fo recelve marketing material by contacting CIS. You can contact CIS using the defails provided on the front of this form or E-mai privacy@computershare.com.au

If you have any enguiries concerning your Application, please contact the SEEK Limited Share Offer Information Line on 1360 131 262.

Correct forms of registrable title{s)

Note that ONLY legal entities are alfowed to hold Crdinary Shares. Applications must be made in the name{s) of naturad persons, companies or other legal antifies in
geceordance with the Corporations Act. Al least one full given name and the surame is required for each natural person. The name of the beneficial owner or any
other registrable name may be included by way of an account designation if completed exactly as describad in the examples of correct forms of registrable tifle(s] below.

Type of Imvestor

Corracl Form of Registration

Incoreect Form of Ragistration

fravicual
- Use given name(s) in Tull, nat istials

Mr uhn Alred Smith

Joist
- Use given name(s) in Tull, nat istials

Mr dodha Alfred Seith: &
Mrs Janet #arie Smifh

Compary
- Use cosmpany title, nol sbbreviations

ABC Py £id

Trasts
- ise trustes(s) personal nama{s)
- Do #at use fhe name of e st

s Penny Smith
<Pasny Smith Family AL

Penny Smifh Family Tra

Deceased Estatas
- Uze gxecatols) personal nama{s)
- Do aol use the reme of e decessed

Mr Michast Smith
<Est fukm Swith AC>

Esiate of Late Jehn S

Minar (a persen ander the age of 18)
- Use fie name of & responsibie aduil witk an approprisfe designation

Mr dohn Alred Smith
<Beler Smifh AT

Peter Smith

Patnerships
- Uze partaals personsl rams(s)
- Do nof vse fhe name of he pardnarship

Mr Jshe Smith &
Mr Michast Smith
<Jobr: Smith: & Sor AC>

Clebsiiniacorporated Bodies/Business tamas
- Use office besrar(s) persossl nameds)
- Do not use the name of the club efe

Mrs Janed Smith
<ABL Ternis Associstion AC>

Suzperaniastion Fuscs
- Lise the name of rusies of the fund
- Do not use the name of fhe furd

Jaha Sith Pty Lid
«<Supar Fund AC>

Jobry Smith Péy Lid Superannuation Furd
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Hirectors

ckar iChairman)

V[

{ Eupoitive

Faui Bassal [Chi

At

sy Bassal [Execulive Dire

Matlhew Rockman [Execubive Director

Hao

[ Wialaon

Chris Anderson Non-Exacut
Girs ]

tor

‘pin Carler [Non-Exec

Company Secretary
lary Mohuh(lo

The SEEK websits

e s ek com. sy

The SEEK Offer Information Line
1305 131 242

Melhourns ViC

Compulershare 1r

Boiicitors to the Dffer







